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0 ear Shareholders 

We hereby present unaudited financial results for the 

third quarter ended September 30, 1999. 

Net income of the Company for the third quarter of 

1999 was approximately $0.9 million or, $0.04 per 

share. Net income in the third quarter of 1998 amounted 

to approximately $2.1 million, or $0.10 per share. 

The results of the third quarter were affected by a 

one-time provision, net after tax, of $3.2 million for 

retirement grant to Elron's founder and President for 

the past 38 years. 

In the third quarter of 1999 the Company had an 

income of approximately $2.6 million from sale of 

100,000 shares of Zoran (NASDAQ:ZRAN), as of the 

day of this report Elron holds approximately 1,364,000 

shares of Zoran. 

In the nine months ended September 30, 1999, net 

income amounted to approximately $22 million, or 

$1.04 per share. This included a gain, net aftertax, of 

approximately $19.7 million, resulting from the sale 

of Elron holdings in Elbit Medical Imaging in the second 

quarter of 1999. Net income in the first nine months 

of 1998 amounted to approximately $45.8 million, or 

$2.24 per share, which included a $36.5 million gain 

resulting from the completion of the sale of Elbit 

Medical Imaging ultrasound division to GE Medical 

Systems. 

Sales by Elron's wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary, Elron 

Software Inc., in the third quarter and first nine months 

of 1999 amounted to approximately $10.8 million 

and $29.7 million respectively. Sales in the same 

periods of 1998 amounted to approximately $3.3 

million and $11 million respectively. The sales resulting 

from the system integration activity, acquired in 

December 1998, are the main reason for the increase 

in sales. 

Elron's Board of Directors declared a third quarter 

dividend of $0.5 per share. This dividend should not 

indicate similar future dividend policy. The dividend 

is determined each quarter by the Board of Directors. 

The dividend will be paid on November 29, 1999 to 

shareholders of record at the close of business on 

November 15,1999. The Company will deduct income 

tax at source at a rate currently estimated to be 25°/o. 

Ami Erel, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of 

the Company, said: "I would like to thank U. Galil for 

the kind and dignified manner in which he transferred 

over the post, and wish him continued success in his 

future activities. We congratulate Partner, which 

completed successfully its public offering in the U.S. 

and Europe. Elron will continue to implement its 

strategy to create value for its shareholders from its 

present holdings and to build new activities, primarily 

in software, communication and Internet related 

activities". 

Ami Erel November 8, 1999 

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer 



CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(US Dollars in Thousands except per share amounts) Three Months Ended 

September 30, 
1999 1998 

(Unaudited) 

Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 

1999 1998 
(Unaudited) 

Income 

Sales I I 10,821 $ 3,274 $ 29,692 $ 10,974 

Company's share in income (loss) of affiliated companies, net (926) 897 (834) 37,537 

Gain from disposal of and changes in holdings in 

affiliated companies 552 1,987 31,721 3,877 

Other income, net 4,166 869 9,794 9,590 

Finance income 2,422 682 4,105 1,596 

17,035 7,709 74,478 63,574 

Costs and Expenses 17,617 5,492 41,875 15,803 

Amortization of In-process research and development 

acquired - 121 - 1,938 

Income (loss) before income taxes (582) 2,096 32,603 45,833 

Income taxes 1,526 - (10,587) -

Net income $ 944 $ 2,096 $ 22,016 $ 45,833 

Basic net income per share $ 0.04 $ 0.10 $ 1.04 $ 2.24 

Number of shares used in computation (thousands) 21.138 20,651 21,103 20,442 

Diluted net income per share it 0.04 $ 0.09 $ 1.03 $ 2.18 

Number of shares used in computation (thousands) 21,195 20,875 21,166 20,667 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(US Dollars in thousands) 

1999 

September 30, 

(Unaudited) 
1998 

December 31, 
1998 

(Audited) 

Current Assets $ 168,879 $ 45,651 $ 35,165 

Investments and long-term balances 

-Investments in affiliated companies 104,404 214,431 218,437 

-Other investments 15,799 15,749 16,317 

-Long-term deposits and debentures 6,800 - -

127,003 230,180 234,754 

Fixed Assets, net 4,645 1,205 3,293 

Other assets, net 30,160 7,622 32,512 

$ 330,687 $ 284,658 $ 305,724 

Current liabilities $ 43,348 S 5,400 $ 14,656 

Long term liabilities 43,362 10,000 40,919 

Shareholders' equity 243,977 269,258 250,149 

$ 330,687 $ 284,658 S 305,724 

Board of Directors 

Ami Erel - Chairman 

Gideon S. Erhard 

Jacob Eshel 

Emmanuel Gill 

Dr. Yael llan 

Frank J. Klein 

Prof, llan Meshoulam 

Lenny Recanati 

Dr. Yoram A. Turbowicz 

Officers 
Ami Erel - Chairman of the Board & Chief Executive Officer 

Dr. Jacov (Koby) Ben-Zvi - Senior V.P. Business Development 

President & CEO - Elron Software Inc. 

Doron Birger - V.P. Finance & Corporate Secretary 

Arie Amit - V.P. Information Technology 

Joint Auditors 

Luboshitz, Kasierer 

(a member firm of Arthur Andersen) 

Ratzkovsky Fried & Co. 

Corporate Headquarters 

Elron Electronic Industries Ltd. 

Advanced Technology Center 

P.O.B. 1573, Haifa 31015, Israel 

Tel. 972(4) 854-5000 

Fax.972(4) 855-0248 

Web site:http://www.elron.com 

Email: elron@elron.net 

Offices in the U.S.A.: 

Elron Software Inc. 

7 New England Executive Park 

Burlington, MA. 01803-0977 

Tel. (781)993-6000 

Fax.(781) 993-6001 

Web site: www.elronsw.com 

Elron Technologies, Inc. 

666 Fifth Avenue 

New York, N.Y. 10103 

Tel. (212) 935-3110 

Fax. (212) 541-2448 

Email: yjk@elron.net 

Wholly-owned subsidiaries 

Elron Software Inc. 

Elron Technologies, Inc. 

Affiliates 

Public 

Elbit Ltd. 

Elbit Systems Ltd. 

Elbit Vision Systems (through Elbit Ltd.) 

Zoran Corporation 

NetManage Inc. 

LOGAL Educational Software and Systems Ltd. 

Private 

Chip Express Corporation 

NetVision Ltd. 

Mediagate 
DEP/RDC Rafael Development Corporation Ltd. 

Ornetix Technologies Ltd. 

Servicesoft Technologies, Inc. 

ArelNet Ltd. 

Oren Semiconductor Inc. 

Witcom Ltd. 

Given Imaging 

OLB 

Gemini Israel Fund, LP. 

Transfer Agent & Registrar 

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company 

40 Wall Street 

New York, N.Y. 10005 
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Organizational Structure Principles 

Three independent lines of business 
Size and structure of LOB enabling it to move fast, focus, be competitive and grow value based on 
products and projects. 
Each line of business shall be managed as an independent company with separate P&L and lead by 
an executive with full responsibility on all aspects of that line of business. 
The manager of each line of business shall be either one of the company executives or a very senior 
business manager that shall be recruited. 
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S O F T W A R E  

Organizational Structure Principles 

Each line of business shall have its own business development, sales, operations/engineering & 
technology management. 
Where products are applicable, organization of a line of business shall include R&D, product 
management, QA and support. 
Lines of business shall include all activities regardless of geography in the relevant area. Israel and 
US geography are for operational issues only. 
The Telecom line of business shall be organized to operate and to be perceived and respected as a US 
based Telecom product company. 
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Organizational Structure Principles 

The following functions shall exist at the corporate level: 
President, US and Israel general managers, CFO, HR, IT, procurement and legal and marketing. 
The marketing role shall be to coordinate the company positioning, the PR, the liaison with analysts, 
collateral preparation e.g. presentations, Web sites, brochures etc. 
Each line of business shall have Business dev & marketing, COO, CTO and F&A. 
The COO of each line of business shall have a business manager for line of products and a regional 
US manager & Israel manager for projects in the Telecom LOB. 



Telecom Line of Business 
Operating goals 
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Revenue components of Telecom Line of Business 

Telecom revenue for 1999 was $11.7 M$ , or 44.5% of 
Systems Integration division 28 M$ revenue. 
Telecom revenue in the US was 4.2 M$ or 34% of the 
overall Telecom revenue. 
Target for Telecom revenue in 2000 is 17 M$ world wide 
hence 36% growth. 
Target for US & ROW revenue in 2000 in Telecom is 8.5 
M$ or 50% of total Telecom rev. 
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Telecom Operational goals 

Total # of developers in Telecom group as of end of 99 is 
approximately 80. (Aprox 25 have true Telecom 
background and experience) 
Total # of developers necessary for achieving goals for 
year 2000 calls for approximately 100 developers in avg 
(e.g 100 in middle of 2000 and 120 at end of 2000). 
As goal in Avg , 50 of the developers should be working 
for US and ROW prospects. 
CDR development group to be constructed in Boston. 
Additional activities to strengthen presence in US to be 
considered (Intertools?) 



£LRON 
Telecom Operational goals S O F T W A R E  

• Organize as true US Telecom product company 
Headquartered in US e.g. Product Marketing , PR, 
Training, Technical Documentation, Support and Sales for 
CDR and Intertools based in Boston. 

• Entire CPM R&D Engineering team 
• Have HP receptive to Joint Venture towards end of 2000. 
• 10 developers and QA and support team to be based in 

Boston. 
• Significant Engineering presence for IP Service 

Management in Boston. 
• Goal is for CDR and IP Service management 

Engineering to have at 40 of the Engineers based in 
Boston. 

• Need to strengthen the number of Telecom domain experts 
in the Telecom group. 
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CDR based applications operational goals 
Based heavily in year 2000 on HP-Elron SW relationship. 
Crucial to succeed in the difficult NTT Japan account 
Need to progress from NTT installation to Bulgaria, 
Malaysia, Poland and Philippines and other potential 
customers. 
In process of defining roadmap of CPM . This includes 
International CPM and derivative Performance 
management products (National Interconnect, Wireline, 
Wireless, Most profitable Routing, Trend) for 2000 
together with HP. 
Will develop CDR application group, product marketing, 
QA and support in Boston. 
Will organize to access the US CLEC market directly. 
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Telecom - CDR based activities continued 

• Will target to leverage Bezeq, Cellcom and Pelephone 
relationships to come out in year 2000 with ESSB product 
line blessed by HP as global product for Inter carrier 
Settlements. 

• Will target extending relationship with HP in to areas of 
applications in Hybrid SS#7,IP,ATM networks based on 
Data mining to be provided by new HP Access ATM/IP 
platform probes offering SDR's (service data records). 

• Will concentrate in 2000 on relationship with HP, but 
carefully consider partnerships that may boost 
opportunities in this areas independently of HP with out 
contradicting HP (AMDOCS, other probe vendors e.g. EC-
Tel in select areas) 
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What do HP Agilent bring to the partnership? 

Unique leadership in SS#7 based probe based CDR collection and data 
mining technology. 
By year 2000 HP will have 100 SS#7 Surveillance and business 
intelligence customers (20 in North America, 50 in Rest of World and 
30 new ones in process). 
HP TSD revenue aprox 125 M$ in 99 growing at 30% per year. 
The broad access to the market ensuring that Elron CDR apps 
developed are truly market driven. 
Commitment by HP management to have world wide sales channel, 
marketing product management, support working to sell Elron CDR 
based applications. 
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Year 2000 CDR based applications revenue sources 

1 CPM1;CPM2; CPM 3 license rev (through HP) 1000 k$ 
• CPM derivative products license rev (through HP) 500 k$ 
• Customizations and support opportunities (through HP) 500k$ 
• Direct Elron Sales of CDR activities in Israel (Bezeq, Cellcom, 

Pelephone) 1000k$ 
' ESSB license rev target (through HP after convincing HP of prospect 

Elron solution) 500 k$ 
• Direct sales of CDR activities and related projects in ROW 1000 k$ 

• Total expected true CDR based application revenue 4.5 M$ 
» 2.5 M$ (out of 4.5M$) is intended to be in true license revenue 
» Overall revenue expected in this OSS Management sector expected to 

be 8 M$. 
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Existing funnel for CPM prospects as presented by HP 

Following funnel only for International Gateway 
CPM product: (Server sizes:D small, K medium, V large ) 

Greece 
Plus GSM Poland 
NTT Japan 
Maxis Malaysia 
Telecom Malaysia 
Ttnet Japan 
TNZL New Zealand 
PLDT Philippines 
KPN Holland 
UNI2 Spain 
Telecom Brazil 

- K class Server 
- K class Server 
- K class Server 
- D class Server 
- D class Server 
- D class Server 
- D class Server 
- D class Server 
- K class Server 
- D class Server 
- K or V class Server 
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Elron Software CPMproduct family License Rev 
predictions for 3 years as presented by HP 

• International CPM1;CPM2 (Feb 00);CPM3 (May 00) - 2.2 M$ 
(Based on 18% penetration of 12 M$ market e.g. 18 avg installs) 
• National Interconnect CPM - 4.4. M$ 
(Based on 7 large installs in US and 15 smaller installs in ROW) 
• Wireline CPM - 6.6 M$ 
Used for Network planning and examine largest customers against SLA) 
• CPM Most Profitable Routing (MPR) - 1.0 M$ 
(Based on 10 installs at 100k per install) 
• CPM Trend -1.8M$ 

Total 16 M$ 
(* - This excludes a CPM Cellular product with emphasis on growing 

GSM market of 350 GSM Operators to be developed) 



Intertools Current Status £LRON 
S O F T W A R E  

Have not yet created a significant Intertools "beach-head" within the 
US and Canada. 
The product is missing key functionality in certain areas and 
significant competition is being identified. 
Still exploring, learning, trying to position product with differentiation 
to competition. 
Have generated interest and contacts that should mature to several 
projects in year 2000 based on Intertools components. 
Seems that a real opportunity resides within the "ADC alike" 
OEMing as the service management solution (ADC, InfoLibria, BAS) 
for new service offerings of equipment vendors. 
Still an open opportunity within Nortel, for the xDSL provisioning, but 
it's a very different product than the existing Intertools. 
Limited coordination between Intertools opportunity attempts in Israel 
and those in US. 
Still trying to make progress based on relationships, opportunistic 
attempts leading to various different markets (DSL, Cable, Cellular, 
OEM) etc hence no true Roadmap and product management. 
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Intertools Operational Plan 

Intertools to be the basic product around which IP Service 
Management activity shall be constructed. 
Require to bring leader in Intertools in form of 
Entrepreneur to focus on Intertools, position, influence 
product direction, prepare business plan, obtain funding 
and participate in creating channels strategic partnerships 
etc. 
Need to transform Intertools to true product, hence define 
road map by product management, have R&D, QA support 
teams in place and conduct true product marketing. 
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Intertools Operational Plan 
• As part of product management building correct pricing 

policy for direct sale, scalability and OEM with analysis 
to competition. 

• Develop a true R&D and support and testing infrastructure 
environment and define correct mode in which core 
product is developed along with custom versions for 
customers. 

• Consider part of R&D and or QA/support to be in Boston. 
• To secure as many as possible of the following project 

opportunities: ADC Teledata, Golden Channels extensions, 
BAS, InforLibrea, Bezeq DSL, Pelephone, Cellcom, 
Nortel DSL, Videotron, Ariel, Ericsson, Tevel, Matav etc. 
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Intertools Operational Plan 

Concentrated effort on Branding Intertools name. 
PR campaign around Intertools to leverage the existing 
awareness to Open Access, Broadband Access to Internet, 
Service Management etc. 
Build true support infrastructure enabling to be close to 
customers when selling to US market. 
Create true strategic partnerships with large corporations 
with brand name and access to market (Nortel, Ericsson, 
ECI, ADC, Telecordia, HP) 





OPEN FIRM REQS: ? 
OPEN LIKELY REQS: ? 
OPEN FIRM ENG SUP: ? 
OPEN LIKELY ENG SUP: ? 

ENGINEERING STAFFING 
TOTAL ENGINEERING Summary 

2000 

Payroll: 
250 



OPEN FIRM REQS: ? 
OPEN LIKELY REQS: ? 
OPEN FIRM ENG SUP: ? 
OPEN LIKELY ENG SUP: ? 

ENGINEERING STAFFING 
TOTAL ENGINEERING Detail 

2000 

Payroll: 

250 -

3/20/00 FIRM REQs = Open Uncommitted Reqs + New Hires 

! EHIS 50%Target 

• Mil 50%Target 

• P.S. 50% Target 

' S3 E-Fin 50%Target 

j S3 HBS 50%Target 

1E1IAM 50%Target 

| E3 OSS 50%Target 

HIS Firm 

I Mil Firm 

j • P.S. Firm 

I E-Fin Firm 

I HBS Firm 

HAM Firm 

! • OSS Firm 



OPEN FIRM REQS: ? 
OPEN LIKELY REQS: ? 

ENGINEERING STAFFING 
Telco Division 

2000 

FIRM REQs = Open Uncommitted Reqs + New Hires 3/20/00 



ENGINEERING STAFFING 
E-Finance Division 

2000 
OPEN FIRM REQS: ? 
OPEN LIKELY REQS: ? 

FIRM REQS = Open Uncommited Reqs + New Hires 3/20/00 



OPEN FIRM REQS: ? 
OPEN LIKELY REQS: ? 

ENGINEERING STAFFING 
Military Division 

2000 

FIRM REQS = Open Uncommited Reqs + New Hires 3/20/00 



Engineering Staffing Summary - 2000 
Total Engineering Summary 

Jan-00 Feb-00 Mar-00 Apr-00 May-00 Jun-00 Jul-00 Aug-00 Sep-00 Oct-OO Nov-00 Dec-00 
00AVG 
(6 mo) 

Teleco Firm 64 65 70 80 75 78 76 76 73 71 67 67 71 

E-Finance Firm 62 63 64 66 67 64 64 60 54 52 52 52 60 

Military Firm 48 55 53 56 52 50 49 47 45 47 46 46 50 

Telco 50% Target 5 5 6 10 11 14 20 19 19 14 13 14 12 

E-Finance 50% Targe 1 4 6 8 8 8 8 9 8 8 5 6 

Military 50% Target 1 2 5 7 12 12 12 12 11 11 11 8 

Telco F&T 68 70 76 90 85 91 95 94 91 84 79 80 84 

E-Finance F&T 62 64 68 72 75 72 72 68 63 60 60 57 66 

Military F&T 48 56 55 61 59 62 61 59 57 58 57 57 57 Military F&T 

Total: 178 190 198 223 218 225 228 221 210 202 196 194 207 

Total W/O Target: 174 183 187 202 194 192 189 183 172 170 165 165 181 



Engineering Staffing Summary - 2000 
Total Engineering Detail 

Jan-00 Feb-00 Mar-00 Apr-00 May-00 Jun-00 Jul-00 Aug-00 Sep-00 Oct-OO Nov-00 Dec-00 

00AVG 
(6 mo) 

1AM Firm 38 37 38 40 34 34 31 31 31 31 31 31 34 

OSS Firm 26 28 32 40 41 44 45 45 42 40 36 36 37 

HBS Firm 11 11 11 14 13 10 10 6 2 7 

E-Fin Firm 6 6 6 4 4 4 4 4 1 1 1 1 4 

P.S. Firm 45 46 47 48 50 50 50 50 51 51 51 51 49 

Mil Firm 33 33 31 29 25 24 23 21 19 19 18 18 24 

IIS Firm 15 22 22 27 27 26 26 26 26 28 28 28 25 

1AM 50%Target 0 1 6 7 10 15 15 15 10 9 10 8 

OSS 50%Target 5 5 6 5 4 4 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 

HBS 50%Target 1 4 5 6 6 6 6 8 8 8 5 5 

E-Fin 50%Target 1 2 3 3 2 1 1 

P.S. 50% Target 

Mil 50%Target 1 2 3 3 4 4 3 3 2 

IIS 50%Target 3 4 8 8 9 9 11 11 11 6 

Total: 178 190 198 223 218 225 228 221 210 202 196 194 207 

Total W/O Target: 174 183 187 202 194 192 189 183 172 170 165 165 181 



Telecommunications 

Jan-00 Feb-00 Mar-00 Apr-00 May-00 Jun-00 Jul-00 Aug-00 Sep-00 Oct-OO Nov-00 Dec-00 
IAM Firm 38.3 37.0 38.0 40.0 34.0 34.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 5411250.0 

12584126.0 Tot F 

2913500.0 50% T 

18411126.0 Tot F&T 

OSS Firm 25.5 28.0 31.5 39.5 40.5 43.5 44.5 44.5 41.5 39.5 35.5 35.5 7172876.0 12584126.0 Tot F 

2913500.0 50% T 

18411126.0 Tot F&T 

1AM 50% Targ 0.3 0.5 5.5 6.5 9.5 15.0 15.0 15.0 10.0 9.0 10.0 1604000.0 
12584126.0 Tot F 

2913500.0 50% T 

18411126.0 Tot F&T 

OSS 50% Targ 4.5 5.0 5.5 4.5 4.0 4.0 4.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 1309500.0 

12584126.0 Tot F 

2913500.0 50% T 

18411126.0 Tot F&T 
1AM F&T 38.3 37.3 38.5 45.5 40.5 43.5 46.0 46.0 46.0 41.0 40.0 41.0 8619250.0 

12584126.0 Tot F 

2913500.0 50% T 

18411126.0 Tot F&T OSS F&T 30.0 33.0 37.0 44.0 44.5 47.5 49.0 48.0 45.0 43.0 39.0 39.0 9791876.0 

12584126.0 Tot F 

2913500.0 50% T 

18411126.0 Tot F&T 
Category 

12584126.0 Tot F 

2913500.0 50% T 

18411126.0 Tot F&T 

Nortel Multicast Car 1.5 IAM 36000.0 Udi Nir 
Nortel Multicast Ent 4.0 5.0 4.0 IAM 36000.0 
Quarry 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 IAM 304000.0 
ECI Telecom 7.5 7.0 8.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 IAM 1350000.0 
ADC Teledatra NMS 2.0 5.0 5.0 9.0 9.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 IAM 1440000.0 
Process Software 2.0 IAM 34000.0 Ran Sharon 
IPD 4.0 3.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 IAM 255000.0 
Golden Channels 2.3 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 IAM 259250.0 
ADC Teledatra Inter 1.0 1.0 1.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 IAM 306000.0 
Gadline 1.0 1.0 3.0 3.0 IAM 
Cisco IAM 
Intertools R&D 6.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 IAM 
Bezeq DSL 1.0 3.0 3.0 1.0 IAM 650000.0 
Bezeq 13x 4.0 3.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 IAM 741000.0 Eyal Miron 

Bezeq MOP 5.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 OSS 272850.0 
Bezeq assist to Reshet OSS 218280.0 
Bezeq Main! Shotef OSS 670976.0 
Bezeq 3rd party Maint OSS 214520.0 
Telecom Consulting 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 OSS 336000.0 Orly | 
Bezeq Integrators 1.0 1.0 OSS 
Bezeq Smart 1.0 1.0 1.0 OSS 37500.0 
LCC 3.3 4.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 OSS 956250.0 Oded Goren 
HP CPM1;2;3 2.3 4.5 5.0 6.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 OSS 1000000.0 
CPM Support 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 OSS 50000.0 
Bezeq ESSB 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 OSS 725000.0 
CPM Wirleline &lnter 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 OSS 504000.0 
Trend &MPR 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 OSS 300000.0 
CPM Wireless 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 OSS 500000.0 
Bezeq Harhavot 99 0.5 1.0 1.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 4.0 4.0 OSS 585000.0 Chen Michaeli 
Bezeq Merkaz G Maint 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 OSS 275000.0 
Bezeq avtahat Gisha 5.0 4.0 4.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 OSS 310000.0 
ESSB roadmap 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 OSS 
MOD Access7 2.0 30000.0 
EC-Tel 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 OSS 187500.0 

3/20/00 



Target Accounts 
Nortel enterprise 2 2 2 2 2 2 I AM 216000.0 Udl Nir 
Nortel Firewall IAM 
Nortel Networks Ser 4 4 4 5 5 5 IAM 486000.0 
Nortel Carrier Multi 1 1 1 1 1 1 IAM 108000.0 
Ennovate 1 2 4 5 5 5 IAM 330000.0 
InfoLibrea Intertools 2 4 8 8 8 8 6 4 2 IAM 850000.0 
Tevel 0.5 1 2 1 1 IAM 100000.0 Ran Sharon 
Pelephone Intertools IAM 
Videotron IAM 
BAS Intertools 6 IAM 108000.0 
IPD addons 2 2 2 2 2 IAM 170000.0 
Quarry 2 2 2 2 2 2 IAM 216000.0 
Golden Channels 2 2 2 2 2 2 IAM 204000.0 
Nortel DSL prov 2 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 IAM 420000.0 
Bezeq Alcatel DSL Pro IAM 

IAM 
Nortel OIT 2 4 4 5 5 7 7 7 7 7 7 OSS 930000.0 Udi Nir 
HP IP OSS 
Cellcom ESSB 5 5 4 2 OSS 500000.0 Chen Michaeli 
Pelephone ESSB OSS 500000.0 
SS#7 Ahzaka Bez+Pele OSS 500000.0 
Nemacs 4 3 3 3 3 3 2 OSS 189000.0 
Telecom Consult OSS 
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E-Finance 
Jan-00 Feb-00 Mar-00 Apr-00 May-00 Jun-00 Jul-00 Aug-00 Sep-00 Oct-OO Nov-00 Dec-00 

E-Finance Firm 6.0 6.0 6.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 660000.0 
HBS Firm 11.0 11.0 11.0 14.0 13.0 10.0 10.0 6.0 2.0 1473000.0 
P.S. Firm 45.0 46.0 47.0 48.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 51.0 51.0 51.0 51.0 5742000.0 
E-Finance 50% Target 1.0 2.0 2.5 2.5 2.0 1.0 198000.0 
HBS 50% Target 1.0 4.0 5.0 5.5 5.5 5.5 6.0 7.5 7.5 8.0 5.0 1089000.0 
P.S. 50% Target 
E-Finance F&T 6.0 6.0 6.0 5.0 6.0 6.5 6.5 6.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 858000.0 
HBSF&T 11.0 12.0 15.0 19.0 18.5 15.5 15.5 12.0 9.5 7.5 8.0 5.0 2562000.0 

P.S. F&T 45.0 46.0 47.0 48.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 51.0 51.0 51.0 51.0 5742000.0 
Category 

RPS 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 E-Fin 432000.0 

Neteos 2.0 2.0 2.0 E-Fin 108000.0 

Narkis 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 E-Fin 120000.0 

Mizrahi 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.0 HBS 252000.0 
Leumi 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 2.0 HBS 592000.0 
ServUright 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.0 HBS 323000.0 
VISA 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 HBS 306000.0 
IDEA R&D team IDEA 

Chicco IL 40.0 41.0 42.0 43.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 PS 4662000.0 
Chicco USA 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 PS 1080000.0 

Target Accounts 
Neteos 2 4 5 5 4 2 E-Fin 396000.0 
RPS 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 6 6 6 2 HBS 684000.0 
Leumi 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 HBS 378000.0 
Bala Virtual Bank 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 5 IDEA 576000.0 
Mizrahi Bank 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 4 5 IDEA 540000.0 

|Chicco IL PS 
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Military Dec-00 

Jan-00 Feb-00 Mar-00 Apr-00 May-00 Jun-00 Jul-00 Aug-00 Sep-00 Oct-OO Nov-00 18.0 
Mil Firm 33.0 33.0 31.0 29.0 25.0 24.0 23.0 21.0 19.0 19.0 18.0 28.0 4328000.0 
IIS Firm 15.0 22.0 22.0 27.0 27.0 26.0 26.0 26.0 26.0 28.0 28.0 4662000.0 
Mil 50% Target 1.0 1.5 2.5 2.5 4.0 4.0 3.0 2.5 11.0 378000.0 
IIS 50% Target 2.5 4.0 7.5 7.5 9.0 9.0 11.0 11.0 18.0 1215000.0 
Mil F&T 33.0 34.0 32.5 31.5 27.5 28.0 27.0 24.0 21.5 19.0 18.0 39.0 4706000.0 
IIS F&T 15.0 22.0 22.0 29.5 31.0 33.5 33.5 35.0 35.0 39.0 39.0 5877000.0 

10.0 Category 
Gov Israel Sformas 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 11.0 11.0 10.0 4.0 Mil 2380000.0 
Ozav 10.0 10.0 8.0 8.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 Mil 1258000.0 
Shob 10.0 10.0 10.0 8.0 6.0 5.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 Mil 690000.0 

7.0 

AMHCIS 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 2.0 IIS 1027000.0 
GIDS 5.0 5.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 15.0 IIS 736000.0 
TIES 1.0 8.0 10.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 4.0 IIS 2431000.0 
RIS support 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 4.0 4.0 IIS 468000.0 
Target Accounts 
Private Cast 2 3 5 5 8 8 6 5 Mil 756000.0 

10 
Neatherlands 5 8 10 10 10 10 10 10 12 IIS 1530000.0 
India 5 5 8 8 12 12 IIS 900000.0 
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LUBOSHITZ, 
KASIFRF.R & Co 

ARTHUR ANDERSEN 

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 

OF 

ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. II I). 

Wc have audited the balance sheet of ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LUX (the 
"Company") as of" December 31, 1998, and the related statement of income for the 
period from commencement of operations (November 30, 1998) to December 31, 
1998. These financial statements arc the responsibility of the Company's Board of 
Directors and management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit. 

Wc conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in 
Israel and in the United Stales, including those prescribed under the Auditors* 
Regulations (Auditor's Mode of Performance), 1973. T hose standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by the Board of Directors and management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement prcscniatioif'Wc believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. ' 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial posiliop of the Company- as of December 31, 1998, and the 
results of its operations for the period from commencement of operations (November 
30, 1998) to Decembei 31, 1998, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in Israel and in the United States (as applicable to the financial statements of 
the Company such principles are piaclically identical). 

Pursuant to Section 211 of the Companies Ordinance (New Version), 1983, wc stale 
that we received all of the information and explanations which we requested and that 
our opinion on the financial statements is given based on the best information and 
explanations which we received and as reflected in the books of the Company. 

Certified Public Accountants (1st.) 
Haifa, March 29, 1999 

(9277-0)98) 
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ELRON SOFTWARE N.C-C. LTD. 

BALANCE SHEET 
(Ii) thousands of U.S. dollars) 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Work in process 

LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES 

FIXED ASSETS 
Cost 
Less - accumulated depreciation 

OTHER ASSE TS, NET 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
ShoilTeim debt 
Trade payables 
Other payables 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES fi* 
Long-term loans , 
Accrued severance pay, nci 

Total liabilities 

CONTINGENCY AND COMMITMEN TS 

SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIENCY 
Share capital 
Accumulated deficit 

M. Attias 
ice-President -_FintfiTcc Vice' 

Date of approval of financial statements: 
March 29, 1999 

Note 

(3) 
(4) 

December 31 
1998 

37 
3,529 

777 
355 

4,698 

201 

(5) 

(1C) 

(6) 
(?) 
(8) 

(9) 
(10) 

( H )  

(12) 

1,938 
22 

1,916 

6,187 

13,002 

2,059 
579 

4,048 
6,686 

5,502 
892 

6,394 

13,080 

(78) 
(78) 

13,0.02 

Dr. J. Ben Zvi 
Director 

The notes to the financial statements form an Integral part thereof. •• 
: - 3 -

JL 
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ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LTD. 

STATEMENT OK INCOME 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

For Hie period from 
commencement of operations (*) 

to December 31 
Note 1998 

Revenues 
Cosl of revenues 

Gross profit 

1,255 
(13) 1,086 

169 

Research and development costs 
Selling, marketing and administrative 

expenses 

14 

(14) 165 
179 

Operating loss (10) 

Finance expenses, net 68 

Net loss (78) 

* November 30,1998 - See Note 1 A. 

- ;  -

The notes to the financial statements form an Integral pari thereof. 

. 4 • 

i A \\ • 



Fax sent by 16/03/00 09:37 P9: 6/15 

ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LTD. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(In thousands of U S dollars) 

Notel - GENERAL 

A. FXRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LTD. ("the Company") was 
incorporated and registered in Israel as a private company on 
October 27, 1998, and commerced operations on November 30, 
1998. The Company develops and supplies software solution for the 
management of large, complex communications and internet 
networks. These financial statements are the first audited financial 
Statements of the Company, and the statement of income 
accordingly reflects a one-month period ended December 31, 1998. 

B. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Elron Software, Inc. 
("ESI") a U.S.- registered company. ESI is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Elron Electronic Industries Ltd. ("Elron") an Israeli 
registered company which shares are traded on the NASDAQ 
National Market in the U.S. and on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange. 

C. The Company commenced operations subsequent to the acquisition 
of the principal operations and net assets of the N.C.C 
Communication System Group companies ("N.C.C. companies") by 
ESI, its wholly owned subsidiary, Elron Software N.C.C Export 
(1998) LTD., and the Company for a total consideration of $44 
million. The Cqmpany paid $5,000 of this consideration for certain 
assets, liabilities and operation^ of NCC Network communication 
and Computer System (1983) Ltd. ("NCC"). Of this amount $1,248 
was attributed to net liabilities and $6,248 was attributed to 
intangible assets, (including know-how, customer base and 
workforce) which are to be amortized over a period of 8 to 12 years. 

Musi of NCC's employees were transferred to the Company. NCC 
has undertaken to meet the full extent of NCC's severance pay 
obligation for these employees up to the date of the acquisition 
amounting to $430, which was deposited in a severance pay fund. 

D, Pursuant to the abovementioned acquisition and according to an 
agreement signed between the Company and ESI in December 1998, 
the Company is entitled to use certain intellectual property 
purchased by ESI from the N.C.C. companies, in consideration for 
royalties at the rate of 4.8% of sales to third parties. The term of the 
agreement is for a period of eight years, but may be terminated 
earlier with prior notice. 
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ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LTD. 

NOTES TO TI1E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 
(In thousands ofU.S. dollars) 

Note 1 - GENERAL (Cont.) 

E. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, 
as of the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

F. A statement of cash flows has not been prepared as it would not 
provide significant additional information. 

Note 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in Israel and in the United States 
(as applicable to tire financial statements of the Company such principles 
are practically identical). 

The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the 
financial statements, arc as follows: 

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in U.S. 
dollars as the currency-of the primary economic environment in 
which the operations of tire Company are conducted is the U.S. 
dollar. A majority of the Company's finance is in U.S. dollar. 1 'hus, 
the functional currency of the Company is the U S. dollar. 

Transactions and balances originally denominated in U.S. dollars arc 
presented at their original amounts. Transactions and balances in 
other currencies are rerncasured into U.S. dollars in accordance with 
principles identical to those set forth in Statement No. 52 of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board of the United States (1ASB). 
Exchange gains and losses from the aforementioned remeasuremenl 
(which are immaterial for the reported period) arc reflected in the 
statement of income. 

- 6 -
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ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LTD. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Note 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.) 

B. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

All highly liquid investments (principally bank deposits) with an 
original maturity of three months or less are considered cash 
equivalents. 

C. INVENTORIES 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Inventories 
include work in process, which consist of cost of materials, direct 
labor and production overhead. 

I). FIXED ASSETS 

Fixed assets are stated at cost Depreciation is computed by the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease, 
including renewal option. 

E. OTHER ASSETS ' " 
t 

Know-how, customer base, workforce and other intangible assets are 
amortized by the strajght-line method over a period of 8-12 years. 

F. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Revenue derived from projects, related to software development, is 
recognized by the percentage of completion method, provided that a 
material portion of costs has been incurred or that material portions 
of milestones were achieved and where contract results can 
reasonably be estimated. Provision for losses, if any, on 
uncompleted contracts are made in tlie period when such losses arc 
apparent. 

G. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS 

Research and development costs are charged to operations as 
incurred. 
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ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LI I). 

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cout.) 
(In thousands of U .S. dollars) 

Note 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.) 

H. EXCHANGE RATE AND LINKED BALANCES 

Balances in currencies other than U S. dollar are stated at the 
representative rate of exchange at balance sheet date. The exchange 
rate of the U.S. dollar as of balance sheet date was $ 1 =NIS4.16. 

Balances linked to the Israeli Consumer Price Index are stated using 
the relevant published index. 

I FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Unless otherwise noted, the carrying amount of financial 
instruments approximates fair value. 

Note 3 - TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Open balances 
Unbilled receivables 

December 31 
1998 

2,227 
1,302 
3,529 

Note 4 - OTHER RECEIVABLES 
December 31 

1998 

Related parlies - current account 
Prepaid expenses and other 
Governments agencies 

586 
163 
28 

I f f  
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ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LTD. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

NoteS - FIXED ASSETS 

Furniture Leasehold Computers Molor Total 
and Improvements and vehicles 

Equipment ancillary 
equipment 

COST 

ACCUMULATED 
DEPRECIATION 

NET BOOK VALUE 
As of December 31,1998 

Annual rates of 
depreciation 

146 1,554 

16 

148 90 1,938 

22 

145 

6%-7% 

1,538 

12% 

144 89 1,916 

15%-33% 15% 

Note 6 - SHORT-TERM DEBT 

Loans from batiks 
Current maturities of long-term loans 

December 31 
1998 

1,831 
228 

2,059 

The loans are denominated in New Israeli shekels and bear interest of 15% 
per annum. 

Note 7 - TRADE PAYABLES 
December 31 

1998 

Open balances 
Checks payable 

496 
83 

579 



Fax sent by : 16/03/00 09:37 Pg: 11/15 

Note 9 

ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C, LTD. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Note 8 ' OTHER PAYABLES 

r> . -II ... J I /*\ rayiwil tt"u icicutu cApcru» ^ j 
Accrued expenses 
NCC -
Advances from customers 
Others 

(*) Includes accrued vacation pay 

MINI. - I l,K"M MJANN 

Interest 
rale 

Long-term loan from Elton . Libor + 1.5% 
Long-term loans frOrti banks - Libor + 1.4% 
Less - current maturities 

December .11 
1998 

1 c-\t 1 
1,511 

568 
360 

87 
4,048 

R34 

December 31 
1998 

4,200 
1,530 

228 

The maturities of-the iong-tferm loans lor years subsequent to balance 
sheet date are as follows: 

First year (current maturities) 

Second year 
Third year 
Fourth year 
Fif!h vcar 
Sixth Vfiar and oftpr 

228 

228 
1.628 
1.628 
1,628 

ton 

5,730 
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ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LTD. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 
(In thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Note 10 - ACCRUED SEVERANCE PAY, NET 

In respect of the Company's severance pay obligation to its employees, 
deposits are made with a recognized pension fund, insurance policies and 
a severance pay fund. The amounts accumulated with the insurance 
companies and in the pension fund are not reflected in the balance sheet as 
they are not under the control or management of the Company. The 
deposits presented in the balance sheet include profits accumulated till 
balance sheet date. The amounts deposited may be withdrawn only after 
fulfillment of the obligation under the Severance Pay Low. 

The accrual for severance pay presented in the balance sheet represents the 
liability not covered by the insurance policies, the pension fund and by the 
severance pay fund. 

December 31 
1998 

Accrued severance pay 
Less - amount deposited with severance pay fund 

1,343 
451 
892 

m: Note 11 - CONTINGENCY AND COMMITMENTS 

A. The Company's main facilities in Pctach-Tikava are rented under 
operating leases for periods of up to eight years ending in 2006. 
Minimum future rental payments in the years following balance 
sheet date arc as follows: 

First year 
Second year 
Third year 
Forth year 
Fifth year 
Sixth year and there after 

72 
72 
74 
76 
76 

183 
553 

13. Royalty commitment - see Note ID. 

- 1 1  -
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ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LTD. 

NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 
(In iltousands of U.S. dollars) 

Note 11 - CONTINGENCY AND COMMITMENTS (Cont.) 

C. Unaudited information for U.S. GAAS purposes - the Year 2000 
Issue arises because many computerized systems use two digits 
rather than four to identify a year. Date-sensitive systems may 
recognize the year 2000 as 1900 or some other date, resulting in 
errors when information using year 2000 dates is processed In 
addition, similar problems may arise in some systems which use 
certain dates in 1999 to represent something other than a date. The 
effects of the Year 2000 Issue may be experienced before, on, or 
after January 1, 2000, and, if not addressed, the impact on operations 
and financial reporting may range from minor errors to significant 
systems failure which could affect an entity's ability to conduct 
normal business operations. 

The Company is presently implementing adjustments to its 
computerized systems for the Year 2000 Issue. Management 
estimates that the cost to be incurred in llial correction arc expected 
to be $228. 

Note 12 - SHARE CAPITA!, 

I: 

h 
H 

;! 
c 

A. Share capital is composed of ordinary shares of NIS 1 par value. 

December 31 
„ ""! __ 1998 

(Number of shares) 

B. 

Authorized and paid-up 
Issued and paid-up 

35,700 
100 

Some of the Company's employees were granted stock options 
under the stock option plan of ESI. The exercise price of the options 
is equal to the fair value of the shares at die date of grant and 
therefore no compensation costs were recorded. 

•  1 2 -
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ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LI D 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 
(In thousands of U.S dollars) 

Note 13 - COST OF REVENUES 
For the period from 

commencement of operations 
to December 31 

1998 

Payroll and related expenses 661 
Manufacturing expenses 199 
Depreciation and amortization 70 

Royalties to F.SI 82 
Motor vehicle, maintenance and other 

expenses 74 
1,086 

Note 14 - SELLING, MARKETING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

For the period from 
commencement of operations 

to December 31 
1998 

Payroll and related expenses 107 
Office rent and maintenance • 19 
Motor vehicle maintenance 17 
Depreciation and amortization 11 
Professional fees 11 

165 

Note 15 - INCOME TAXES 

A. The Company is assessed for tax purposes under the provisions of the 
Income "fax Law (Inflationary Adjustments), 1985. This law entitles 
the Company to a tax deduction for the preservation of equity 
invested in non-fixed assets (as defined). The deduction is measured 
by the change in the Consumer Price Index in Israel. 

B. The Company has not received a final tax assessment since its 
incorporation. 

1 3 -
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ELRON SOFTWARE N.C.C. LTD. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 

S'Noec 16 - CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN THOUSANDS 
OF NOMINAL SHEKELS 

A. BALANCE SHEET 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Marketable securities 
Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Work in process 

LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES 

FIXED ASSETS 
Cost 
Less - accumulated depreciation 

OTHER ASSETS, NET 

December 31 
1998 

156 
20 

14,680 
3,176 
1,486 

19,518 

734 

8,122 
90 

8,032 

25,940 

54,224 

E--
1B&; 

m 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Short-term debt 
Trade payables 
Other payables 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Long-term loans 
Accrued severance pay, net 

Total liabilities 

SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIENCY 
Share capital 
Accumulated deficit 

8,567 
2,410 

16,844 
27,821 

22,888 
3,711 

26,599 

54,420 

(196) 
(196) 

54,224 
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InterTools 
A carrier-class solution consisting of a suite of integrated products enabling telecom 
service providers to handle infrastructure access markets - both wholesale Internet 
and E nterprise remote access - supply services and offer advanced management 
capabilities, all in one package. 

Elron Software Systems Integration's (ESSI) carrier-class premier 
product is InterTools, a sophisticated package of integrated telesoft 
components that allows service providers (CLECs, ILECs and 
MSOs) to introduce innovative Internet Access based services to 
multiple markets, including Internet wholesale (Progressive ISPs) and 
corporate-run virtual private network (VPN) services. 

InterTools allows a service provider to extend cutting-edge services 
in both dial-up and broadband format, including access to a choice of 
multiple ISPs on demand without the need to subscribe to one or 
more of them on a regular basis. 

InterTools also gives service providers the capability to provision 
services for narrow (e.g., ISDN. POTS) and broadband (e.g., Cable, 
DBS, Wireless, xDSL) markets, as well as a means of staying current 
with new market trends. 

The bottom line: InterTools is a suite of integrated telesoft products 
enabling telecom service providers to establish an access service 
bureau addressing both wholesale Internet access and Enterprise 
remote access markets, enabling carriers, MSOs and network service 
providers to introduce new services to customers. 

Elron Software Systems Integration • www.elronsoftware.com • 781-993-6000 



W hy Choose InterTools? 
InterTooIs was designed so carriers and service providers can deploy 
flexible Internet access infrastructure and introduce services. Carriers 
will offering the innovative services to progressive ISPs, and to 
Corporates with VPNs relieving them of the need to attend to most 
traditional infrastructure concerns, enabling them instead to 
concentrate on core competencies enlarging their market share. Just 
some of the many advantages of InterTools include: 
• Network infrastructure transparency - InterTools provides 

carriers with the ability to leverage existing network 
infrastructures and expand them using standard "off the shelf' 
components. 

• Narrow and broad band access — InterTools supports both 
narrow (e.g., ISDN, PSTN) and broad band (e.g., cable, xDSL) 
Internet access solutions. 

• Scalability and high availability - InterTools allows carriers 
the ability to scale with the growth of their customer base, and 
provides a redundant solution with high availability. Scalability is 
achieved for servers, processors, network infrastructure and 
access termination equipment. 

• Innovative Services - InterTools enables multiple innovative 
services to be introduced by the Carrier such as bundling e-
commerce to Carrier provided Internet Access. 

• Optimal Service management strength - InterTools delivers 
carriers the capability to manage an overall system, and customers 
their respective subsystem from a single terminal, using a 
standard browser, while also giving them the ability to monitor 
service level agreements, analyze trends, forecast and plan 
capacity, in addition to system reconfiguration. 

• Superior billing and client service - InterTools offers 
standard interfaces to a carrier's management information system 
for billing and customer care, to provide a smooth integration of 
the raw billing data while leveraging a carrier's existing systems. 
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Who Needs InterTools? 
Telecom service providers in any field will benefit from using 
InterTools, including 
• Cable operators and MSOs; 
• Voice and data CLECs and ILECs; 
• Telephone companies introducing IP services over POTS, ISDN 

and xDSL access lines; and 
• Vendors and systems integrators developing Internet access 

solutions and services for carriers and Enterprise remote access 
customers. 

W hat Comes w ith InterTools? 
The InterTools suite of sophisticated telesoft components consists 
of six products bundled together to provide advanced management 
capabilities in single or group fashion. These are: 
• InterChoice, which enables a carrier to provide its customers 

Internet access to one or more ISPs at any time, without the need 
to subscribe to a specific one. Billing is through the customer's 
carrier-bundled bill. 

• InterMeter, which measures and displays the quality of service 
level of the ISP's connection to the Internet from the client's 
perspective. (This feature can be added as a component of 
InterChoice as well.) 

• InterPay, which provides a carrier with the ability to handle 
micro transactions, with payment integrated into its bundled bill. 

• InterRamp, which gives a carrier the ability to provide wholesale 
accounting and point of purchase services, leasing infrastructure 
and bandwidth to ISPs over any mode of access, including cable, 
cellular, DBS, ISDN, POTS and xDSL. 
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• InterRoute, which allows a carrier to offer low-cost flat fees by 
utilizing its Internet access infrastructure during off-peak hours. 

• InterTrend, a service management toolkit for both carriers and 
ISPs and that includes tools for performance measurement; 
capacity/resource planning; service level agreement verification; 
and operations and service management. 

InterTools 
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White Paper 

InterTools: A White Paper 

This white paper explores the background of the Internet Access Market and 
provides a summary of the InterTools Product, market and product 
differentiation. 
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Internet Access Market Background 
Internet traffic is doubling every six months, with telecommuter, branch office and 
consumer demand for Internet access putting the heat on Internet service providers (ISPs). 
The demands for higher-speed access, bandwidth-consuming applications and constantly 
availability are driving ISPs to address complex scalability and management issues and 
leading them to re-engineer their infrastructures, technology upgrade investments and 
development of complex applications. 

Those ISPs that design, build, maintain and upgrade their own networks must also 
continuously upgrade their network access equipment and computing infrastructure as well 
as modify and enhance their management applications. This is forcing many ISPs to 
outsource their access infrastructure and network management to third party wholesalers 
(CLECs, ILECs, MSOs and Network Service Providers), permitting the ISPs to focus on 
added-value applications (e.g., e-mail, on-line content). The wholesale agreements allow ISPs 
to reduce network access costs by leveraging an economy of scale that wholesale carriers 
offer through sharing infrastructure. 

The carriers (CLECs, ILECs, MSOs and Network Service Providers) are better suited for 
delivering reliable and scalable network services, as they are experienced in network 
infrastructure development and provisioning management issues. They also are better suited 
to provide connectivity to public networks, dial-m remote access servers when wholesaling, 
and connectivity to ISPs. In some cases, those ISPs desinng direct relationships with their 
customers assume the responsibility for authentication, billing, and customer care services. 
Models are emerging where carriers take on certain parts of this responsibility, enabling ISPs 
to concentrate on more service applications. Wholesaler carriers also are extending services 
to offer Web hosting, Internet fax and voice over IP while ISPs are focusing more on 
content. 

End users are not necessarily aware of their carriers or network service providers 
involvement when accessing the ISPs. Wholesale carriers build networks based on carrier 
class remote access equipment, applications for network alarm and performance 
management, provisioning applications (in some cases), policy management applications and 
customer care and billing applications. Many issues are addressed and resolved by the 
carrier's network. These include supervision of port allocation; overflows and extreme 
conditions; authentication; authorization and accounting; IP address allocation and 
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tunneling; performance monitoring; and generation of trend reports. The wholesale carrier is 
responsible for providing the ISP with a customer network management-oriented view of 
the segmented part of the access infrastructure relating to the ISP's customer access. 

This trend in Internet access is similar to that of the telecommuting, relevant to corporations 
supporting remote access of telecommuters and customers. In 1997, there were about 7.5 
million telecommuters in the United States alone. This has created an extensive outsourced 
virtual private network (VPN) capability from third-party carriers. With a remote access 
VPN, a user dials into a service provider point of presence and establishes a "tunnel" back to 
headquarters over the provider's network, authenticating itself to gain access to the 
corporate network. All things considered, an outsourcing strategy enables ISPs to 
concentrate more on marketing and service rather than technology. 

According to Cahners InStat Group Consultants, by the end of 1999, nearly half of medium-
and large-sized enterprises will outsource some or all of their remote access. The Gartner 
Group concurs, noting that enterprises are increasingly turning to service providers to 
configure, own and manage remote communications infrastructures. 

Many companies are turning to VPNs as lower-cost alternatives to traditional dial-up access. 
VPN technologies such as tunneling, encryption and authentication provide secure links and 
give companies a high level of comfort about having valuable data pass over a provider's 
shared network. With a VPN, users replace their long-distance phone calls with a local call to 
the service provider's network, generating cost savings that can be substantial even if a 
company uses a consumption-based premium ISP access service that bills callers by hourly 
connect time. 

InterTools Product Summary 
Elron Software Systems Integration's carrier-class pioneer offering, InterTools, is a suite of 
integrated Telesoft products enabling telecom service providers to establish an access service 
bureau addressing both wholesale Internet and Enterprise remote access markets. 
InterTools is sold to service providers and enables them to introduce innovative services to 
multiple markets. These include offering Internet wholesale and corporate VPN services, as 
well as customized ones that providers can offer in both dial-up and broadband (e.g., via 
cable access) modes, which include access to a choice of multiple ISPs on demand, without 
the need to subscribe to them on a regular basis. InterTools provides service providers the 
ability to provision services for narrow- (e.g., ISDN, POTS) and broadband (e.g., cable, 
DBS, wireless, xDSL) markets with a means to follow and capitalize on new market trends. 
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The main characteristics and advantages of the InterTools suite of Telesoft products are 
described in the table below. 

PRODUCT HIGHLIGHTS MAIN ADVANTAGES 
InterRamp Gives carriers the ability to 

provide wholesale POP and 
accounting services, leasing 
infrastructure and bandwidth to 
ISPs, and corporate VPNs using 
multi-vendor access 
infrastructure. 

Improves ISP service while 
decreasing total costs of ownership 
and operations. 
Provides carriers new sources of 
revenue and helps to retain 
customer base in a competitive 
market. 

InterChoice Enables carriers to provide 
Internet access to one or more 
ISPs at any time, without having 
to subscribe to a specific 
provider. Customers can switch 
ISPs as many times as they wish 
during a call. Billing is included in 
the carrier's bundled bill. 

Imparts flexibility of ISP choice to 
customers. 
Improves carrier revenue and helps 
retain customer base. 
Provides ISP with additional source 
of revenue. 

InterPay Provides carriers with the ability 
to handle micro-transactions, 
while payments are integrated in 
their bundled bill. 

Creates new business opportunities 
for the carrier and e-commerce 
service providers. 
No credit cards needed. 

InterRoute Lets carriers offer low-cost flat 
fees by utilizing Internet access 
infrastructure during off-peak 
hours. 

The carrier and ISP can maximize 
usage of existing resources 
Offers a comparatively low-cost 
service that appeals to sectors that 
otherwise would not use the 
Internet. 
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InterTrend A service management toolkit for 
both the carrier and ISP, 
including integrated or stand­
alone flexible solutions for 
performance management; 
capacity and resource planning; 
service level agreement (SLA) 
verification; and systems and 
operations management. 

Carrier knows in advance if required 
to add resources. 
Carrier knows in advance where to 
add needed resources. 
ISP knows in advance if it will 
require more ports and/or 
bandwidth. 
Differentiated by useful reports on 
service levels achieved for various 
users of shared infrastructure. 

InterMeter Measures and displays the quality 
of service of the ISP's connection 
to the Internet from the 
customer's perspective. Enables 
the user to connect to the fastest 
and/or most cost effective ISP 
(as an add-on to InterChoice) by 
simply pushing a button. 

Gives customer the ability to view 
performance of various ISPs and 
choose one based on 
price/performance considerations 
alone. 
Differentiated by capability of 
enabling access provider with means 
to offer different service level 
agreements based on continuous 
monitoring of service quality. 
Carrier can monitor the quality of 
service it provides to customers. 

Case Study: The Israeli Internet Access Market 
Elron Software Systems Integration's background in Internet access infrastructure began 
nearly 15 years ago, when Elron Software Systems Integration supplied an access point 
system to the Israeli telephone company Bezeq, which provided brokered on-line services 
(mainly content) to the Israeli public, while billing the customer through a conventional 
telephone bill. 

In 1996, when Internet access became a major market, Elron Software Systems Integration 
supplied Bezeq with an Internet access service provisioning system based on Cisco 
equipment with microcom modems and a special interface to telephone switches. The 
system uses TACACS authentication and provides Internet on-demand services (Elron 
Software Systems Integration's InterChoice), and has been operational since early 1996. The 
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use of this system created a revolution in Internet access in the Israeli market, enabling 
Bezeq to provide Internet access infrastructure while enabling ISPs — all the major Israeli 
IPSs signed on — to concentrate on marketing, content and value-added services rather than 
on infrastructure technology alone. 

The Internet access infrastructure has been upgraded with thousands of ports, using new 
NAS equipment consisting of equipment from different vendors (e.g., Ascend; Bay 
Networks; Cisco; Livingston; and 3Com), all based on RADIUS. The system currently 
supports both old and new-generation equipment and provides ISDN and 56Kbps modem 
connections. It is based on Compaq Alpha with Open VMS and Windows NT. Today, the 
system works with more than 20 ISPs and supports Elron Software Systems Integration's 
InterChoice, InterMeter, and InterTrend services. 

In December 1998, InterRamp support for the wholesale ISP Internet access market was 
introduced by Bezeq, based on InterTools. It gives the Israeli telephone company the ability 
to provide point of presence wholesale services for different ISPs. 

In a parallel initiative, Elron Software Systems Integration is currently developing the same 
Internet access concepts in the traditional dial-up market for cable operators and also solving 
multiple-technology issues relating to cable access and tunneling to multiple ISPs. In early 
1999, a leading Israeli cable operator signed up and announced it will soon (within the next 
few months) provide Internet access capabilities using InterTools 

InterTools Target Market 
The trend today is to introduce Internet access services in telecom media packages as a 
complement to existing services while providing customers (primarily retail end users or 
small office/home office users) the ability to have multiple services based on their existing 
connectivity infrastructure. The service provider can more easily retain his existing customer 
base, especially in a deregulated market. Another important market trend direction is towards 
Internet protocol (IP) convergence, in which a carrier provides telecom services such as 
voice, video, fax, etc., as well as IP, as opposed to the existing situation where these services 
are not bundled. 

In simplified terms, the crux of the mission is the ability to offer consumers Internet access 
services in the same simple manner as switching between television channels, turning on a 
light switch, or dialing a friend's telephone number. 
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The primary market focus for InterTools products and concepts are : 

Dial-up Internet access - Useful for environments where a carrier is providing Internet 
access (based on ISDN or POTS infrastructures), and especially for CAPs, CLECs, ILECs 
and RBOCs. In this setting, the customer is given the ability to access any Internet service in 
the same way he or she would make a telephone call or choose between different long­
distance providers. In addition, InterTools provide the ability to use an existing ISP 
subscription in the same way a customer can use a pre paid telephone card. 

DSL Internet access - This high-speed Internet access taps the segment of the market 
where the telecom is effecting termination of the DSL connection and providing access to 
ISPs based on the Carriers's infrastructure. In this situation the telecom owns the access 
infrastructure (the DSL is terminated in the CO, as opposed to dial-up access where it can be 
terminated on the ISP's premises). InterTools provides both Internet on-demand access 
(InterChoice) and the ability to choose a predetermined ISP (InterRamp). The target markets 
are the G.lite market (i.e., 1.5MB without splitters and rewiring) and other offshoots of 
xDSL (e.g., ADSL; HDSL; RADSL; VDSL, etc.). In this environment, InterTools provides 
the same value-added service in an "always on" environment while providing the customer 
with the ability to use this access in the same way as for a dial-up environment. 

Cable - Targeted towards the high-speed Internet access segment of the market, where the 
cable operator/MSO is terminating the cable connection and providing access to ISP's based 
on his infrastructure. Here the MSO owns the access infrastructure (CATV is terminated in 
the CMTS as opposed to dial-up access where it can be terminated on the ISP's premises). 
InterTools provides both the Internet on-demand access (InterChoice) and the ability to 
choose a predetermined ISP (InterRamp). The target markets for both are the cable modem 
and the set top box niches. In this environment, InterTools provides the same value-added 
service in an "always on" environment while providing the customer with the ability to use 
this access in the same way as for a dial up environment. 

Additionally, for the cable sector (as for other broadband Internet access, such as xDSL), an 
Internet-circulated draft (draft-ietf-ipcdn-tor-OO.txt) written by M. Stjohns from @Home 
Network, states the following: 
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"5. Advanced Requirements 
5.1. Multi-ISP (Internet Service Provider) 
Various laws and regulations on the books in the United States today require equal access 
from a subscriber telephone to all long-distance networks. At the current time, the same is 
generally not true (in the US) for other services such as IP or for services provided over the 
cable infrastructure. But, globally, the trend appears to be towards open access through 
whatever communication media is available." 

Given this trend, one requirement on future systems will almost certainly be to provide 
subscriber access through to multiple ISPs. The simplest implementation of this would 
permit multiple ISPs on the cable plant, but only permit the subscriber to be associated with 
one of them at a time. The second, more complex and unfortunately more probable to be 
required implementation is to permit the subscriber to be associated with multiple ISPs with 
the specific ISP association changing dynamically. E.g. Dad signs on and is serviced by an 
ISP paid for by his company. Mom and kids sign on and they are serviced by a residential, 
family oriented ISP. The last and most complex implementation would have a single cable 
modem servicing multiple ISPs simultaneously. 

A Carrier should provide the mechanism to at least permit a subscriber to specify and use 
any of a number of IP dial tone providers (ISPs) on a fairly static basis. It should allow the 
subscriber to change ISPs as a service change - e.g., requiring cable operator intervention 
and some non-immediate timeframe such as 24 hours. It may allow the subscriber to use 
multiple ISPs dynamically, in a non-simultaneous manner. It may allow the subscriber to use 
multiple ISPs simultaneously. 

If a CDS provides a multi-ISP capability, it must do so in a secure manner. Specifically, it 
must prevent subscribers from using ISPs to which they are not subscribed. It must prevent 
L2 traffic from one ISPs subscriber pool from "leaking" into another ISP's virtual network. 
It must permit the various ISPs appropriate access to manage their subscribers. 
In the future, it is the author's belief that most of the above "shoulds" and "mays" will 
become "musts" as various legislative and regulatory actions take place. It may be in the best 
interest of a CDS developer to add the hooks to provide these services earlier rather than 
later." 

Wireless - This is a high-speed Internet access segment of the market where the wireless 
provider terminates the spread spectrum radio connection and provides access to ISPs based 
on its infrastructure. In this situation, the wireless provider can own the access infrastructure 
or it can be purchased and managed by any corporation. This market includes cellular 
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operators utilizing different technologies (AMPS; CDMA; GSM; TDMA, etc.) and any other 
specific wireless technology, such as LMDS, WLL, etc. InterTools provides both Internet 
on-demand access (InterChoice) and the ability to choose a predetermined ISP (InterRamp). 

DBS - This is a high-speed Internet access segment of the market where the DBS provider 
terminates the DBS connection and provides access to ISPs based on its infrastructure. Here 
the DBS provider owns the access infrastructure (DBS is terminated in the satellite 
termination equipment as opposed to dial-up access where it can be terminated on the ISP's 
premises). InterTools provides both Internet on-demand access (InterChoice) and the ability 
to choose a predetermined ISP (InterRamp). In this environment, InterTools provides the 
same value-added service in an "always on" environment while providing the customer with 
the ability to use this access in the same way as for a dial-up environment. 
According to a new report on this market, the following is excerpted from a December 1, 
1998 article published by IDG entitled "Satellites Emerge as Broadband Contenders". 

"Satellites will emerge as a global option for broadband Internet services, edging past digital subscriber lines 
and gaining on cable modems through 2007, according to a new report. Broadband satellite service will be 
more widely available starting in 2002. Demand, particularly from rural areas, is expected to push the 
fledgling market to 39.6 million subscriber homes by 2007, trailing cable modems, which Pioneer Consulting 
expects to be in 46.78 million homes by then. While Pioneer analyst Scott Clavenna doesn't expect satellite 
to unseat cable modems for top place in the broadband access arena, satellite is more akin to the Internet and 
likely to draw online users who don't have reliable high-speed access from telephone companies or cable 
providers." 

Utilities providers - In this market utility providers (usually electricity or gas companies) 
own the infrastructure and can provide Internet access in the same way metering 
information is transferred from the meter located in the CPE. In this sector, InterTools 
provides both Internet on-demand access (InterChoice) and the ability to choose a 
predetermined ISP (InterRamp). 

InterTools Product Differentiation 

InterTools stands in a league by itself, so the most significant differentiation is the 
uniqueness of its capabilities and the simplicity of its integration. However, in order to 
provide some level of evaluation the following sections offers some specific service 
advantages. 
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General Advantages 
Access media - InterTools supports different types of NASs from different vendors, which 
provide the carrier the ability to leverage its existing NAS infrastructure. InterTools is well-
suited for situations where carriers acquire ISPs or merge with other carriers. Additionally, it 
provides the carrier the ability to change or extend its NAS infrastructure without purchasing 
new service provision solutions. 

Narrow- and broadband access - InterTools supports both narrow (e.g., ISDN, PSTN) 
and broadband Internet access (e.g., cable, xDSL). This functionality provides the carrier the 
ability to provision services using a single solution independent of access media termination 
systems (e.g., CMTS, DSLAM, NAS) and reduces the overall total cost of ownership. 

Network infrastructure transparency - InterTools provides carriers the ability to leverage 
existing network infrastructure and extend it using standard commercial "off the shelP 
network elements. InterTools supports the leading network elements in the markets and has 
the ability to be customized to other network elements. 

Management strengths - InterTools gives carriers the ability to manage the overall system 
from a single point using a standard browser, while provide them with the additional ability 
to monitor service level agreements, analyze trends, forecast and plan capacity, and manage 
overall system configuration. In addition, it allows ISPs to monitor and verify service level 
agreements, and lets them manage their virtual part of the overall access system as if it 
belonged to them. The management system provides different types of reporting tools, 
including: 

• Call distribution reports 
• Resource utilization reports 
• Capacity planning reports 
• Statistical reports (e.g., busy hours, off-peak hours, call duration) 
• Income reports 
• Promotion impact reports 
• Availability reports 
• History comparison reports 
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Scalability and high availability - InterTools provides carriers with the ability to scale with 
the growth of their customer base and provide a redundant solution with high availability. 
Scalability is done in terms of servers, processors, network infrastructure and number of 
access termination equipment. 

Flexibility - InterTools provides carriers the ability to add functionality to their systems 
without interrupting service provisions. This includes support for enabling other types of 
access protocols beyond RADIUS (DSM-CC, diameter, etc.), the ability to add other 
InterTools services, adding new access termination equipment, and adding attributes and 
logic. 

Localization - InterTools provides a localization functionality that offers the capability to 
support multilingual, date format, currency and different time zones (e.g., in cases where the 
access service is nationwide with different time zones), managed by a central system. 

Billing and customer care - InterTools provides standard interfaces to carrier MIS 
systems for billing and customer care, to facilitate integration of raw billing data while 
leveraging the carrier's existing systems. 

Authorization - InterTools provides authorization services, which provide carriers the 
ability to block consumers based on their calling identification or hardware identification. 
These are suitable for dial-up, xDSL and cable access. 

InterRamp Advantages 
ISP customer care - InterTools provides ISPs with a way to outsource customer care to 
carrier systems so that full access services will be handled by carrier operators. 

Service level agreements - InterTools provides service level agreements features for 
carriers and ISPs, with the flexibility to define port types (e.g., ISDN, PSTN, xDSL), 
numbers of ports and the ability to define overflow rules for the ISP (different prices per 
port or usage-based pricing). 

Fraud detection - InterTools lets carriers and ISPs protect their customers from fraud 
detection by giving them the ability to define the calling/hardware identification from where 
they have Internet access, so that others will not have the ability to use customers' 
usernames/passwords. 
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Customers' detection - InterTools allows the detection of target ISPs based on 
telephone/hardware identification or domain name. 

Proxy services - InterTools provides RADIUS proxy services, normalizing the radius 
attributes for the specific access equipment types supported by the ISP, without the 
complexity of supporting different access equipment types on the ISP's side. 

InterChoice Advantages 
InterChoice is a unique service provided by InterTools giving carriers the ability to place 
value-added access services on top of existing infrastructure and maximize utilization of 
network resources. 

InterChoice provides the end user the ability to choose an ISP using a standard browser and 
without having any special client software, while the payment is integrated in the end user's 
bill, without being tied to a specific ISP or having to use credit cards. 

InterChoice is built in a way that can provide different classes of service, using different 
network pipes to the ISP, and bills the customer according to the specific quality of service 
arrangement selected. 
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Appendix A - InterChoice Example 

Internet Service Providers Selector 

< Criteria Based 
SKIIKKIIII 

Select art ISP besl suite your requirements, your phone bill will be charged. You have 
full acee«etree ot ISf siiPecriptirvn ! 
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As seen from the screenshot taken of InterChoice, as deployed by Bezeq for the dial-up 
market, this is a typical HTML page, as displayed to an InterChoice user. As part of this 
page, one can readily see the relevant list of ISPs (which may be random for each user or in a 
predefined order, according to the carrier's policy), the price per hour for each ISP including 
connection fee, and the price per hour. The actual performance is the result of the metering 
done by InterMeter and is integrated as a part of the page. 

There are different ways to connect to the ISP: 
• By selecting the connect button of each ISP, or 

• By selecting the cheapest and fastest price/performance buttons on the top of the 
page. 

• When the user wants to disconnect from the service he may do so in one of the 
following ways: 

• By hanging up his modem connection (for dial-up services). 

• By using the disconnect button, which provide users the ability to access other free 
services. 

• By using connect button, which entails disconnecting from one ISP and connecting 
to another. 
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Israel's Largest Cable Operator 
Established in 1989, Golden Channels is Israel's largest 
cable television operator. It is jointly owned by the 
international Aurec Group and local media companies. 
The Aurec Group is a leading provider of 
telecommunication, media and information services. It is 
owned by the Morris Kahn Group and the U.S. 
Telecommunications Inc. (formerly Southwestern Bell). 

Golden Channels' cable television broadcasting franchise 
areas include the capital city of Jerusalem, major cities in 
the densely populated Tel-Aviv metropolitan area and 
towns and settlements in the north and south of Israel. 
Golden Channels' cable TV network passes more than 
650,000 homes. Penetration rate has reached 66 percent, 
with 430,000 households currently subscribing to Golden 
Channels. It broadcasts 48 channels and more than 30 
radio channels. 
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services, thus becoming a multiple services operator 
(MSO). 

Golden Channels will provide its subscribers with an array 
of innovative interactive services. Initially the upgraded 
network will allow the delivery of more channels, high­
speed Internet access, Near-Video On Demand (NVOD) 
and Electronic Program Guides (EPGs). Other future 
services will include IP telephony, E-commerce, Virtual 
Private Networks (VPNs) and Video Conferencing. 

Golden Channels must also comply with national 
regulations, requiring them to open their cable network to 
third-party ISP competition. This will allow consumers to 
obtain affordable, high-speed access to the Internet from the 
Internet service provider (ISP) of their choice. 

Golden Channels is dedicated to provide an open access 
high-speed cable Internet system. This despite declarations 
by technological giants, such as AT&T, that open access 
over broadband is problematic. 

"AT&Tand @Home executives responded today saying 
that the trial project had ignored technical issues that 
would be problematic in a large-scale rollout of an 
open-access cable system." 

Time-to-market is critical for Golden Channels, as a 
massive rollout of competitive digital subscriber lines 
(DSL) for high-speed Internet access was expected. 

Golden Channels' control room 

Golden Channels' Challenge 
Israel is expected to soon open its communication market 
for free competition. New operators are eager to enter tire 
deregulated market. Golden Channels wants to maintain 
and increase its market share by introducing new 
services, thus generating multiple revenue streams from 
its cable network. 

Golden Channels has started a transition lfom their 
traditional core business of analog entertainment video 
programming to a position as a full digital service 
provider of video, voice and data telecommunications 

Golden Channels Chose Elron Software 
Golden Channels chose Elron Software's InterTools to 
provide the Internet access solution. Elron Software is also 
the turnkey system integrator with responsibility for the 
integration of Golden Channels' MIS-systems (customer 
care and billing), network management system (NMS) and 
hardware from different vendors. 

"After a rigorous competition Elron Software InterTools 
was the clear winner providing the following: 

• A qualified system integrator with turnkey 
responsibility 

• A field-proven open access solution enabling us a 
record-fast deployment and time-to-market" 

states Amos Kohn, VP of engineering and technology at 
Golden Channels. 

© Copyright 1999 by Elron Software Inc. All rights reserved. 
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InterTools a 24x7 Solution 
Elron Software's patent pending InterTools is a unique 
sophisticated package of integrated telesoft components. 
InterTools supports multiple services operators (MSOs) 
in introducing IP-based services to multiple markets, 
such as ISP wholesale (open access), subscription-free 
Internet connection for end-users, virtual private 
networks (VPNs) and added-value services. The figure 
shows InterTools flexible system architecture that also 
supports Telco narrow and broadband access 
technologies for roaming. 

InterTools flexible system architecture also supports Telco roaming 

InterTools is a carrier-class solution that will guarantee 
the cable operator's customers Internet access 24 hours a 
day, seven days a week. InterTools has been built with 
scalability and redundancy (hot standby) in mind. To 
boost performance it also includes load balancing. 

InterTools Components 
InterTools consists of five products, which are used to 
build scalable and customized solutions for the cable 
operator. 
• InterAccess, the basic platform, provides RADIUS 

Authentication, Authorization and Accounting 
services. 

• InterChoice, enables a carrier to provide its 
customers with Internet access to one or more ISPs. 

• InterRamp, gives a carrier the ability to provide ISP 
wholesale, with customer care, accounting and 
billing. 

• InterTrcnd, provides statistical data for both carrier and 
ISPs. 

• InterPay, provides a carrier with the ability to handle all 
types of financial transactions. 

Golden Channels Open Access Solution 
Golden Channels' network topology consists of a SDH 
backbone that connects the single Master Headend with its 
franchise regions' Sub Headends. All subscribers are 
connected using advanced distribution networks of the HFC 
type. It is a HFC protected ring infrastructure, with between 
120 to 500 homes passed per fiber optic node. All Cable 
Modem Termination Systems (CMTSs), Cable Modems 
(CMs) should be DOCSIS and Set-top Boxes (STBs) 
DVB/RC compliant. 

Golden Channels' network includes web cashing to avoid 
Internet bottlenecks and speed up web page access for its 
subscribers. 

All ISPs are connected to an Internet Gateway at the Master 
Headend. InterTools will, upon user selection, provision 
and configure the network dynamically, and direct outgoing 
an incoming traffic to the selected ISP. The ubiquitous 
RADIUS protocol is used for authentication, authorization 
and accounting (AAA). 

Elron Software has integrated InterTools with Golden 
Channels' operations support system (OSS) for customer 
care, allowing self-registration and automated provisioning 
of the services. 

ISP Selection 
Golden Channels' customers can connect to the Internet via 
the ISP he has a subscription to. Customers that have 
subscriptions to several ISPs can choose the ISP from a 
user-friendly web portal. They can even get Internet access 
to other ISPs at any time without prior subscription. Billing 
will be through the customer's regular cable bill. 

Golden Channels' web portal provides personalization 
capabilities, which enables the end user to customize and 
simplify the web portal interface. 

The web portal is invoked using a standard web browser 
and the customer does not need to install any additional 
software. 

© Copyright 1999 by Elron Software Inc. All rights reserved. 
Page 2 of3 



\Ol 
fSSI8^S!9l^fi^SltM3MSSSSS^ 

^ Sprit 
. r if isdrt* 

mm* 
Selection of ISP 

Performance Management with 
Resource Planning 
InterTools includes statistical tools for performance 
management, capacity and resource planning, service 
level agreement verification (SLA), and operations and 
service management. 

The statistical data package is extremely powerful and 
flexible. The exact layout of the available reports and 
data is customized for each carrier and ISP. All the 
reports are prepared in advance, by dedicated scripts, to 
ensure fast response time. 

Verification of service level agreement 

Customer Care with Self-Registration 
Elron Software has integrated InterTools with Golden 
Channels' customer care. A subscriber can from his cable 
modem or set-top box, via the web, register for Internet 
access services. An automated provisioning process follows 
the registration, which will enable the subscriber to be on­
line immediately. This self-provisioning enables a rapid 
deployment of cable modems and set-top boxes, supporting 
the addition of thousands of new subscribers every week. 
The customer is able to purchase and install his cable 
modem/set-top box by himself, without any need for a visit 
from a technician. 

Flexible Billing Models 
Golden Channels wants to have freedom of billing methods. 
Their marketing and sales department will be able to use in 
a convenient way, flat rate, time based and usage based 
billing. 

InterTools enables all billing methods and supports different 
business models both for subscribers and ISPs. It creates 
uniform call data records (CDRs) for the accounting. 

Elron Software performed a smooth integration with Golden 
Channels' billing and customer care systems. 

Your Cablesoft Partner 
Elron Software has been providing advanced solutions for 
major carriers since 1983. We are part of the Elron group, a 
$1.2 billion multi-national company. Our over 400 
engineers are well experienced in providing a customized 
solution that fits you completely. 

Become Part of the Internet Market 
InterTools is a field-proven 24x7 hours solution, with an 
installed base both at Telcos and Cables. Today InterTools 
enables you to become a MSO and be a part of the 
exploding Internet market. InterTools offers you an 
attractive and comprehensive Internet access service 
package. 

International 
Elron Software N.C.C. LTD. 
20 Shenkar St., Petach Tikva 49513, Israel 
Tel: +972-3-9254666, Fax: +972-3-9213301 
E-mail: info@ncc.co.il Web: http://www.ncc.co.il 

USA 
Elron Software Inc. 
7 New England Executive Park, Burlington, MA 01803 
Tel: 781-993-6000, Toll-free: 800-767-6683, Fax: 781-993-6001 
E-mail: info@elronsw.com Web: http://www.elronsoflware.com 

© Copyright 1999 by Elron Software Inc. All rights reserved. 
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Creative Solutions 

Facsimile Transmittal 

20 Shenkar St. Kiryat Aryeh, 
Petach Tikva, 49513 Israel 
Tel: +972-3-925-4666 
Fax +972-3-925-4747 
Web Site: www.ncc.co.il 

To: Mr. Burton Grad Fax: 203-222-8728 

From: Moshe Attias Data: 03.15.00 

Re: Pages: 14 

• Urgent • For Review • Please Comment • Please Reply 

Dear Mr. Grad. 

Following our phone conversation, enclosed please find a copy of the contract between HP & 

Elron Software. 

The rest of U»e papers will be sending to you later on. 
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How) c n-Packard (HP) UK l.imitcd'3 Tele com Systems Division is engaged 
in the business of developing, ma/keling ana selling SS7 l.lnK 
Moixi loi a ny Systems (LMS) to Telecomroun i Cot ions companies worldwide; 

AND 

Elron soiiwair ncc <ki.kon) is in the business of developing, marketing 
ond selling Soilw.uk products to lis customers worldwide; 

NOW THKIIEFORF. 

iir and F.'lron tir-.xi rc to enter inLo an Ayr cement Lo provide tor the 
par Lies i.u wyi 1 together LO derive mutual business benefits from 
developing, marketing <»nd selling Link Monitoring System solutions tor FioSjft ess 
t nf cl .1 lgcric-e which may include certain ol El xun's Syf twyrc Produces; 
and it I K  intended that such solution* shall be offered for sale 
through HP's Sales Channel ?j both 10 HP'S existing tolccoms customers 
end to any other customer5 desiring to puiclia.se such solutions? 

IN CON.'U-.QOKNCF Of" THE ABOVE THE VOhLUWlNU AGREEMENT JS MADE; 

Thi« Contract Agreement ("Agieciiinui.") is? made between HEwi.Ki t-1'ACKAKL> LIMITED (hereina:toj referred 
to as lib), havinq a registered pla<:« or business in England and Klron Software NCC Export, (19^8) 
Limited (hereinafter tr.f«ncd lo as Elron), having a registered place 01 business in Israel, as of 
<inscrt effective d-»ie> Cfcffeciive Date"). 

The purpose of thi.n Agreement is LO set. Tenth the mutually agreeable terms and conditions under which 
Elron shall supply Product Deliverables and/or provide $CTYiCCS. 

1. DEFINITIONS 

a) "Change order" means an agreed upon change or modification to this Agreement and its Exhibits as 
detail art in Section 7 below <•»»«.! in Exhibit 2. 

b) "End Customer" iwsAm» a c.uxturner for which HP will c$'Ty out a Project, which may include supply of 
a Cyntnm and/or associated services, 

c) "End Customer Acceptance" means End Customer's acceptance of the System pursuant 10 the Master 
Agreement between HP and End Customer. 

d) "Customer Site" means any location at wnlch Elron shall deliver software and/or services. 

c) "inetaliaLion fiit.a" means any loc.at.io" wj.thin the Customer Site where Llron's deliverables shall 
be installed ami put into operational service. 

f) "Maatar Agreement" means any p<optixrO oi signed agreement between HP and an End Customer. 

g) Troject" mi Pnd Customer's requirement for a system together with any associated services. 

h) "Elron Deliverable" means any item of software Lo be provided by Elron. 

i) "Elron Schedule" -moans chc schedule for delivery, installation and End Customer Acceptance as 
defined in Exhibit 8. 

j) "Elron Serviced" means the design, development, consultancy, implementation, education, r r«n ft.i fty, 
or other service.-* (excluding Elron Support) to be provided by Elron under this Agreement as 
detailed in Exhibit 11. 

k) "tlron Specification" moans the specif1 cation(s) for the Elron Daliverable(s) set forth 1r. 
Exhibit 7. 

1) "Elron Software" inean? any software with its associated documentation as defined in Exhibit 7. 

TO) "Elron SuppuzL" means any support services to be provided by EJ ron as defined in Exhibit 1. 

») "Oyatea" means collecLivel y ail the hardware and sorr.werc 10 be installed at the Installation 
Site (s) . 

TM1U Pago 3/13 
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t»  Col )  Per formance  Manage;  moons  a  par t icu la r  El ron  sof tware  appl ica t ion  formal ly  known by  var  
imi t .n .w inc lud ing  1RMA,  CPA e tc .  

a )  El  i ron  ackuowl  edyn* tha t  ce r ta in  te rms  and  condi t ions  in  Ha 3  to t  Agiccmcnt (s )  n \ay  r equi re  to  bo  
incorpora ted  in to  (h i s  Agreement ;  in  which  case  El ron  and  HP agree  tha t  a l l  such  re levant  Mas te r  
Agreement  t e rms  and  condi  Lions  wi l l  be  b ind ing  upon h i  ron  once  11 ' ic ' . i j rpora ted  here in  by  means  of  a  
Change  Order .  In  the  event  that  Elron  and  I IP  cannot  agree  upon the  incorpora t ion  of  such  te rms ,  
then  IIP  has  j r ,  i t s  so le  d i sc re t ion  the  r igh t  nor .  t o  e 'HOt  jmo such  a  Mas te r  Agreement .  

ELRON OBLIGATIONS 

a)  r : l  ron  sha l l  Supply  the i r  de l iverab les  and/or  provide  Serv ices  and/or  Suppor t  in  accordance  wi th  
I 'm term.- ,  end  condi t ion*  conta ined  in  th i s  Agreement ,  inc lud ing  but  no t  l imi ied  to  the  
Epcc i f i  ca t ion  de ta i led  in  Exhib i t  7 ,  the  l i s t ing  or  Sof tware  in  Exnib i t  / ,  the  Serv ices  se t  (or th  
in  Exhib i t  11 ,  and  t in -  Suppor t  sec .  fo r th  in  Exhib i t  1 .  

b)  On the  da tes  def ined  J« .  Exhib i t  8  o r  any  subsequent ,  amendment  LhereLo,  E l ron  sha l l  de l iver  such  
Del iverab les .  se rv ices  aml /u i  Supper t  LO HP o r  HP 's  End Cus tomer  as  def ined  JLr> Exhib i t  6 .  

«: )  E l ron  gran ts  to  I IP  a  l i cense  to  use  any  and  a l l  Sof tware  de l iverab les  suppl ied  hereunder  in  
accordance  wi th  the  l i cense  te rms  def ined  in  Exhib i t  3 .  IIP*  sha l l  hove  the  r igh t  to  subl icense  
ouch  Sof tware  to  i t s  End Cus tomers  upon  payment  o f  the  appropr ia te  GP;M Resa le  fee  to  Klron  as  
def ined  in  Exhib i t  6 .  

d )  In  per forming  i t s  obl iga t ions  hereunder ,  E l ron  sha l l  coopera te  fu l ly  wr  Li t  HP in  meet ing  I  he  
requi rements  uf  any  Mas te r  Agreement .  The  par t ies  wi l l  negot ia te  in  good fa i th  to  reso lve  any  
d i spute  be tween  them rcgord ing  th i s  Agreement .  I f  such  negot ra t ions  do  nor .  r eso lve  the  d i spute  
Lo the  sa t i s fac t ion  of  bo th  par t ies  then  the  Pro jec t  Managers  win  esca la te  the  mat te r  to  the i r  
super ior ,  who wi l l  meet  and  a t tempt  to  reach  a  mutua l ly  agreeable  reso lu t ion  G1 the  d i spute .  11  
such  negot ia t ion  and  meet ings  do  no t  reso lve  the  d i spute  to  the  sa t i s fac t ion  of  bo th  par t ies  then  
each  par ty  wi l l  noi . i J .mte  as  i t s  represen ta t ive  one  sen ior  execut ive  of  the  rank  o i  Genera l  
Manager  o r  h igher  for  I IP  and  an  equiva len t  rank  for  El ron .  These  represen ta t ives  wi l l  meet  in  
person  and  a lone  (except  ro t  one  ass i s tan t  a l lowed Tor  each  par ty)  and  wi l l  a t tempt  in  good fa i th  
to  reso lve  the  d i spute .  This  meet ing  win  be  a  requi red  prerequis i te  be iorc  e i ther  par ty  may 
seek  jud ic ia l  o r  governmenta l  reso lu t ion  of  the  d i spute ,  except  to r  e i ther  par ly '*  r iqh t  to  SCOk 
in junc t ive  re l ic t .  The  pan ics  may agree  to  pursue  any  o ther  addi t iona l  mutua l ly  acceptab le  
d i spute  reso lu t ion  mcLl iud  bu t  such  pursu i t  wi l l  no t  modi fy  tne  above-s ta ted  prerequis i te .  

n  i . l  i  on  sha l l  appoin t  a  rcpreaeuta l  i  vc  to  superv ise ,  and  coord ina te .  F . l ron ' s  per formance  o i  i t s  
obl iga t ions  under  1 .1 ,1*  Agreement .  The  represen ta t ive  win  provide  profess iona l  and  prompt  l i a i son  
Wi th  HP and  have  the  necessary  exper t i se  and  au thor i ty  to  ac t  on  E l ton ' s  beha l r  in  per )  orming  th i s  
Agreement .  E l  ron  •  S  repreaenta t i  vc  wi l l  a t tend  progress  meet ings  wi th  I IP  and  wi l l  p rovide  to  HI '  
r egula r  progress  repor t s ,  o t  t imes  and  in  formats  reasonably  agreed  by  the  par t ies .  

i  Al l  E l ron  personnel  sha l l  be  adequate ly  t ra ined  and  qua l i f ied  to  per form the  tasks  they  a rc  
ass igned .  Al l  E l ron  personnel  sha l l  meet  the  l i cens ing ,  secur i ty ,  l abor  and  s i t e  requi rements  fo r  
the  loca le  where  the  El ron  Serv ices  and/or  El ron  Suppor t  a re  be ing  per lormed.  

g Time i s  of  the  essence  in  the  per formance  o r  th i s  Agreement .  F . I ron  agrees  to  meet  each  mi les tone  
In  the  Schedule  on  the  da te  se t  for th  in  Exhib i t  6 .  E l ron  sha l l  p rovide  prompt  wr i t t en  no t ice  to  
HE of  any  ac iua!  o r  an t ic ipa ted  de lays  in  meet ing  the  El ron  schedule ,  such  no t ice  lo  inc lude  a  
de ta i led  p lan  to  recover  the  t ime lus t ,  because  of  such  de lay .  

h .  in  the  event  tha t  El ron  fa i l s  to  fu l f i l l  an  ob l iga t ion  by  the  da te  spec i f ied  in  Exhib i t  0 ,  El fOi)  
sha l l  a t  the  reques t  of  HP and  in  addi t ion  to  Hi"e  o ther  r igh ts  and  remedies ,  a r range  a l )  Suf i )  
add i t iona l  resources  as  a rc  necessary  to  fu l f i l l  tha t  ob l iga t ion  as  ear ly  as  p rac t icab le  
thereaf te r ,  a t  no  addi t iona l  charge  to  HP o r  End Cus tomer ,  be lay  In  de l ivery  caused  by  El ron ,  
sha l l  be  cons idered  a  mater ia l  b roach  of  th i s  Agreement .  

11  From tame to  t ime HP may i cquos t  E l ron  to  deve lop  a  cus tom product  Or  modi f ica t ions  to  s tandard  
product  in  order  to  meet  the  requi rements  of  HP 'S  End Cus tomer  base .  E l ron  agrees  lo  provide  „uch  
se rv ices  to  Hr  <„> commerc ia l ly  reasonable  te rms  dur ing  the  te rm of  th i s  Agreement .  Such  
deve lopment  work  sha l l  bo  the  subjec t  Of  a  Change  Order  here to ,  which  sha l l ,  in te r  a l ia ,  def ine  
the  te rm*,  condi t ions  and  ownersh ip  of  the  products  of  such  e l  to i l s .  

HP OBLIGATIONS 

TM10 J'apt'4/IH 
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a) m' will  comply with the genr 'a)  obligations stared below, together with the payment obligations as 
described in Exhibit  6.  Elron is  enti t led to rely Upon HP's t imely and satisfactory performance 
ol  these and only these obligations.  

bj  i ir  will  proyidc Elron with access to,  and use or,  al l  information,  data,  documentation,  computer 
tame, facilities, working space and o I f K'C services reasonably required to permit Elzon to peri 01 ill 
Elton's  obligations hereunder,  including technical  Supperl '  through the agreement period.  

e) UP will  appoint a representative as Elron's  contact .  The IIP roprcsfntati  ve will  provide 
professional and prompt l iaison with Elron and have the necessary expertise and aur.horitv to bind 
HP. 

d) The hp representative will  at tend pioyress meetings scheduled between HP and Elron at  regular 
Intervals,  to train tain clear and open channels of communication,  to minimize problems and to 
facil i tate planning. 

e) IIP will  »>c the sole point of contact  with any End Customer and representatives ol  End Customer in 
connection with any Project .  Elton shall  nor.  have any direct ,  contact  with Customer on matters 
arising from or related to the business contemplated under this Agreement without the prior 
consent of 111'. 

1) IIP will  provide al l  the required F.ncI customer's  facil i ty access (security,  coordination,  etc.)  
enabling Elron staff  to perform their  tasks.  

g) Time is  of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.  IIP agrees to meet each milestone in 
the schedule on the date set  forth in Exhibit  B. HP shall  provide prompt writ ten notice to Elton 
of any actual  or anticipated delays in meeting the IIP Schedule,  such notice to include a detailed 
[ 'Jan to recover the t ime lost ,  because of such delay.  

6. PRICE AND PAYMENT 

a) The net  prices lor Elron's  Deliverables and Services are specil ied in Exhibit  6.  No payment 
shall  be due to Elron for addit ional or different,  deliverables or services rendered other than 
those described herein unless Elron obtains an approved Change Order pursuant to Section 1 below 
lor such deliverables or services and any associated fees.  

b) F.lron shell  issue invoices in accordance with the payment schedule specified in Exhibit  6.  l ip 
wril  pay el)  invoices within 4f.  days Iron,  the later ol  Acceptance (based on Exhibit  0 and Clause 
b hereof) or date of invoice.  

6. TITLE AND RISK 

a) Elron shall  bear the rick of loss and damage for each individual Deliverable unti l  arrival  ei ther 
at  the Customer s i te or at  HP, as the case may be.  Thereafter,  r isk of loss and damage for each 
individual Deliverable will  pass to hp or End Customer as set  forth in the Master Agreement.  

b) Tit le to Elron Deliverables w.i .11 pass to IIP on delivery to HP or to Customer Site,  whichever 
occurs f irst .  

7. CHANGE ORDERS 

a) Requests and recommendations for Change Orders will  be made in writ ing in the form attached as 
Exhibit  2.  All  changes shall  be str ict ly subject  to mutual agreement Of both part ies hereto.  

b) Upon MP's submission of a Change Older,  Elron snail  advise IIP o! the resultant impact on cost  and 
Schedule and will  provide such information as will  permit  Hi '  to determine the reasonableness of 
the cost  and Schedule impact.  Hi '  and Elron shall  negotiate iri  good fa i l l .  reasonable adjustment 
of cost  and/or schedule terms. After reaching agreement on such cost  and schedule terms, Elron 
shall  proceed with fl ic Change Order to meet the revised Elron Schedule.  fending agreement,  Elron 
Shall  continue to pa.  form and be paid as if  such Change Order had not been requested or 
recommended. 1  

6. ACCEPTANCE 

a) HP's acceptance of Elron's  Deliverables and/or Services will  occur at  the t ime of End Customer 
Acceptance.  In the case of Elron's  Software deliverables,  the accepi ance cri teria lor same arc set  

1M10 Pare 6/13 
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lotLh in Exhibit 0 .  An Acceptance Period commences upon Elron's notice to HF that acceptance 
activities nay begin. The Acceptance Period shall DC 30 calendar days, unless agreed otherwise for 
a particular Project. If Acceptance is delayed by End Customer's acts of omissions Or default, and 
in consequence i.? not completed by the end of the Acceptance period, the Fix on Software 
del 1 vctable will be drRiiuu} accepted by default for the purposes of payment; and HI4 shall pay Kir on 
those Burns due in accordant:*; with Exhibit. 6 hereof. Acceptance by default shall not relieve El ron 
of the obligation to complete any **<vices which Flron has been contracted to provide, including 
but nc-L liini ted to any Acceptance Testing activities, and Flron Shall resume performance of any 
r.uch obligations a* soon as the cau*r. v»r the delay has been remedied, it tho scope of Elron'5 
obligations increases beyond thai originally contracted for as a result of Acceptance by default, 
El ron may request a Change Oiclei lm issued and agreed to fond any additional efforts required Lo 
achieve Acceptance, in tl»c case of Elton's services, the. parties acknowledge that the acceptance 
criteria mjy vary according Lo the nature of said services; however the parties dyicc Lo raise a 
Change Order to incorporate specific acceptance criteria into this Agreement as may be necessary. 

b) i f  or completion ol Acceptance Testing activities End CnM.omor does not accept, the System Chen: 
(I) wlmre Flron is responsible in whole or in pan. for such non acceptance, Elron shall iak? such 
steps as may be reasonably requited Lo ensure End Customer Acceptance.(11) where HI1 is responsible 
for such non-at:t:t:pt.»i»oo, HP shall take such steps as may be reasonably required LO ensure End 
Customer Acceptance; if in such clrcumytanccs HP's actions do not result in Acceptance being 
achieved within o fui LJi«i "10 day period, El ron'$ deliverable shall r>c doomed accepted by default 
as per clause ft* hotoof and handled as prescribed therein. Elron shall have the right to escalate 
this matter. 

c) li Elron foils to cn&uie End Customer Acceptance as set our. in Section 8.b. above within an 
additional <:ur..» period of 30 (thirty) days, lollowing written nol >w of same from HP, HP shell 
hove the x iglit. to remedy, oi to hire * third party to remedy, suen tail ore at Elron's expense 
not to exceed each project's OEM Resale re*-. 

9 WARRANTIES 

a) Elron Deliverables. 

1)ror a period of one year iollowiny End Customer Acceptance (or HP's acceptance based on criteria 
defined in Exhibit 9), Elron warrants that Elron Software will not fail to execute its 
programming instruction* du« l.o defects in materials and workmanship when properly installed 
•ti<1 uoc-d in the System. Elron fuitlier warrants that Elton software will Substantially conform 
Lo i.hft Elron specifications in Exhibit 1 and to specific technical informal, ion about such Elron 
Sofiwaxe which is published l;»y Elron in EJron's product manuals and datasheets in effect on the 
date. Elron ships such Elton Software. EJ ron also warrants that Fly on Software Will 
interopeiTAtc with Uir System, provided that Elron nas received a full description of the f»ysi. em 
and its -specification* and on the condition that the End Customer uses the system according to 
these specificar Jons. 

2) During the applicable w.Jtianty period, Elron shall test arid remedy, without Charge to HE or End 
Customer, any and all pox Lions of the Flron deliverables which HP or End Customer reports as 
defective or non-conloiiuiiiq. Elron shall investigate, replace Or begin Lo correct defective or 
non conforming Elron Del i v*»able* immediately upon notice and will continue diligently in 
accordance with any rcspon»« time commitment from HE to End Customer, until the defective or 
non-Con forming Elron Deliverable* are corrected, providing written progress reports a* 
requested by TIP. 

3) During the applicable warranty period, if Elron j* unable to remedy any defective or non­
conforming Elron Deliverables within a reasonable period of time from the Lime of HP's written 
notification (m»L Lo exceed any respond time commitment, from HL' to Enn Customer which will be 
shared with Fljron), Hr will hove the right, in addition to all other rights available to HP 
under this Agreement and in law ot equity, to either: (i) return the Llron Deliverables to 
Elron and receive a refund of all payments made by HE to Elron under this Agreement; (ii) 
i«l.orn an individual Liz on Deliverable to Elron and receive a full refund Of all payments made 
by HP to Elron unctor this Agreement for Deliverable which has been returned; or (iil) keep the 
Elron Deliverable* under the same rights set forth in section 11 below. If HP elects to return 
a!) or part ol the Llron Deliveiablcs, Elron shall pay HE for all additional amounts incurred 
by HP to acquii* such Deliverables from a third party above the price Specified in Exhibit 6 
(not to exceed the total amount, of the OEM Resale and other fees due to Elron under this 
Agreement.) Dote For the Nil Project only, these amounts axe not. to exceed the value Of 
$l2b,000, being the cons i dr. i at ion payable. If HP elects to keep the F.Iron Deliverables, 1!F may 
withhold any and *11 remaining payments due hereunder and Elron shall pay hf any additional 
cosLr incurred by Hi in remedying the defective or non conloiming Elron Deliverables, to the 
extent that sucli costs exceed the amount HP would have paid Elron undei this Agreement but lor 
FT ron'5 failure to remedy the defective or non-COnforming Fl roil Deliverables. 

A) F.i ron warrants and represents thai, enhancement?, upgrades, new xcleascs, and new vctsionft 01 
Elron Deliverable* will inlcroperate with the system based on Exhibit 7, 
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i )Btrw warrants  ami r«prns«nts  that  each EJron del iverable  Omtludiny vc«ion"r .hereori  
Sot iwdic and f i rmware,  and a))  enhancements ,  upgrades,  new rcOeaaes and new vi i . ior t .  
del ivered under  th is  Agreement  wi l l  be able  lo  a ,=«^"tcly proce^ <^a X 'mcU .  and 

date  01 Customer acceptance cr ixoug" iumy -----  .  - -  -
th is  warranty shal l  he def ined in ,  and subject  to ,  the terms and l i l tULat  > cms of  the _• 
contained in  this  Agreement .  Nothing in  this  warranty shal l  he construed to  l imit  e»y r ights  o  
remedies  provided elsewhere in  this  Agreement  with respect  to  matters  other  than Year  2000 provided 
par lor  nwinc*.  

10 Elton Services »nd Support. EJxon warrants  and represents  that  i t .  i s  ful ly  competent  to  
the servicer ,  and the Support  and possesses  the necessary expert ise  and f inancial  resources .  Dro 
fur ther  warrants  and represents  that  i t  wil l  provide a l l  Services  and Support  contracted foi  
hereunder  wil l ,  reasnnahlc  core ,  ski l l  and di l igence in  a  professional  and woik. . ,a , ' . l  i  ke  manner  using 
sui tably qual i f ied arid experienced personnel  consis tent ,  wi th  the highest  s tandards an n 
pract ices  in  the imlo««.*y.  

C) wo Conf l ic t . .  P.)  rem warrants  *n<l  represents  that  i t  J?  under  no obl igat ion or  res t  r  »ci . i  on nor  
.shal l  i t  assume Any such obl igat ion or  res t r ic t ion which would in  any w*y in terfere  with oi t  be  
inconsis tent  with,  or  present  a confl ic t  of  in terest  comrcxfl  S nq ,  the  supply of  Fl  ron Del iverables  
or  the performance of  K.Iron Services  O; F- l ron Support  under  U»is  Aqreement .  

<j)  Nona nmngemant .  El  ron warrants  and represents  thai  i t s  Del iverables ,  Services  and support  do 
not  and wil l  not  v iolate  or  infr inge any third par ty  i  nr .e i  J  ec tual  properly l ights ,  including 
without  l imitat ion,  parent ,  t rade secret ,  copyright ,  t rademark,  t rade ut i l i ty  model ,  
industr ia l  design,  mask work or  moral  r ights ,  and that  Klron i s  not  aware or any facts  upon which 
such a  c la im could he made.  

c)  Tl t lO and Authori ty .  El ton w*zr*ni$ and represents  that  i t  is  the r ightful  owner  of  a l l  r ighto,  
t i t le  and interest  in  El ton 's  Del i  vex able* dud that  i t  has  a l l  r ights  neeASSci  «• y  to  grant  the 
l icenses  granted and Lo make the assignments  made under  th is  Agreement  

T )  Warranty Exclusion Notwithstanding the sub-seeI ions above of this Sect ion 9,  LIron sholJ  have no 
warranty obl igat ions i f :  ( i )  the End Customer has  used or  i s  using the El  ron Del iverables  in  a  
manner  that  does not  conform to  Elron*s wri t ten instruct ions Or the  provis ions of  Elron*s 
documentat ion provided with the Del iverables;  ( i i )  the End Customer or  any third par ty  has  
modif ied or  a t tempted to  modify the Elron Del iverables;  ( i i i )  the Ficon Del1verable  has  been 
subjected to  any extreme power surge or  e lectromagnet  j  <:  f lu id;  <iv)  the  End Customer has  
unreasonably refused to  implement  any changes recommended by Elron.  (v)  the  warranty fa i lure  is  
due to  HP or  End customer 's  implementat ion of  incompatible  changes ox modi  f i  cat  i on* to  system 
component  s .  

10. SUPPORT 

aj  El  ron shal l  provide Support  as  detai led in  Exhibi t  1 ,  and HK wi l l  make payments  for  such Support  
03 detailed in Exhibit 6. 

b)  Elron shal l  maintain an inventory of  equipment  and t ra ined personnel  to  support  Elron Del iverables  
ror  a t  least  l ive years  from the date  of  las t  manufacture  of  such Del iverables .  I f  af ter  f ive 
years  Elron does not  cont inue to  provide such support ,  Elror i  shal l  make avai lable  r .o  HL '  a l l  
re levant  manufactur ing drawings and/or  source code tOl  the SOlC purpose ol  oi iubl inq Hb Lo perIoxm 
i ! . .»  Obi  I  Y<»1.  i  I> I  is  to  exis t ing F-nd Customer,  including support  obl igat ions.  In  the event  that  Hi '  
should make fur ther  sale(s)  of  Elron Del iverables  beyond the date  of  Elron 's  discont inuance of  
support ,  Elron shal l  cont inue to  receive any OEM Resale  fOC(S) duC in  accordance with Exhibi t  6  
hereof  in  respect  of  such sale(s) .  

c)  Upon request  by HL' ,  Elron shal l  maintain a  complete  and current  copy o£ the source code,  for  F.Iron 
Software covered by Sect ion l l .c .  below in  an escrow account  selected by HP and pursuant  to  the 
terms of  an escrow agreement  appioved l>y the  par l ies ,  the terms of  which shal l  ensure HP access  
to  the source code for  the sole  purpose of  performing i t s  coat iactual  obl igat ions r .o  End Customer 
in  the event  that  U j  s  demonstrated (as  shal l  be detai led in  the escrow agreement)  that  Elron is  
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urtAbJ« »<•> perform i ts  obl igat ions ncrcundcr .  i f  UP makes such a  request  ,  a l l  escrow fees  w.i i l  be  
borne by UP.  The escrow account  should placed in  Israel ,  enabl ing on access  for  Flron.  

11. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS 

o> All  copyrights  and oi  l»r* in te l lectual  property r ights  exis t ing pr ior  to  the Effect ive Date  wil l  
belong to  the par ty  that  owned such r ight* immediately pr ior  to  thy Effect ive Dale .  

b)  Any copyrights  and other  intel lectual  property r ights  which may ar ise  or  be created during the 
course of ,  and for  the purpose of  execut ing this  Agreement ,  shal l  he re ta ined hy the or iginat ing 
par ty .  

c)  Tn the event  that  Llron provides  to  IIP,  pursuant  to  This  Agreement ,  any Elron Del iverables# 
specif icat ions or  re la ted documental ion which nave been developed independent  of ,  and not  for  
purposes  of ,  th is  Agxeeiuc.nl ,  Elron grouts  HP a non-exclusive,  worldwide,  perpetual  ar id  
i r revocable  l icen&tt  to  such i tems as  wil l  permit  HP to  perform i ts  contractual  Obligat ions to  End 
Customer |c) ,  including without  1  imitat ion grant ing subl icenses  to  End Customer Lo use and exploi t ,  
such Elron Del iverables  as  par t  of  the  System for  the purposes  set  for th  in  any Ma3t .er  Agreement . ;  
subject  to  payment  of  the  appropriate  l icence fee to  Elron as  def ined in  Exhibi t  6 .  

d> Mo l icences,  express  or  implied,  under  any patents ,  copyrights ,  t rade Secrets  or  t rademarks are  
granted by HP to  Llron hereunder .  

e)  F, l rnf i  asser ts  ownership of  the Intel lectual  Property l ights  for  the IRMA appl icat ion (as  def ined 
in  Exhibi t .  1  hereof;  and MP shal l  not  chal lenge or  dispute  such asser t ion during the course ot  
ih is  Agreement .  

12. INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE 

a)  Klron shal l  defend,  indemnify and l ivid harmless  MP and Customer from a l l  c la ims,  losses ,  
l iabi l i t ies ,  damages,  coa l* and expenses  ( including legal  and expert  witness  lees} suffered by 
reason of  any third par ty  claim to  ownership of  or  any interest  jn  any Elron Del iverable ,  Eiron 
Services ,  F.J  i ron Support ,  or  ar ty  por t ion thereof ,  including any c la im made Or any s t i i r  or  
proceeding brought  against  HP or  End Customer insofar  a* i t  i s  based on an a l legat ion that  any 
port ion of  the Elron Del iverables ,  F:. l  ion Services  or  Elron Support  infr inges or  violates  any 
pMenl ,  copyright ,  t rademark,  t rade secret ,  u t i l i ty  model ,  industr ia l  design,  mask work,  moral  
r ight  or  other  intel lectual  property r ight .  I f  the  use of  the  Elron Del iverables ,  Elron Services ,  
or  Elron Support ,  or  any parr ,  thereof ,  i s  enjoined,  Elron shal l ,  a t  i t s  sole  expense and opt ion;  
( i )  procure tor  l lE and Customer '  the  r ight  to  cont inue using the Elron Del iverables ,  Eiron Services  
or  Elron Support ;  ( i1)  replace the Elron Del iverables ,  El  I 'Oil  Services  or  Elron Support  with a  non­
infr inging vers ion of  equivalent  funct ion and performance;  or  ( i i i )  modify the Elron Del  i  verabies ,  
Klron Services  o» Elron Support  to  be non-infr inging without  detract ing t rom funct ion or  
performance.  

t>)  Subject  to  clause 14,-  El ton agrees  to  defend,  indemnify and hold harmless  HI ' ,  i t s  agents  and 
employees,  and Customer against  a l l  claims,  losses ,  l iabi l i t ies  and damages,  and to  pay a l l  
c la ims,  judgmr.nl  n ,  awards# Ousts  and expenses  ( including at torney and expert  witness  fees)  ar is ing 
direct ly  from Elron 's  negl igent  <*cts  or  omissions under  th is  Agreement .  

c)  During the tex 'm of  th is  Agreement .#  Elron shal l  maintain in  ful l  force and effect ,  a t  Elron 's  own 
expense,  the insurance coverages and pol icy l imits  specif ied Ui Exhibi t  5 .  

d)  Cert i f icates  of  insurance evidencing the required coverages and l imits  shal l  bo furnished to  Ht> 
before  any work i s  commenced hereunder  and win provide that  there  wil l  be no cancel la t ion or  
reduct ion of  coverage without  30 days pr ior  wri t ten not ice  to  Hp.  The insurance pol ic ies  shal l  
cover  Klron '3  act ivi t ies  in  a l l  Jur isdict ions where the Projects  are  located.  ) f  reasonably 
requested by IIP,  the  insurance pol ic ies  wil l  be wri t ten by an insurance company with a  ra t ing 
specif ied by HP.  Klron shal l  furnish copies  oi  any endorsements  .subsequent ly  issued which amend 
coverage or  pol icy l imits .  Such pol ic ies  shal l  name he  as  an addi t ional  insured.  

13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

a)  In the event  that . .  Elron receives  information from or  belonging to  End Customer,  Flron agrees  to  
execute  such Confident ia l i ty  agreement  as  End Customer may require  pr ior  to  receiving same. .  

b)  Any  Confident!a)  Information which may require  to  be exchanged between the par t ies  during the 
course of  th is  Agreement  shal l  be handled in  accordance with the Non Disclosure Agreement  "dated 
2  May,  1999 which i s  hereby made a  par t  of  th is  Agreement  by means of  th is  relcrer ice .  

14. REMEDIES AND LIABILITIES 
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EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED FOR HEREIN : 

a) )N NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR LOSS OF ACTUAL OK ANTICIPATED PROFITS, 
LOSS Of GOODWILL, LOSS OF BUSINESS, LOSS OF ANTICIPATED SAVINGS, LOSS OF REVENUE, LOSS OF DATA, 
on, WITHOUT LIMITATION, FOR SPECIAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS AND DAMAGE WHETHER. ARISING 
OUT OF THE SUPPLY FUNCTIONING OR USE OF THE DELIVERABLES OR ANY OTHER OBMCATIONS ASSUMED AY 
HITHER PARTY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, AND WHETHER ARISING IN CONTRACT OR TORT, INCLUDING IN EACH 
CASE NEGLIGENCE, OR OTHERWISE HOWSOEVER AND WHETHER OK NOT EACH FARTY HAS ADVISED THE OTHER OF 
THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSS. 

b) NOTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT SHALL EXCLUDE OR RESTRICT EITHER PARTY'S 1.IAU1 MTV FOR DEATH OR 
PERSONAL 1N.HIHY CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE UK THAT FARTY. 

c) APART FROM THE LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH INSURANCE IN EXHIBIT 5, IN NO EVENT SHALT. EITHER PARTY 
RE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY AMOUNT GREATER THAN THE VALUE OF AN INDIVIDUAL PROTECT FOR A 
PMrtK.TH.AK CUSTOMER UNDER WHICH SUCH LIABILITY ARISES. 

ri) The parLles agree chat the NTT Japan project is a "Crash" project, and thai any broad form 
commercial penalties (such as Liquidated Damages! presciibed in the Master Agreement foi LIiaL 
project shall not be flowed down hum IIP to Elron. These special circumstances shall be taken 
into lions; deration in the event that any dcrsvlt on Eiron's pari should arise during the 
execution ot the NTT Japan project. 

18. TERM AND TERMINATION 

si This Agreement will commence on the Effective Dele and wi 11 continue (notwi the landing prior 
termination as piovideU for in c) below) until the later of i) both parlies have fulfilled all of 
their op,! i ga t ions, including warranty and Support or 11)31 July 2002. 

D in the event Lhat. any Master Agreement is terminated, HP may terminate the affected portion of 
this Agreement- forthwith upon no less than seven days advance notice in writing. El I on shall 
provide HP with any and all work in progress or completed pursuant, to that Master Agreement. HP 
Wall P'3Y Elron an equitable amount, based on the rates in Exhibit 6, tor i) suClt delivered work Or 
work in progress at the lime of termination iijactual JaDOUr hours travel and material costs 
incurred to return Eicon's staff and equipment to Elton's base artcr the date 01 termination t 
such amounts shall specifically exclude any OEM Resale fee payments provided that HP lias nor 
licensed an Eicon Deliverable to the affected End Customer.Upon such termination, up will make any 
payment,, then owed Elron, unless End Customer's termi r.al i on is due to acts or omissions Ol Elron 
such as would constitute a breach of tnis Agreement. 

e) Thin Agreement may be terminated immediately upon notice in writing: 

1) By cither party if the other party is in material broach Of any ot its obiigat.i ons under this 
Agreement and fails to runiody the breach for a period or 30 days after a written notice hy iho 
other parly which specifies the material breach. 

2) uy either party, if the other party has a receiver appointed, or on assignee for the benefit ol 
creditors, or in the event of any insolvency Or inability to pay debts as tiicy become due by 
the Other party, except as may be prohibited by applicable bankruptcy laws. 

3) Ry richer party, in the event or a Force Majeure circumstance, subjccL to Section lC.i. below. 

dupon termination of. this Agreement for any reason, Elron shall provide IIP with any and all work in 
progress according U> the procedure described in clause ILh) h.-i cin or completed pursuant to the 
Agreement. Hf will pay Elron an equitable amount lor such delivered work in progress. If the 
termination is due to acts or omissions of Elron such as would constitute a breach ol this 
Agreement, hf will bo entitled to deduct from these amounts payable to Elron ar.y amount to which 
Iir will be entitled in cuimect ion with such termination. 

e) in the event this Agreement is terminated by HP pursuant to Section 15.C.1 because of Ellon's 
breach, Elron shall reimburse Hr (not to exceed t.he total amount of the OEM Resale fee and other 
fees due to Elron under this Agreement! for all reasonable costs ol completing any Project 
incurred lry HP that are greater than the amount Hi* would have paid Elron but for Elton's breach. 
This Section 1S.» will not be construed as limiting or restricting any rights that HP may have 
agalnsr f:l ron for breach of this Agreement, and hp expressly reserves all such rights. 

f t  upon termination of tins Agreement or completion ol Eiron's performance, whichevei occurs fjisl, 
Fdron shall promptly leLurn to HP all materials provided lay HP or Customer under this Agreement 
and all written Confidential Information of HP or Customer then held hy Elron. HP shall promptly 
return to Elron all materials provided by Elron and all written Confidential information of Elron 
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then held by HP, except for the materials which are required by HP in order to perform it* 
obligation* to End Customers under the Master Agreements lnwjK>ratcd herein. 

q) To the extent that any warranty, support, or other continuing obligation on Elton extends beyond 
the date of termination of this Agreement; all applicable Sections of this Agreement will continue 
10 apply until sucli time as EJron's performance of its obligations is completed. Additionally, 
Sections 11 (Intellectual Property Rights) and 13 (Confidential Information) shall survive any 
termination of this Agreement. After termination of this Agreement, no rurthcx now business shall 
be transacted without Klron'a prior agreement. 

16. GENFRAL 

<1) Health and Safety. Klron shall conduct its activities so that its equipment, working conditions and 
methods arc sate and without risk to health lor its own, hp'S and End Customer's employ**-* as well bt 
for any olher users of the location in which fell on is conducting its activities. 

b) Quality. Klron shall maintain an objective quality program ror the tl'O" Deliverables suppled 
pursuant to this Agreement. Elron's program wi.U be in accordance with the Current. revision of 
PlxOh'S quality system requirements (being an T309000 approved company) . Elron shall, upon HP's 
request, provide to HP copies of Elron'S program and supporting rest documentation, . lmJop«r"d*ni 
quality checks will be made by F.J r on periodically to assure quality per fox monce. HP may also perform 
random quality checks of F.ir©n*s work pursuant to this Agreement. HI* will coordinate with Elron the 
lime of such checks. F) ron shall provide a timely response and correction 10 any quality issues 
identified. For the 1KMA Project delivery to NIT Japan only, El*o»« *inl HP agree to w<j1ve such QA 
procedural task* in the interests ol meeting the schedule requirements. This waiver does not allow 
basic quality requirement$ to be waived tor deliveries to NTT J«p«n 01 any future projects. 

C) Right To Inspect. HP Chan have tne right to inspect a)i of F.iron's work under this Agreement, 
including Eiron's numufalluring processes, at any time during normal working hours and in 
coordination with Elron, 7 days ahead. HP's inspection may bo fo* any reason reasonably related to 
this Agreement, including to assure Elron's compliance with HP's requirements. 

d) Non-Ro*trieLive Relationship. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed so as to produOc HP from 
developing, acquiring, marketing or providing products 01 so;vicos which may perform the same «» 
Similar function#: a?: the t'l ron Deliverables and Elron Services, , ait subject, to HP's confident 1 y 
undertaking as per Section 13 above, in addition, nothing 1n this Agreement shall be construed as VO 
preclude Elron from soiling and marketing any or its products and cervices; to any other party. 

C) NO rublioity. Elron agrees not to publicize or disclose to *"y third |MI i.y without the prior written 
COi-ise.nr or HP, fit mar the terms or this Agreement or the fact of lis existence ami execution, or the 
participation of any End Customer(s), except as may be necessary to comply with other obligations and 
duties set forth in Kxhibit 10 of Chi* AyrctRjiittni., ot except as may be necessary to comply wit.h any 
0.» sci o*v«e- * mju i»eiwtiil. un»l«r miy law or regulation. In the event Elron reguiied to make such 
disclosure, Fdron shall as a matter of courtesy inform HP of same as soon as in reasonably practical 
before such riijtrlnsnrr. l./s Vex pi nee. 

I) No Joi»t venture. Nothing W"t<*iunci in Uii* Agreement shall be construed as creating a joint 
venture, partnership, or employment relationship between the parties hereto, nor shall cither petty 
hflvc Lhe right, power or authority to create any obligation or duty, express, implied, or of any 
other nature on behalf of the other. 

g) No Assignment. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by HP, RJioa shall not assign or transfer its 
iighLs, including through change in control of ownership, (namely, change of more than 50% of the 
shares) or delegate its responsibilities under this Agreement. Klron win be entitled, however, to 
assign or transfer its rights and obligations hereunder, in a framework of any restructuring 
under taken by Elron or by its direct or indirect parent company, to any subsidiary of Elron, and/or 
rtny entity who Ja ni.de» the .y^jne control its Elron. Any purported assignment or delegation by Elron, 
including the attempted contracting of all or any portion of the work to be provided under this 
Agreement, shall be null and void. 

h) Export Administration Regulations. Each party agrees to comply with all applicable law;; and 
regulations which may govern the export of Elron Deliverables. 

j) rorco Majeure. Non-puiformancc of either parly will be excused to the extern that performance is 
rendr.rrd impossible ©r delayed by strike, fire, flood, governmental acts or orders or restrictions or 
other similar reason where failure to perform is beyond the control of and not caused by the. 
negligence of the non-performing party ("Force Majeure"), provided that the non performing party 

px<11 up( notice? c>r conditions to the other party and makes all reasonable efforts to 
perform. should a circumstance of Force Majeure last more than ih) riy (30; days, each party may by 
wiii.i.ttu notice i.«> the other party terminate this Agreement. Upon such termination, neither party 
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wil l  be  l i ab le  to  the  o ther  par ty ,  *A«;«pi .  ru t  Sec t ion  15(d)  which  wi l l  apply  in  the  event  o i  such  
te rmina t  ion .  

j )  Compliance with  x*w«.  E l  r  on  iuu& L p« i fof iu  i t s  ac t iv i t i es  under  th i s  Agreement  in  compl  i  a r te*  wi th  a l l  
appl icab le  na t iona l  and  loca l  yovKi t i imsni .  j equ l iements ,  inc lud ing  envi ronmenta l ,  l i cens ing  and  permi t  
l aws ,  ru les ,  regula t ions ,  o rders  and  ord inances ,  which  may apply  In  the  var ious  ju r i sd ic t ions  where  
Dl rou '*  ar : i  iv i  I .ACS may be  per tomed 

k)  Hun-Sul ic i .4 -a i . io r i .  Dur ing  the  te rm or  th i s  Agreement ,  ne i ther  par ty  Sha l l  d i rec t ly  so l ic i t  the  o ther  
par ty ' s  p«r .nonnt ; i  a ssoc ia ted  wi th  Ll t«  Pn»j«o> for  employment .  

1 )  Not ices .  Al l  no t ices  requi red  umi«r  l i t i s  Agreement  sha l l  be  in  wr i t ing  and  sha l l  be  sen t  lo  t l i e  
address  of  the  rec ip ien t  se t  Out  be low,  o r  such  o ther  address  as  the  rec ip ien t  may des igna te  by  
not ice :  g iven  in  accordance  wi th  th i s  Sec t ion .  Any such  no t ice  may be  de l ivered  by  hand ,  by  overn ight  
cour ie r ,  by  f iu t t .  c lass  p ie -pa id  l e t te r  or  by  facs imi le  t ransmiss ion ,  and  Sha l l  be  deemed to  have  
been  rece ived  as  se t  fo r th  be low 

1)  Dy hand  de l ivery  -  a t  the  t ime  of  de l ivery /  

2)  by overn ight  cour ie r  -  40 hours  a f te r  the  da le  of  de l ivery  to  cour ie r  v j lh  ev idence  of  de l ivery  
f rom the  cour ie r , "  

0 )  By f i r s t  c las i  m.- j i l  -  96  hours  a f te r  the  da te  Of  mai l ing ;  

4)  hy  facs imi le  -  immedia te ly  upon t ransmiss ion  provided  a  conf i rming  copy SenI  by  f i r s t  c lass  
pre-pa id ,  by  overn ight  cum i t - r  or .  by  hand  by  the  end  of  the  next  bus iness  day .  

«»)  l ' o r  purposes  o i  th i s  Sec t ion  the  addzcaa  uf  n*i . :h  pa r ty  wi l l  be :  

Hewle t t  Packard :  

Te lecom vyaIcms Div is ion  

South  Dueensfer ry  

Edinburgh  EI130 9TK 

Uni ted  Kingdom 

El lOi ' t  SO!  I  ware :  

20  3henk«r  S i  r*»H 

Pet .  a  eh  Tikva  

49513 I s rae l  

n)  n igh t  of  aoccoo .  Each  pa /by  sha l l  permi t  access  to  the  o ther ' s  respec t ive  fac i l i t i es  as  
reasonably  requi red  in  conn«cUo» wi th  work  hereunder .  Ho charge  sha l l  be  lev ied  for  such  

o)  w»iv©r .  Nei th«r  par ly ' s  fa i lu re  to  exerc i se  ar ty  o f  i t s  r tghu  under  th i s  Agreement sha l l  
conncj tuu  or  be  deemed to  cons t i tu te  a  waiver  o r  fo r fe i tu re  Of  such  r igh ts .  Waiver  o f  a  b reach  
of  i ;Mo Agreement  will not  be  deemed a  waiver  o f  any  fu ture  breach .  Any waiver  sha l l  be  in  
wzi t i r iq  and  s igned  by  each  par ty ' s  rcpre&enLr t l . iv« .  

0 )  t avorab i l i ty .  I f  any  te rm or  provis ion  of  th i s*  Ayxer .ment  i s  he ld  to  be  I l l ega l  or  unenforceable- ,  
Li te  v a l i d i t y  or  enforceabi l i ty  of  the  remainder  o r  th i s  Agreement  sha l l  no t  be  a f fec ted .  

J , )  txh ih i t®.  The  fo l lowing  documents  a re  At tached  here to  as  exhib i t s ,  the  te rms:  o f  which  a re  hereby  
incorpora ted  by  r*f*r*nce  in  t l i e i i  en t i re ly :  

1  Suppor t  Requi rements  

2 Change  Order  Process  

3  Sof tware  License  Tormo 

A Hi  Appl ica t ion  fcr iv j  I tmment  and  in te r face  cont ro l  Document  

TM10 I ' f tg<i j /13  
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1 Siipp«rl K^uircmi-hrs 

2 Change fbder Tto<-> 

3 Software bicensc 
I III Application PnvitOHR.Cl>t ami iHluitac* control »«h:u««« 

5 jnsilfoi""70 re"i!'UT 5. 

c pricing, ordering -ml laymen. (Product Specific) 

n Specslicaiion jproduct Specific) 

0 pro-»t;Ct F'jan ana lM»a riequircnems lint (Product Specif. 

5 Scceptarice eriiwri# !t''<»b,ot specific) 

ig Mm com (Product Spedr ic) 

U Services ug) lveiaoi.m (Project specific) 

12 Special Terms (Project Specific) 

$ a) precedonoe. in the event, of conflict between tr.c- provisions or this Atuooiunnt. and any a< t 
i' pxnif.it, ti.e provisions^ oX this Agreement shall to the extent of even conflict tare precedence. 

& r) Entire Agreement- This Agreement and its Exhibits constitute the "P.' irI-'-""-"' i"-i wrr-M ill and 
plroj. and supersede all j.iior or contemporaneous communications, representations, and egteomcnts, 

*X whether oral or writ-ten, legacdtng the subject matter oi this AgroomooL, other t>>on those made 
fraudulently. Nether party's additional or different leuw- and conditions shall apply- No 

J modi li car ions ol, or amendments to, the terms of this Agreement shall be vel.O unless in vjrt.ng 
and signed ny a duly eut 1u,r i x*rrl representative of each party. 

xix) Applicable Ls«. This Agreement is made under and shall be construed in accordance with t'u-
laws of England. In the event that a dispute is not re-solved by the parties Utemse 1 vva , such 

•i- dispute shall be submitted to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts in l-o,,don or such 
other place as the parlies mutually agree. 

/.NOVATION CLAUSE 

Elton acknowledges that as part of the proposed HP demerqer, it is expected tlu.t the measurement 
business carried on by Hi' will bo transferred to a new OK company ("vK HeastiremeutCd') . f.Iron, Hi' 
a n d  V K  K s u s u i e r o e a t  C v  h e r e b y  a g r e e  t o  t h e  n o v a t i o n  o f  t h i s  c o n t r a c t  b y  w h i c h  V *  M e a s u r e m e n i C o  w i l l  
be substituted for HI' as party to this counsel. The novation of U.ls contract shall be effective 
on the dale that HeasuiomentCo executes this novation clause (the "Novation bate"). This novel><»• 
will not otherwise add to or alter Elton's lights, duties and obligations under this Agreement. 

~AothJr-sTcd Represenr.at'i 

fif i <r n fiti? v /./(ar-i/fe fir fir? s 

G - f .  ^  V,APt.r ^  ^ ^^r-s.w 

AUUr e. a ft: ^ f A t-vk. L-fV V" . 

:.../?> «W — 

Q *1 a (A V» l j Ji *1 s i 
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Exhibit TMIOMTSD 

NOVATION 
ACCEPTED 

Authors?.<*<2 Eiron Signaiozy: 

e pAHfiV f Ho-skr t frrtfK N'wie: 

Authorized HI' Sjyit ocy: 

OVATION _ 
CCF.I'TKD: 

Aulhojjy.od MvasureiftenLCo Signatory: 

arm.-: 

jtlt: 
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CONTRACT Exhibit. TM J 0MTS1) 

5 Insurance Jtequ) rtrncnts 

6 Pricing, Ordering am) Payment (Product Specific) 

I Specification (Product Specific) 

H Project Plan and Date Requirements List (Product Specific) 

9 Acceptance criteria (Product Specific) 

)0 Mar com (Product Specific) 

II Services Del Ivorable* (Project Specific) 

}? Special Terms (Project Specific) 

q) Precedence. j„ the event or conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any attached 
Exhibit, the provis.0,,5 of this Agreement shall to the extent of such conflict lake precedence. 

r) Entire Agroomont. This Agrcemeni and its Exhibits constitute the entire agreement between HP and 
Elton and supersede all prior or contemporaneous communications, representations, and agreement; 
fvsnrriLT. 0r„W"U'en' re9arding the subject: matter of this Agreement. other than those made 

" ,Ncithcr l*"Ly 5 additional or different terms and conditions shall apply. No 
d1llCations of, or amendments to, the terms ol this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing 

and signed by a duly authorised representative of each party. vniting 

r.) Applieablo Law. This Agreement is made under and shall be construed in accordance with the laws 
»i „r?9v, ' t tVCnl thdl 0 dlsP",ft -i® no* resolved by the parties themselves, such dispute 
shall be submitted to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts in London or such other 
pisco a? the part.jfs mutually cytce. 

1/.NOVATION CLAUSE 

El,on acknowledges that as pari or the proposed HE demerger, it is expected that Die measurement 
ox « C3r" "V" be transferred . 0 a new UK company <»UK McasurcmentCo"). Elron, he 

ana UK Measure,™,.,I Co hereby agree to tne novation ol this contract by which OK BeasuremenlCo will 
*"®s"l"™* *or„ "p °= Part* 10 u>" contract. The novation of this contract shall be effective 
l w . r^ • Measu.omontCo executes this novation clause (the "Novation Date"). This novation 

Will not otherwrse add to or alter Elton's rights, duties and obligations under this Agreement 

AGREED TO: 
HP; 

Author>7.cd Representative Signature Authorized Representative Signature 

Nan'0: - Name: 
Title: Title: 

Address: 

NOVATION NOVATION 
ACCEPTED: •" ACCEPTED 
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: 

Title: 

Name: 

Ti t le :  

NOVATION 
A< m:i>: 

_AuUio* i Tt-.d Mcasurementco Si^n<jt.ory: 

Name: 

T .i IJ t: 
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£lRON 
ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES LTD. 
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£LRON 
ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES LTD. 

T o w a r d s  
2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0  

N e w  G e n e r a t i o n  
u m N e w  M  i  1 1  e  n  n  i  u  m  N  e  w  M  i  1 1  e  n  n  i  u  m  N  e  w  M  i  1 1  e  n  n  i  u  m  N  e  w  M i l l e n n i u m  

Dear  Share holders 

We hereby present unaudited financial results for the 

second quarter ended June 30, 1999. 

Net income of the Company for the second quarter 

of 1999 was approximately $16.4 million or, $0.78 per 

share. Net income in the second quarter of 1998 

amounted to approximately $3.1 million, or $0.15 per 

share. 

In the six months ended June 30, 1999, net income 

amounted to approximately $21.1 million, or $1 per 

share. Net income in the first six months of 1998 

amounted to approximately $43.7 million, or $2.15 

per share. 

The major contribution to the net income in the second 

quarter of 1999 was a gain, net after tax, of approximately 

$19.7 million, resulting from the sale of Elron holdings 

in Elbit Medical Imaging ("EMI"), for $127.8 million 

in addition to $17.2 million dividend received from 

EMI. 

The major contribution to the net income in the first 

six months of 1998 was $36.5 million resulted from 

the completion of the sale of EMI ultrasound division 

to GE Medical Systems. 

Sales of Elron's wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary, Elron 

Software Inc., in the second quarter and first six months 

of 1999, amounted to approximately $9.8 million and 

$18.9 million respectively. Sales in the same periods 

of 1998 amounted to approximately $3.5 million and 

$7.7 million respectively. 

The sales resulting from the system integration activity, 

acquired in December 1998, are the main reason for 

the increase in sales. 

Elron's Board of Directors declared a second quarter 

dividend of $0.5 per share. The dividend will be paid 

on September 6, 1999 to shareholders of record at 

the close of business on August 24,1999. The Company 

will deduct income tax at source at a rate currently 

estimated to be 25°/o. 

Uzia Galil, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of 

the Company, said: "Elron has today the necessary 

resources to implement its strategy to create value 

for its shareholders from its present holdings and in 

building operational activities primarily in software, 

communication and Internet related activities. As we 

announced last week, Mr. Ami Erel, the current President 

and CEO of Bezek, will join Elron in the near future 

and will take over from me the position of Chairman 

and CEO of Elron. I will continue to support Elron 

and the Elron companies in every possible way, as 

needed, and intend, together with Elron, to create 

new valuable ventures for the new millennium". 

JL< QJJLL 
Uzia Galil August 8, 1999 

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer 



CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(US Dollars in Thousands except per share amounts) Three Months Ended 

June 30, 
1999 1998 

(Unaudited) 

Six Months Ended 
June 30, 

1999 1998 
(Unaudited) 

Income 

Sales $ 9,826 $ 3,540 s 18,871 $ 7,700 

Company's share in income (loss) of affiliated companies, net (599) 807 92 36,640 

Gain from disposal of and changes in holdings in 

affiliated companies 31,425 526 31,169 1,890 

Other income, net (346) 3,659 5,628 8,721 

Finance income 1,375 457 1,683 914 

41,681 8,989 57,443 55,865 

Costs and Expenses 13,204 5,931 24,258 12,128 

Income before tax 28,477 3,058 33,185 43,737 

Provision for tax 12,113 - 12,113 

Net income $ 16,364 $ 3,058 $ 21,072 $43,737 

Basic net income per share $ 0.78 $ 0.15 $ 1 $ 2.15 

Weighted average number of shares (thousands) 21,117 20,368 21,085 20,335 

Diluted net income per share $ 0.77 $ 0.15 $ 0.99 $ 2.10 

Weighted average number of shares (thousands) 21,179 20,542 21,152 20,561 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(US Dollars in thousands) 

1999 
June 30, 

(Unaudited) 
1998 

December 31, 
1998 

(Audited) 

Current Assets $ 174,648 $ 30,640 $ 35,165 

Investments and lonq-term balances 

-Investments in affiliated companies 103,801 213,422 218,437 

-Other investments 14,288 16,414 16,317 

-Long-term deposits and debentures 6,800 10,603 

124,889 240,439 234,754 

Fixed Assets, net 3,917 1,251 3,293 

Other assets, net 30,969 7,754 32,512 

$ 334,423 $ 280,084 $ 305,724 

Current liabilities $ 38,595 $ 8,667 $ 14,656 

Long term liabilities 42,376 9,700 40,919 

Shareholders' equity 253,452 261,717 250,149 

$ 334,423 $ 280,084 $ 305,724 

Board of Directors 
Uzia Galil - Chairman 
Gideon S. Erhard 
Jacob Eshel 
Emmanuel Gill 

Dr. Yael llan 

Frank J. Klein 

Prof, llan Meshoulam 

Lenny Recanati 

Dr. Yoram A. Turbowicz 

Officers 
Uzia Galil - Chairman of the Board & Chief Executive Officer 

Dr. Jacov (Koby) Ben-Zvi - Senior V.P. Business Development 
President & CEO - Elron Software Inc. 

Doron Birger - V.P. Finance & Corporate Secretary 

Arie Amit - V.P. Information Technology 

Joint Auditors 
Luboshitz, Kasierer 
(a member firm of Arthur Andersen) 

Ratzkovsky Fried & Co. 

Corporate Headquarters 

Elron Electronic Industries Ltd. 

Advanced Technology Center 

P.O.B. 1573, Haifa 31015, Israel 

Tel. 972(4) 854-5000 

Fax.972(4) 855-0248 

Web site:http://www.elron.com 

Email: elron@elron.net 

Offices in the U.S.A.: 

Elron Software Inc. 

7 New England Executive Park 

Burlington, MA. 01803-0977 

Tel. (781) 993-6000 

Fax.(781) 993-6001 

Web site: www.elronsw.com 

Elron Technologies, Inc. 

666 Fifth Avenue 

New York, N.Y. 10103 

Tel. (212) 935-3110 

Fax. (212) 541-2448 

Email: yjk@elron.net 

Wholly-owned subsidiaries 

Elron Software Inc. 

Elron Technologies, Inc. 

Affiliates 

Public 

Elbit Ltd. 
Elbit Systems Ltd. 
Elbit Vision Systems (through Elbit Ltd.) 

Zoran Corporation 

NetManage Inc. 
LOGAL Educational Software and Systems Ltd. 

Private 
Chip Express Corporation 

NetVision Ltd. 

Mediagate 
DEP/RDC Rafael Development Corporation Ltd. 

Ornetix Technologies Ltd. 

Servicesoft Technologies, Inc. 

ArelNet Ltd. 

Oren Semiconductor Inc. 

Witcom Ltd. 

Given Imaging 

Gemini Israel Fund, LP. 

Transfer Agent & Registrar 
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company 
40 Wall Street 

New York, N.Y. 10005 

Investor Relations - U.S.A 

Yung Jin Kim 

Tel. (212) 935-3110 

Fax. (212) 541-2448 



Subj: [Fwd: Fw: Koby's presentation for the management meet 
Date: 1/10/00 5:38:37 AM Eastern Standard Time 
From: ybert@ibm.net (Yair Bar-Tou\^ 
Reply-to: ybert@ibm.net 
To: burtgrad@aol.com 

File: FwKobysp.txt (876191 bytes) 
DL Time (31200 bps): < 8 minutes 

Hello Burt, 

Attached is a general presentation of Elron Software as positioned 
today. I'll use this as a starting point in my discussions with you. 

My numbers are: Office 781-9936011; my admins Sandra is at 781-9936108; 
my mobile is 781-8836010 

I'll try to contact you on Monday at 10:30 am to prou'de a short 
oversew. 

Regards 

Yair 

Headers 
Return-Path: <ybert@ibm.net> 
Received: from r1y-yg05.mx.aol.com (rly-yg05.mail.aol.com [172.18.147.5]) by air-yg01.mail.aol.com (v67.7) with ESMTP; 
Mon, 10 Jan 2000 05:38:36 -0500 
Received: from prserv.net (out5.prserv.net [165.87.194.243]) by rly-yg05.mx.aol.com (\£7.7) with ESMTP; Mon, 10 Jan 2000 
05:38:23 -0500 
Received: from ibm.net Q32.100.55.93]) by prserv.net (out5) with SMTP 

id <2000011010342624302vnqi2e>; Mon, 10 Jan 2000 10:34:26 +0000 
Message-ID: <3878EDB3.B905DA24@ibm.net> 
Date: Sun, 09 Jan 2000 12:21:08 -0800 
From: Yair Bar-Touv <ybert@ibm.net> 
Reply-To: ybert@ibm.net 
Organization: Elron Software 
X-Mailer: Mozilla 4.7 [en] (WinNT; I) 
X-Accept-Language: en 
MIME-Version: 1.0 
To: burtgrad@aol.com 
Subject: [Fwd: Fw: Koby's presentation for the management meeting] 
Content-Type: multipart/mixed; 
boundary=" 36BB65C324F1EB9BCD527BCE" 

Tuesday, January 11, 2000 America Online: Burtgrad Page: 1 



Hi, 
Attached you will find Koby's presentation .In our conference on Tuesday we shall discuss it's 
content. 
Regards, 
Arie 
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Agenda 

>Year 1999 Summary 

>Year 2000 Plan 

>Internet Policy Management 
Company - proposed spin-off 
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Elron Software 

1999 Summary 
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Mission Statement 

To develop, market and support innovative 
network management solutions 

that enable e-business 
and maximize the profitability 

and performance of enterprises, carriers and 
service providers 

£LRON 
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About Elron Software 

1999 Revenue: 
Founded: 
Employees: 
Headquarters: 
Regional Offices: 

$41 million (forecast) 
November, 1997 
400 worldwide 
Burlington, MA USA 
London, UK 
Tel Aviv, Israel 
San Diego, CA USA 

5 £LRON 
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E-Business Defined 

> "E-business occurs 
whenever customers 
and partners interact 
electronically." 
-- Forbes, 10/25/99 

> "e-busi-ness: The 
transformation of key 
business processes 
through Internet 
technologies." 
--IBM, 10/99 

6 £LKON 
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E-Business Market 
Growth 

7 £LRON 
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The Elron Opportunity 
> Capitalize on aggressive growth areas of 

network management that enables e-business 

> Provide integrated solutions and services for: 
• Enterprises 
• Service Providers 
• Carriers 

> Enable target markets to deliver key 
functionality their consumers need 

8 £LRON 
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Our E-Business Players 

» Application Service 
Providers |ASP) 

* inm-net Service 
Providers (ISP) 

* Content Providers 
Internet || Carriers 

* Competitive local 
Exchange Carriers CCUEQ 

* Incumbent local 
Exchange Carriers (tlEQ 

* Multi-Service Operators 
(MSO) 

* Network Service 
Providers (NSP) 

* Regional Bell 
Operating Companies 
(RBOQ 

Enterprise Organ Izat ions 

* Manufacturing 
* Healthcare 
* Education 
* Government 
* Financial 

9 £LRON 
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Elron Lines of Business 
ilSllliig-: 

Internet 
Content 
Filtering 

-W~»» m ~W" 

IkJ • MA'' ' IHA i 
mron k^oii•• iJi jijLiw» 

OSS 
Network 

Management 
(CDR 
based 

Products) 

Internet 
Access 

Management 
Government 

ftRON 
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System Integration -1999 
Revenue by Lines of Business 

11 £LRON 
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System Integration - 1999 
> From $23M in 1998 to $28M in 1999; 

21% growth in revenue 

> Israel - $21.3M ; USA - $6.7M 

> 60% of Revenue from 7 clients: 
MOD, Bezeq, El-Op, Marconi, Balal, 
Golden Channels, Quary 

> Average Billing Rates $79/Hour 
(2000 billable hours / year) 

12 > Invested $1.15M in "pure" R&D £LRON 
S O F T W A R E  



System Integration -1999 

>End of 1999 headcount - 290 
>End of 1999 developers headcount - 240 
> Number of US employees - 23 
>24% Turn Over !! 106 added; 57 left 
>Manpower utilization: 93% 
> Billable per headcount - $142,000 

13 £LRON 
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System Integration - 1999 
A chie vements 

> Stabilized operation following NCC acquisition 
>21% growth in revenue; 11% in profit 
> Established strategic partnership around two 

products; 
• HP/Agilent - Call Performance Manager 

(CPM) 
• El-Op - Imagery Information Systems 

> Initiate working relationship with Nortel and 
ECI 

14 £LRON 
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System Integration -1999 
Achievements (cont.) 

> Golden Channels - $1.6M Intertools based 
project 

> End of 1998 - 25 projects 
End of 1999 - 43 projects 

> Main New Custmers; 
HP (Agilent), ECI, Golden Channels, El-Op 
(Turkey) 

15 £LRON 
S O F T W A R E  



System Integration -1999 
Achievements (cont.) 

> Began engineering group in Burlington 

> Increased marketing activities; 
Supercom 99 (Atlnata), Telecom Geneva (with 
HP), Paris air show (Salon du Bourget), HP 
user group, Termip user group 

16 £LRON 
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System Integration -1999 
Major Open Issues 

> High attrition rate 24% 
> Human Resources requires significant 

improvement 
> Lack of second line management 
> Continued US infrastructure build-up 
> Organize around lines of business; from 

"projects" to "products" 

17 £LRON 
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System Integration - 1999 
Major Open issues 

> Bid failures; 
• Golden Lines 
• Partner 

> Delay in Israel Electrical Company project 
milestone 

18 £LRON 
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Internet Products -1999 
Achievements 

> Enterprise scalable version of Internet 
Manager has been shipped in July 

> Launch of Message Inspector in May 1999 

> IDC identified Internet Manager as No. 1 
best selling corporate Internet Access 
Control product 

> Reposition the division as an Internet 
Policy Management / Content Filtering 

19 company £LRON 
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Internet Products -1999 
Achievements (cont.) 

> Closed Enterprise deals for content 
filtering products; 
• US Air National Guard ($480K IM) 
• Lawrence Livermore National Labs 

($140k Ml) 
• Wall Mart ($65k IM) 
• Lockheed Martin ($50k IM) 
• 20th Century Fox ($50K IM,MI) 
• Veterans Administration ($43K IM) 

£LRON 
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Internet Products -1999 
Achievements (cont.) 

> Relocate offices to new facilities in 
Burlington MA 

> Increased corporate awareness - strong 
press and media coverage 

> Began partnerships and OEM activities ; 
Critical Path, Frontier, USAnet, Bell 
Atlantic, Data General, Unifies ail 

> Hired VP Sales - Mike Crismond, effective 
November 1. 

21 £LRON 
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Internet Products - 1999 
Major Open issues 

> Spin-off of Internet Policy Management as 
an independent company 

> In Process of hiring new CEO to lead a 
potential spin-off 

> Bandwidth Optimizer - poor results 

22 £LRON 
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Elron Software 

Year 2000 Plan 
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Existing Lines of Business 
•iisi 

Internet 
Content 
Filtering 
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Elron Software, Inc. 

OSS 
Network 

Management 
(CDR 
based 

Products) 

Internet 
Access 

Management 
E-Finance Government 
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Year 2000 Lines of Business 

Elron Software. Inc. 

Internet Policy 
Management 

Internet 
Content 
Filtering 

Telecommunication Israeli 
Software Operation 
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Internet Policy 
Management 

Company 
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Internet Policy Management 

Mission Statement 

Internet Policy 
Management Solutions 

for Enterprise Class Networks 
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Internet Policy Management 
Content Filtering: The Problem 

> Organizations must address the risks 
of providing Internet connectivity: 
• Legal liability 
• Employee productivity 
• Network slowdowns 

> Service Providers are looking for new 
sources of revenue 
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Internet Policy Management 

The Elron Solution: 

> The CommandView product family includes: 
• Internet Manager, the market leader for managing 

corporate web surfing 
• Message Inspector, the only context-sensitive 

content filtering solution for E-mail, FTP and 
Newsgroups 

Unique capability: inspection technology checks 
content of web sites and context of e-messages 
faster and more accurate 

£LRON 
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Internet Policy Management 

Market Size 

> Corporate web filtering market -
$250M by 2003 

> E-mail, Newsgroups, FTP and Chat 
filtering -$1.2B by 2003 

30 £LRON 
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Internet Policy Management 

Key intellectual property 

> Full Text Analysis (FTA) Patents -
• Statistical Dynamics Ranking -

approved 
• Automatic Collection identification -

pending 
• Automatic statistic-based SPAM 

detection - pending 

> Exclusive web site classification 
with SmartList™ 

£LRON 
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Internet Policy Management 

Key intellectual property 

>CommandView /^bhitecture 
provides: 
• Gating Services 
• Shared Services 
• Java based central policy and 

reporting console 

32 £LRON 
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Internet Policy Management 

Competitive Differentiation 

> Only Full Text Analysis (FTA) for web, 
E-mail, Newsgroups and FTP 

> Most flexibility to fit organizational 
policy needs 

> High performance engine providing 
most scalable solution 
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Internet Policy Management 

Customer List 
More than 3,500 organizations 
rely on Internet Manager and 
Message Inspector: 
• 20th Century Fox 
• The Coca Cola Bottling Company 
• City of Boston 
• Westinghouse 
• US Army Corps of Engineers 
• Chanel 
• Ford Motor Company 

£LRON 
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Internet Policy Management 

Five Key Initiatives 

> CommandView SMB (Baseline Business) 

> CommandView Enterprise 

> CommandView SP 

> Brand and Corporate Profile Building 

> Partnerships and OEM 
£LRON 
S O F T W A R E  



Internet Policy Management 

Legacy - Action Items 

> SofTrack - sell customer list 

> Y2K - Continue support through 2000 

> FireWall / Bandwidth Optimizer - investigate 
sale / OEM 
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The 
Re-Organization 

of the 
System Integration 

Division 
around 

Product Lines 
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System Integration 
Year2000 Objectives 

> A US TeleSoft product company based on 
licensable products bundled with projects; 
Intertools, CPM, AMOS 

>Two lines of business in TeleSoft; 
IP and CDR based 
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System Integration 
Year2000 Objectives 

> Main Customers: Nortel Networks, Bezeq, 
Golden Channels, NTT communications, 
Ericsson, Pelephone, HP/Agilent 

> Only the Israeli operation will focus on 
Government and E-Finance 
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System Integration 
Year2000 Objectives 

> Recruit high level management for new 
organization 

> Initiate search for TeleSoft acquisition in 
the US 

> Revenue aimed at 38 Million 

£LRON 
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System Integration 
Year2000 Objectives 

> Significant R&D investment in CDR 
applications 

> Intertools product positioning 

> Develop and execute transition plan to 
restructure the organization; 
H&R, Sales & Marketing, Business 
Development, Operations 

41 £LRON 
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Elron Electronic Industries Proprietary and Confidential 

Star Technologies 

1. Introduction 

STAR is a very skilled software projects company. It takes responsibility for 
developing and delivering complete, turn-key system solutions to various mission 
critical systems in several sectors of business: telecom and networking, banking and 
financial services, military data communications, and a few others. During its years of 
operation, STAR has accumulated expertise in the following areas of technology: 
• State of the art software engineering methodologies for large-scale software 

systems development 
• Telephony Network Management (TMN) 
• Data Network Management 
• Network Performance Management 
• Internet Technologies (TCP/IP, HTTP, PPP) 
• Internet Routing and Access Technologies 
• Bank Branch Systems 
• Secure Remote Access 
• Home/Corporate Secure On-Line Banking 
• Internet Based Home Banking 
• Internet Based Information Systems 
• Military Messaging Systems 
• Imagery Systems 
• Data Transport over Military Tactical Radio 

2. Technology assets of STAR 

The assets of STAR fall into the following categories: 
• A management team experienced in the business processes of STAR. 
• A core group of approximately 60 senior software engineers, project managers and 

division managers, who have common skill sets in software engineering, project 
management, and the actual technologies in which STAR is engaged. 

• Other professional workers - teams of engineers with prior experience in each of 
the technologies listed above. 

• Engineering "know how" (which exists in the knowledge of those engineers) from 
past projects, encompassing basic technologies, design of previous systems, and 
familiarity with a large body of existing code in the various projects the 
company has delivered. 

• Actual design documents of all previous projects, together with people who know 
them. 

• Existing code ("black") - code which definitely belongs to customers of past 
projects, but STAR can negotiate re-use and re-sale if and when the opportunity 
arises. 
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STAR has been doing projects for Bezeq for many years. Bezeq projects constitute 
approximately 18% of STAR's annual income. In a large portion of these projects, 
STAR has developed large scale, real time network management systems. This 
activity and accumulated expertise put STAR in a leadership position in this 
specialized field of Telephony Network Management. 

Telephony Network Management (TMN) is the set of technologies used by 
Telephone Companies all over the world to manage the telephone networks. Along 
with the technologies there is a multi-billion dollar market for software, systems, and 
services for TMN. This market is expected to grow at a very high rate, due to the 
current deregulation in world telephony, and the blurring of boundaries and rising 
competition between telephone networks, cable networks, and cellular systems. 
Appendix A below contains an excerpt from a recent report by Lehman Brothers, 
describing the "TMN Industry". We believe that STAR's expertise and proficiency in 
TMN is one of its most important assets. 

The most prominent TMN system developed by STAR is in the "Merkaz Gibuy" 
project for Bezeq. The project started in 1990 and has been going on since then, with 
additions, enhancements and modifications. The system is called "AMOS" -
Administration, Maintenance, and Operations System. It is a real-time management 
system, running on Digital "Alpha" computers. AMOS is connected to all of Bezeq's 
230 telephone exchanges, spread out all over Israel. STAR developed specific 
interfaces to the (proprietary) management ports of Alcatel System-12, Nortel 
(Telrad) DMS-100, and Teledata telephone exchanges. AMOS uses various standard 
and proprietary protocols for interaction with the telephone exchanges. An AMOS 
operator's console shows a graphic map of the entire Israeli telephone network, with 
colors indicating the status of each and every telephone exchange. The system 
generates alarms for faults in the telephone network. By "zooming in" on a region or 
a specific exchange, the operator can obtain detailed information describing the 
configuration parameters, the current load, and various alarm and fault indicators for 
each of the exchange's functions. Logging of events is automatic. The system 
provides rich and flexible reporting capabilities from the log files. 

AMOS also provides the operator with the ability to perform control operations in the 
telephone network. The operator can change the settings of parameters within each 
exchange, perform remote tests, and perform various actions in order to bypass or 
correct failures in the network. 

The main AMOS system is deployed at a Bezeq facility. An operational backup 
system, which is connected on-line to the telephone network, is installed at STAR 
premises, to be used as a disaster recovery system in case the main system is damaged 
for any reason. 
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STAR is now engaged in a project of upgrading and enhancing AMOS. The system is 
being ported to Windows NT platform, and over 100 new functions are being added. 
The project is scheduled for completion by 10/98. 

STAR wants to enhance AMOS in a way that will make it into a sellable "product". 

A second large scale management system which was developed by STAR for Bezeq 
is the "Access 7" system, for monitoring and management of the CCSS7 signaling 
network of the Israeli telephone network. CCSS7 (Common Channel Signaling 
System #7) is a modern control protocol used by telephone exchanges for the purpose 
of setting up inter-exchange telephone calls. During the early 1990's, Bezeq upgraded 
the entire telephone network and deployed a country wide CCSS7 network, which 
allows Bezeq to provide advanced services (such as call-waiting, call-back, calling 
number identification, and more) and ISDN services in the telephone network. 

STAR developed and installed for Bezeq a Surveillance System for the Signaling 
System # 7 - Full deployment of national coverage for surveillance of Signaling links 
providing Alarm collection, Traffic Monitoring, Call Trace and Protocol Analysis as 
well as Q.752 Statistic collection. A similar project is now in progress for Pelephone 
- a cellular network operator. 

The system is based on a specific HP product for interaction with CCSS7 systems. 
The system provides status monitoring and reporting, load monitoring and analysis, 
fault alarms, and re-routing capabilities. A function of load trend analysis and 
planning is also provided. 

Bill Verification is a derivative project, designed to use data from Call Detail Records 
to verify the billing by other service operators. 

Another project in this area is the "CellSight" system, developed for a US cellular 
operator - LCC of McLean, VA. CellSight is a network performance analysis tool for 
cellular networks. 

CellSIGHT is the first tool of its kind that can both monitor and analyze statistics 
from telecommunications network components such as switches and OMCs. 
CellSIGHT has multiple applications for a wireless network operation. It allows RF 
and System Performance Engineers to isolate traffic congestion, identify overloaded 
control channels, and monitor key network performance metrics such as blocked call 
statistics, dropped call statistics, overall quality of radio links, and handover failures. 
Operations and Optimization Engineers use CellSIGHT to identify day-to-day 
network problems such as congestion, drops on the air interface, and fixed network 
utilization. Traffic Engineers use it to forecast medium-to-long-term site and network 
provisioning, and to evaluate usage patterns. And CellSIGHT provides management 
with customized reports on market, regional, and overall network performance. 
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STAR also developed Q3 Mediation Devices (MD) for Bezeq's management systems. 
A Q3 Mediation Device translates the proprietary network management protocol of a 
specific type of devices into a standard network management protocol (typically 
CMIP) which is used by the carrier's Operations Support Systems. "Q3 Mediation 
Devices" are defined in ITU international standards as a means of enabling 
communications between "legacy systems" and modern network management 
systems, which are obliged to use CMIP (Common Management Information 
Protocol) in communicating with managed devices. 

STAR performed the development and management of an International tender for 
Intelligent Network (IN) services for two leading Telecom operators (Bezeq and 
Pelephone). Tasks included the analysis of architecture of SMS (Service Management 
System), SCP (Service Control Point), integration with existing SSPs (Service 
Switching Points), Integration with existing MIS, integration into existing TMN 
network, Definition of Intelligent Network Services to be supported. 

3.3 Data Network Management 

STAR has considerable experience and expertise in the field of data network 
management, with Bezeq, again, as the largest customer. STAR's experience in this 
field is diverse. It has developed management applications that run on the popular HP 
Open View and IBM Netview platforms, stand-alone network management systems, 
and embedded SNMP agents for various network devices. Expertise in network 
management is rather scarce in the marketplace. With the opening of the Israeli 
telecom market to competition, demand for this capability will increase. 

STAR s entry into the field of developing embedded software is noteworthy, as this 
field is markedly different from all other activities the company is engaged in. 
Developing embedded software requires different hardware and software tools, 
different methods and procedures, and different skills than those used for "ordinary" 
software development. STAR won a contract for developing an SNMP agent to a US 
customer, at a stage where it had no experience in embedded systems whatsoever. It 
hired experienced engineers in this field, and quickly became a competent developer 
of embedded systems. Our discussions with people from Racal Datacom, STAR's 
customer for embedded applications, confirmed their satisfaction with the quality of 
the delivered products. 

STAR performed additional projects of adaptation of SNMP agents into various 
networking devices, for several customers. These included development of SNMP 
agents for ISDN PBXs (Teleos), ADSL/HDSL modems (Orckit), and X.400 MTAs. 

Another large network management project was performed by STAR for Bezeq. It 
involved the design and implementation of a Network Management System which 
provide the operator an overall view of the SIFRANET Network. Sifranet is the 
infrastructure through which Bezeq provides digital leased lines to customers in 

- 11 -
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Israel. Major customers of Sifranet include all of the large banks, all of the Israeli 
ISP's, and the majority of industrial and high-tech companies in Israel. Sifranet 
provides leased line services at speeds ranging from 64 Kbps through 2 Mbps. It is 
based on high speed multiplexers by Newbrige, Superate and Timeplex. 

STAR's network management system allows Bezeq to install a management station at 
the customer premises, which gives the customer complete status of his leased lines 
throughout the network. STAR has aspirations to turn this system into a resellable 
product. 

STAR also developed a diagnostic tool for the Sifranet network, using Expert System 
technologies. 

STAR was involved as professional consultant to Bezeq in performing 
interoperability testing of a pilot public ATM network with multi vendor ATM 
switches for determination of issues required for Telecommunications operator to run 
a public ATM service. Issues examined include security, Network Management of 
multi-vendor ATM network, billing, interoperability, application support. 

Other projects where STAR developed network management systems include the 
following: 

• Development of Performance application for Frame Relay Access Devices on 
HP Open View. 

• Development of a Network Management application for a private X.400 
Message Handling Network based on X.400 MTAs . 

• Management app developed on Netview 6000. 
• Embedding a Netview Service Point Agent in to a Network Access Device. 
• Development of an SNMP agent in a low cost DSU/CSU. 
• Research and Development into Browser Based Management e.g. Network 

Management of Web components with Browser look and feel Graphical User 
Interface. 

3.4 Network Performance Management 

Network performance management is a sub-area of network management. STAR has 
experience in this area for both data and voice networks. STAR developed tools for 
identifying bottlenecks and problem areas, tools for actively measuring the 
performance of network elements, and tools for predicting growth patterns and 
planning network expansion. 

Among STAR's project in this area are components of the CellSIGHT system 
(mentioned previously) developed for LCC, components of the CCSS7 surveillance 
system, components of the AMOS system, and the InterTrend and InterMeter 
components of the InterTools package. 
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February 24, 1999 

Mr. Koby Ben-Zvi 
Elron Electronic Industries Ltd. 
P. O. B. 1573 
Haifa 31015 
ISRAEL 

Dear Koby: 

At your request, Burton Grad Associates, Inc. (BGAI) has determined the value of the 3,600,000 
common stock shares in the Elron Software, Inc. Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) as of 
December 31, 1998. This value is based upon the fair market value of Elron as of December 31, 
1998 and the number of other preferred and common shares of Elron stock outstanding at that date. 

The attached report describes and carries through the valuation process; it includes appendices 
providing source data and detailing the calculations. 

Based on this analysis, BGAI values the 3,600,000 Elron Software, Inc. ESOP common stock shares 
as worth $0.1569 per share as of December 31, 1998. 

Sincerely, 

Burton Grad 

Enclosure 
BG:4087 
cc: Mr. Doron Birger 
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SECTION I. Objectives and Work Process 

At your request, Burton Grad Associates, Inc. (BGAI) has valued the 3,600,000 shares of common 
stock assigned to the Elron Software, Inc. (Elron) Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) as of 
December 31, 1998. This per share value is based upon the fair market value of Elron Software as 
of December 31, 1998 and the total number of outstanding common and preferred shares as of that 
date. 

Work Process 

1. Determined the fair market value of Elron's NMD Cambridge Operations using its trailing 
twelve-month revenue and operating income and a BGAI projection of future revenue and 
operating income. 

2. Determined the fair market value of Elron's NCC business based principally on price paid for 
the acquisition in December 1998. 

3. Determined the business enterprise value for Elron, making necessary adjustments for tangible 
assets and liabilities. This is equivalent to the fair market value of Elron's equity as of the 
valuation date, if Elron were a public company. This was discounted to establish equivalent 
private company value. 

4. The Elron fair market value was then divided by the number of outstanding preferred, 
common and ESOP common shares to yield current value per share. 

5. For the ESOP shares, the price/share was discounted to recognize that those options 
represent only a minority interest. 



SECTION II. Valuation of Elron Software. Tnc. 

In 1997, Elron Software, Inc. was established by Elron Electronics Industries, Ltd. (EEI) to pursue 
aggressive worldwide growth, principally through the acquisition, development and marketing of 
advanced, high technology systems and applications software products. Elron Software plans to 
grow primarily by acquiring under-performing software product marketing companies (U. S. or 
Europe-based) and then acquiring or licensing advanced technologies or products from Israel-based 
companies. This combination should yield high revenue growth and high returns on both the 
acquisition costs and the additional capital investments required. 

Elron Software has made two acquisitions so far: 

ON Technology's Management and Network Security business in Cambridge, Massachusetts 
on October 29, 1997 (NMD Cambridge Operations) 

• NCC's total operations in Israel, Europe and the U. S. on December 3, 1998 (NCC) 

The valuation of Elron Software consists of valuing each of these business units separately and then 
determining the overall company value, considering balance sheet items. 

A. Cambridge Based Operations 

The Elron Software operation in Cambridge provides a variety of communications-related 
software products to small and medium customers, primarily in the Americas. The 1997 pro 
forma revenue for this operation was $22,200,000 Because of the previous integration with the 
rest of the ON Technology organization, the operating income figures for 1997 are not available. 

In 1998, the Elron Cambridge revenues were $13,991,000 and the operating income was 
$(1,867,000) (see Appendix B-l). The Elron projection for Cambridge for 1999 shows a revenue 
plan of $18,245,000 and on operating income projection of $880,000 (see Appendix B-2). 

The Cambridge operations are in a highly competitive marketplace, both for products and for 
customers; as of year end 1998, Elron Cambridge had not yet marketed any unique, high value 
products or identified any special market niches. However, remarketing licenses have been 
negotiated with Israeli companies for new technologies and products which should support the 
more optimistic 1999 revenue projections. Costs have been brought under better control so that 
the operating income objectives for 1999 can be achieved if revenue objectives are realized. 

Elron Cambridge has not yet prepared any long-term forecasts, but it is BGAI's opinion that the 
selected market segment will continue to grow and that Elron Cambridge will continue to be a 
valuable secondary player in that market, growing with the long-term trends and producing 
reasonable operating income. 
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Using public market valuation criteria, a $15-$20 million software products company, benefiting 
from the growth in communications and Internet-related systems, would be valued at 1.5-2.5 
times revenue, assuming a 20% per year growth rate and a 15% operating income margin. 
Unfortunately, Elron Cambridge's track record does not meet these criteria. Therefore, at best, 
Elron Cambridge would currently be valued (as a public company) at one times twelve months 
trailing revenue or $14,000,000. Since there were no profits in 1998, no earnings-based public 
market ratios are applicable. 

The public market-based valuation must be reduced to recognize the lower value placed on a 
private company. Using a 30% discount, the market-based value would be $9,800,000. 

Looking forward, BGAI believes that Elron Cambridge should be able to grow at 20% per year 
and by 2001 generate a pre-tax 15% operating income. If so, the net present value of the 
projected five-year after-tax cash flow from this business would be $7,023,000, assuming a 
discount rate of 15% (see Appendix B-4). 

Blending the market-based and the projected cash flow values on a 50-50 basis, the Elron 
Cambridge operations would be valued at $8,412,000 without any adjustments for balance sheet 
assets or liabilities. 

As a matter of reasonableness, the purchase price in November 1997 was $13,081,000 plus assets 
of $4,846,000 less liabilities of $684,000. This yields an effective acquisition cost of $8,919,000 
(see Appendix B-3). Because of the lower revenues and substantial losses in 1998, BGAI 
believes that the value ofElron Cambridge would have decreased somewhat during 1998. 

B. NCC Acquisition 

NCC has been a successful Israel-based high technology professional services firm with high 
profile customers, primarily in Israel. The custom programs which NCC has designed and 
implemented have been used to provide high performance communications and Internet related 
functions. The pro forma NCC Income Statement for 1998 is shown in Appendix C-l. 

However, NCC was acquired by Elron Software primarily for its in-process R&D technologies 
which are being incorporated in future products to be sold on a worldwide basis to major 
telecommunications, banking and other business and government institutions. 

While there are aggressive plans for NCC's growth in both product and professional services 
revenues, it is much too soon after the acquisition to attribute any incremental value to this new 
operation above the acquisition price paid. 

Elron paid $44,855,000 to acquire all of the assets of NCC (see Appendix C-2), including 
$870,000 in acquisition transaction costs, but obtained net tangible assets (less liabilities) of 
$3,362,000. This constitutes a net effective acquisition cost of $41,493,000. This is the figure 
which will be used for the NCC value. 
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C. Company Valuation 

From the results of the calculations in IIA and IIB, the overall value of Elron Software can be 
calculated as $49,905,000 as of December 31, 1998. 

However, in acquiring the ON Technology operations and NCC, Elron incurred a major amount 
of debt both to buy the assets and to fund the losses in Elron Cambridge. As of December 31, 
1998, Elron Software's balance sheet (Appendix D-l) shows $37,800,000 of long-term debt with 
the remainder of the assets and liabilities being reasonably in balance (although somewhat on the 
negative side because of $2,355,000 due to EEI). In addition, the two new subsidiaries, Elron 
Software NCC and Elron Software NCC Export, have $4,200,000 and $4,685,000 in debt 
respectively which are not shown on the Elron Software Cambridge statements. The total debt 
of $46,685,000 (Appendix D-2) must be deducted from the computed company value This 
results in a net equity value of $3,220,000. 
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SECTION III. Valuation of Stock 

As of December 31, 1998, per Appendix D-2, Elron Software had issued and outstanding 7.2 million 
shares of common stock and 13.2 million shares of preferred stock, all of which were held by Elron 
Electronics (EEI). In addition, Elron Software had provided 3.6 million shares of Elron Software to 
its Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP). The common stock in the ESOP is exercisable at 
$.50/share to company employees in the United States and Israel over a two to seven-year period. 

The preferred stock has a first liquidity provision, but is otherwise identical to the common stock. 
Since all of the outstanding preferred and common shares (other than in the ESOP) are held by EEI, 
BGAI has valued them equally, not discounting the majority held common shares for lack of the 
liquidity provision. 

The company value of $3,220,000, divided by 24.0 million shares, would give a value of $.1342 per 
share. 

However, if all of the 3.6 million ESOP-held common shares could and had been exercised on 
December 31, 1998, then the company value would have been increased by $1.8 million ($.50/share); 
the new total value would have been $5,020,000. Dividing that figure by 24.0 million shares gives 
a value of $.2092 per share. 

Since the ESOP shares would, in total, only represent a minority interest of less than 20% versus the 
majority interest of EEI of over 80%, the value of these minority ESOP shares should be reduced by 
25%. This yields a December 31, 1998 value of $. 1569 per share for the 3.6 million shares held in 
the Employee Stock Option Plan as of that date. 
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HvperBranch Forecast Assumptions 

A. Uarye Financial Institutions (average 3,000 seats) 

Number of New Licensey(ban|«only^^^^^ 

1999 j 2000 ; 2001 j 2002 j 2003 ! 2004 j 2005 } Total 

i Americas ° i i i 2 j 3 i 4 I 5 | 5 j 20 

i International 0 j 2 j 3 j 4 j 4 j 4 j 4 21 

• No new sales after 2005 

• Price/Sale 
Americas - $600k 
International - $600k 

• Upgrades/Add-ons (same for large/medium/small and for Americas and International) 
+ 5%/year on installed base for 1999-2005 (.33 of maintenance revenue), drops for 
2006-2008 

• Professional Services (same for large/medium/small and for Americas and International) 
20% of new license fee 

• Maintenance and Support (same for large/medium/small and for Americas and 
International) 

Fee is 15% of revenue on installed base 
100% initial maintenance 
5%/year erosion on installed base for 1999-2003; 10% for 2004-2005, 15% for 2006, 
20% for 2007; 25% for 2008 
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B. Medium Financial Institutions (average 2,000 seats) 

Number of New Licenses (bank only) 

1999 i 2000 i 2001 i 2002 | 2003 j 2004 j 2005 1 Total 1 

i Americas 0 j 11 2 1 3 i 3 j 3 i 3 1 5 1  

i International o i 2 i 2 i 2 i 3 ! 3 i 3 i 15 ! 

• No new sales after 2005 

• Price/Sale 
Americas - $450k 
International - $450k 

C. Small Financial Institutions (average 1,200 seats) 

Number of New Licenses (bank only) 

1999 i 2000 1 2001 2002 ! 2003 ; 2004 i 2005 Total i 

j Americas 0 j i i 2 | 2 j 2 1 2 i 1 10 

j International 0 j 11 2 ! 3 ! 3 j 3 1 3 15 ! 

• No new sales after 2005 

• Price/Sale 
Americas - $300k 
International - $3 00k 
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Cost and NPV Valuation Assumptions - HvperBranch 

General Tnformation Americas and International 

j Tax Rate ! 38% j 

i Elron j 
i Return on Investment i 25% 

i Cost of $ (Prime Rate) j 7.75% j 

j Discount Rate j 20% after tax j 

j Operation Costs \ 99 j 00 j. 01 j 02 j 03 i 04 j 05 | 06 j 07 j 08 j 

j Cost of Revenue : .15 i .15 
j product delivery and 

professional services 

| .15 | .14 j .13 j .12 ! .11 j .10 1 .10 | .10 | 

j R&D Cost j .15 j .15 
! maintenance j ! 
j improvement 
j extension i i 

.15 j .14 j .13 I .12 j .11 j .10 j .10 j .10 I 

j Marketing, Sales and 
| Support | .40 j .40 j .35 j .34 j .33 | .32 | .31 j .25 j .25 j .25 ! 

| G&A j .15 j .15 | .15 | .15 j .15 j .15 j .15 | .15 j .15 j .15 j 

j Operating Income j .15: .15: .20 j .23 j .26 j .29 j .32 j .40 ! .40 j .40 j 

Assumptions 
• R&D will not include any separately priced enhancements except those in current 

development plans nor any replacement products 
• 30% of R&D subsidized by Israeli government R&D funding (not used as adjustment) 
• 100% ownership by NCC of all technologies used for HyperBranch 
• None of these NCC technologies have ever been used in a released product 
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% Completion Analysis - InterTools 

Intertools ($000) (% of R&D) 

R&D work performed 1/1/98 
through 12/2/98 (acq. date) 600 67% 

R&D work required 
12/3/98 - through 3/31/99 
(FAS86) 

300* 33% 

Total R&D through FAS86 900 100% 

Development work required 
4/1/99 - 6/30/99 
FAS86 through Release 

300* 

Total Development costs 1200 

* Estimate that $525,000 of this $600,000 will be spent during calendar year 1999 
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% Completion Analysis - HvperBranch 

HyperBranch ($000) (% of R&D) 

R&D Work performed from 
1/1/98 through 12/2/98 
(acquisition date) 232 52% 

R&D Work required 
12/3/98-4/30/99 (FAS86) 216* 48% 

Total R&D through FAS86 448 100% 

Development Work required 
5/1/99-12/31/99 
FAS86 through Release 

414* 

Total Development Cost 862 

* Estimate that $600,000 of this $630,000 will be spent during calendar year 1999 
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% Completion Analysis - InterTools 

rntertools ($000) (% of R&D) 

R&D work performed 1/1/98 
through 12/2/98 (acq. date) 600 67% 

R&D work required 
12/3/98 - through 3/31/99 
(FAS86) 

300* 33% 

Total R&D through FAS86 900 100% 

Development work required 
4/1/99 - 6/30/99 
FAS86 through Release 

300* 

Total Development costs 1200 

* Estimate that $525,000 of this $600,000 will be spent during calendar year 1999 
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% Completion Analysis - HvperBranch 

HyperBrancb ($000) (% of R&D) 

R&D Work performed from 
1/1/98 through 12/2/98 
(acquisition date) 232 52% 

R&D Work required 
12/3/98-4/30/99 (FAS86) 216* 48% 

Total R&D through FAS86 448 100% 

Development Work required 
5/1/99-12/31/99 
FAS86 through Release 

414* 

Total Development Cost 862 

* Estimate that $600,000 of this $630,000 will be spent during calendar year 1999 
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1 Projections for HyperBranch - Revenues (Americas 21 

2 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
3 
4 

($000) 1999 

R New Product Licenses 
R 
7 # of New Customers 0 1 2 3 4 5 5 0 0 0 20 

R Revenue - Licenses 0 600 1200 1800 2400 3000 3000 0 0 0 12000 

q Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 600 1800 3600 6000 9000 12000 12000 12000 12000 

1 o Medium Financial Institutions 
11 # of New Customers 0 1 2 3 3 3 3 0 0 0 15 

1? Revenue - Licenses 0 450 900 1350 1350 1350 1350 0 0 0 6750 

13 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 450 1350 2700 4050 5400 6750 6750 6750 6750 

14 Small Financial Institutions 
13 # of New Customers 0 1 2 2 2 2 1 0 0 0 10 

16 Revenue - Licenses 0 300 600 600 600 600 300 0 0 0 3000 

17 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 300 900 1500 2100 2700 3000 3000 3000 3000 

18 Total - New License Revenue 0 1350 2700 3750 4350 4950 4650 0 0 0 21750 

19 
?n Uoarades/Add-ons - Revenue 
71 Large Financial Institutions 0 0 28 85 169 267 385 356 236 91 1617 

22 Medium Financial Institutions 0 0 21 63 127 180 230 198 132 51 1002 

?3 Small Financial Institutions 0 0 14 42 70 93 115 87 58 22 502 

?4 Total Upgrade Revenue 0 0 63 190 366 540 730 642 426 165 3122 

75 Cumulative Total-Upgrade Revenues 0 0 63 254 620 1159 1889 2531 2957 3122 

76 
77 Professional Services 
78 Large Financial Institutions 0 120 240 360 480 600 600 0 0 0 2400 

79 Medium Financial Institutions 0 90 180 270 270 270 270 0 0 0 1350 

30 Small Financial Institutions 0 60 120 120 120 120 60 0 0 0 600 

31 Total Professional Services 0 270 540 750 870 990 930 0 0 0 4350 

32 
33 
34 
35 
36 Maintenance 
37 Large Financial Institutions 0 90 270 539 897 1298 1676 1478 1218 927 8391 

38 Medium Financial Institutions 0 68 202 404 605 774 934 824 679 517 5007 
39 Small Financial Institutions 0 45 135 224 314 386 410 362 298 227 2401 

40 Total Maintenance 0 203 607 1168 1817 2458 3020 2663 2194 1670 15799 

41 
42 Total Revenues 
43 Large Financial Institutions 0 810 1738 2783 3946 5164 5661 1834 1454 1018 24409 

44 Medium Financial Institutions 0 608 1303 2088 2352 2574 2784 1022 810 568 14109 

45 Small Financial Institutions 0 405 869 987 1104 1200 885 449 356 249 6503 

46 
47 Grand Total Revenue 0 1823 3910 5858 7403 8938 9330 3305 2620 1835 45021 

48 
49 
50 
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51 Revenue Worksheets - HyperBranch (Americas) 22 

52 
53 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 

54 
55 
56 Large Unit License Fee 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 

57 Medium Unit License Fee 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 

58 Small Unit License Fee 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 

59 
60 Upgrades/Add-ons <ratio to maint bases-
61 Large .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .25 .20 .10 

6? Medium .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .25 .20 .10 

63 Small .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .25 .20 .10 

64 
65 Professional Services <ratio to new lic> 
66 Large .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 20 .20 .20 .20 
67 Medium .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 
68 Small .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 
69 
70 Maintenance Calculation • Large 
71 Previous Year Maintenance 0 90 270 539 897 1298 1676 1478 1218 
72 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
73 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 86 256 512 808 1168 1424 1182 913 6349 
74 New Licenses and New Upgrades 0 600 1228 1885 2569 3267 3385 356 236 91 
75 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
76 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
77 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 0 90 184 283 385 490 508 53 35 14 2043 
78 Total Maintenance-Large Revenue 0 90 270 539 897 1298 1676 1478 1218 927 8391 
79 
80 Maintenance Calculation - Medium 
81 Previous Year Maintenance 0 68 202 404 605 774 934 824 679 
82 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
83 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 64 192 384 545 697 794 659 509 3844 
84 New Licenses and New Upgrades 0 450 921 1413 1477 1530 1580 198 132 51 
85 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
86 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
87 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 0 68 138 212 222 229 237 30 20 8 1163 
88 Total Maintenance-Medium Revenue 0 68 202 404 605 774 934 824 679 517 5007 
89 
90 Maintenance Calculation - Small 
91 Previous Year Maintenance 0 45 135 224 314 386 410 362 298 
92 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
93 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 43 128 213 282 348 348 289 223 1875 
94 New Licenses and New Upgrades 0 300 614 642 670 693 415 87 58 22 
95 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
96 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
97 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 0 45 92 96 101 104 62 13 9 3 525 
98 Total Maintenance - Small 0 45 135 224 314 386 410 362 298 227 2401 
99 
100 
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101 Projections for HyperBranch Revenues (International) 23 

10? 
10? 

a
 

o
 

o
 1999 2000 2001 2002 2002 2004 200S 2006 2007 2008 Total 

104 
105 New Product Licenses 
106 Large Financial Institutions 
107 # of New Customers 0 2 3 4 4 4 0 0 0 21 

108 Revenue - Licenses 0 1200 1800 2400 2400 2400 2400 0 0 0 12600 

109 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 1200 3000 5400 7800 10200 12600 12600 12600 12600 
110 Medium Financial Institutions 
111 # of New Customers 0 3 3 3 0 0 0 15 
112 Revenue - Licenses 0 900 900 900 1350 1350 1350 0 0 0 6750 
113 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 900 1800 2700 4050 5400 6750 6750 6750 6750 
114 Small Financial Institutions 
115 # of New Customers 0 1 3 3 3 0 0 0 15 
116 Revenue - Licenses 0 300 600 900 900 900 900 0 0 0 4500 
117 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 300 900 1800 2700 3600 4500 4500 4500 4500 
118 Total - New License Revenue 0 2400 3300 4200 4650 4650 4650 0 0 0 23850 
119 
120 Uparades/Add-ons - Revenue 
121 Large Financial Institutions 0 0 56 141 253 346 434 370 246 95 1941 
122 Medium Financial Institutions 0 0 42 85 127 180 230 198 132 51 1044 
123 Small Financial Institutions 0 0 14 42 84 120 153 132 88 34 668 
124 Total Upgrade Revenue 0 0 113 268 464 646 817 700 465 180 3653 
125 Cumulative Total-Upgrade Revenues 0 0 113 381 845 1491 2308 3008 3474 3653 
126 
127 Professional Services 
128 Large Financial Institutions 0 240 360 480 480 480 480 0 0 0 2520 
129 Medium Financial Institutions 0 180 180 180 270 270 270 0 0 0 1350 
130 Small Financial Institutions 0 60 120 180 180 180 180 0 0 0 900 
131 Total Professional Services 0 480 660 840 930 930 930 0 0 0 4770 
132 
133 
134 
135 
136 Maintenance 
137 Large Financial Institutions 0 180 449 808 1166 1461 1740 1535 1264 963 9566 
138 Medium Financial Institutions 0 135 270 404 605 774 934 823 678 516 5139 
139 Small Financial Institutions 0 45 135 269 404 516 623 549 452 344 3338 
140 Total Maintenance 0 360 854 1481 2174 2751 3296 2907 2395 1823 18043 
141 
142 Total Revenues 
143 Large Financial Institutions 0 1620 2666 3829 4299 4687 5054 1904 1510 1057 26627 
144 Medium Financial Institutions 0 1215 1392 1568 2352 2574 2784 1022 810 567 14283 
145 Small Financial Institutions 0 405 869 1392 1568 1716 1856 681 540 378 9406 
146 
147 Grand Total Revenue 0 3240 4927 6789 8219 8977 9694 3607 2860 2003 50316 
148 
149 
150 
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151 Revenue Worksheets - HyperBranch (International 24 

152 
153 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 

154 
155 
156 Large Unit License Fee 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 

157 Medium Unit License Fee 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 

158 Small Unit License Fee 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 

159 
160 Upgrades/Add-ons <ratio to maint base> 
161 Large .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .25 .20 .10 

162 Medium .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .25 .20 .10 

163 Small .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .25 .20 .10 
164 
165 Professional Services <ratio to new lic> 
166 Large .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 
167 Medium .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 
168 Small .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 
169 
170 Maintenance Calculation - Large 
171 Previous Year Maintenance 0 180 449 808 1166 1461 1740 1535 1264 
172 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
173 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 171 427 768 1049 1315 1479 1228 948 7385 
174 New Licenses and New Upgrades 0 1200 1856 2541 2653 2746 2834 370 246 95 
175 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
176 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
177 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 0 180 278 381 398 412 425 55 37 14 2181 
178 Total Maintenance-Large Revenue 0 180 449 808 1166 1461 1740 1535 1264 963 9566 
179 
180 Maintenance Calculation - Medium 
181 Previous Year Maintenance 0 135 270 404 605 774 934 823 678 
182 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
183 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 128 256 384 545 697 794 659 509 3970 
184 New Licenses and New Upgrades 0 900 942 985 1477 1530 1580 198 132 51 
185 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
186 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
187 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 0 135 141 148 221 229 237 30 20 8 1169 
188 Total Maintenance-Medium Revenue 0 135 270 404 605 774 934 823 678 516 5139 
189 
190 Maintenance Calculation - Small 
191 Previous Year Maintenance 0 45 135 269 404 516 623 549 452 
192 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
193 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 43 128 256 363 465 529 439 339 2563 
194 New Licenses and New Upgrades 0 300 614 942 984 1020 1053 132 88 34 
195 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
196 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
197 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 0 45 92 141 148 153 158 20 13 5 775 
198 Total Maintenance - Small 0 45 135 269 404 516 623 549 452 344 3338 
199 
200 
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25 

203 
204 Projt scted 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 
Total 

1999-2005 
205 
">06 

($000) 1999 

">07 Americas 
•508 0 1823 3910 5858 7403 8938 9330 3305 2620 1835 45021 

•?nq 
''in Cost of revenues rate .15 .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 

">11 cost 0 273 587 820 962 1073 1026 330 262 183 5517 

91P Marketinq and sales rate .40 .40 .35 .34 .33 .32 .31 .25 .25 .25 

213 cost 0 729 1369 1992 2443 2860 2892 826 655 459 14224 

214 R and D rate .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 

218 cost 300 273 587 820 962 1073 1026 330 262 183 5817 

?1R G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

?17 cost 0 273 587 879 1110 1341 1399 496 393 275 6753 

718 Total Costs- Americas 300 1549 3128 4511 5478 6346 6344 1983 1572 1101 32312 

219 Cost/Revenue Ratio .85 .80 .77 .74 .71 .68 .60 .60 .60 

??n 
221 International 
777 Revenues 0 3240 4927 6789 8219 8977 9694 3607 2860 2003 50316 

773 
774 Cost of revenues rate .15 .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 

779 cost 0 486 739 950 1068 1077 1066 361 286 200 6235 

778 Marketing and sales rate .40 .40 .35 .34 .33 .32 .31 .25 .25 .25 

227 cost 0 1296 1724 2308 2712 2873 3005 902 715 501 16036 

728 R and D rate .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 

729 cost 300 486 739 950 1068 1077 1066 361 286 200 6535 

730 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

731 cost 0 486 739 1018 1233 1347 1454 541 429 300 7547 

73? Total Costs - International 300 2754 3941 5228 6082 6374 6592 2164 1716 1202 36353 

733 
734 Cost/Revenue Ratio - .85 .80 .77 .74 .71 .68 .60 .60 60 

735 
736 Total Costs - Worldwide 600 4303 7070 9738 11560 12720 12936 4147 3288 2303 68665 

737 
738 
739 
740 
741 
74? 
743 
744 
745 
748 
747 
748 
249 
250 
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?51 Net Present Value - HyperBranch Technologies 26 

252 
?53 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 

?54 Intertools - Americas 
755 Revenue 0 1823 3910 5858 7403 8938 9330 3305 2620 1835 45021 

?Rfi Operating Cost Ratio 1.0 .15 .20 .23 .26 .29 .32 .40 .40 .40 

?R7 Operating Income -300 273 782 1347 1925 2592 2986 1322 1048 734 12709 

?Rfl Tax Rate .38 38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 

759 Operating Income After Tax -186 169 485 835 1193 1607 1851 820 650 455 7879 

7R0 NPV Factors .917 .764 .637 .530 .442 .368 .307 .256 .213 .178 

7R1 NPV -171 129 309 443 528 592 568 210 139 81 2828 

?fi? Completion Ratio .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 

?R3 Allocable Value -89 67 161 230 274 308 295 109 72 42 1470 

7R4 
7RR 
?fifi 
7R7 
7R8 
769 
270 
771 
272 
773 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
274 Intertools - International 
775 Revenue 0 3240 4927 6789 8219 8977 9694 3607 2860 2003 50316 
276 Operating Cost Ratio 1.0 .15 .20 .23 .26 .29 .32 .40 .40 .40 
277 Operating Income -300 486 985 1561 2137 2603 3102 1443 1144 801 13963 
278 Tax Rate .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 38 .38 .38 
279 Operating Income After Tax -186 301 611 968 1325 1614 1923 895 709 497 8657 
280 NPV Factors .917 .764 .637 .530 .442 .368 .307 .256 .213 .178 
281 NPV -171 230 389 514 586 595 590 229 151 88 3201 
282 Completion Ratio .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 .52 
283 Allocable Value -89 120 202 267 305 309 307 119 79 46 1665 
284 
285 Total Worldwide NPV -341 360 698 957 1113 1187 1159 439 290 169 6029 
286 Total Worldwide Allocable -177 187 363 497 579 617 602 228 151 88 3135 
287 
288 
289 
290 
291 Selected Discount Rate - Americas .20 
292 
293 Selected Discount Rate - International .20 
294 
295 
296 
297 
298 
299 
300 
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Vfe-m-tinn ReqnirH f"r '"tanpihl,"i Val"ati0n 

J, 1. List of principal Elron/NCC customers for preceding three years and the revenues from each 

| ̂ of these accounts for each year 

•. © Analysis ofElron/NCC customer base including contract and project history 

3. Financial statements for Elron Software for the preceding ̂ years separated by principal 

1 lines of business (Cambridge and NCC) 

A Effective Elron tax rates (U.S. federal and state and international) for budget purposes as of 

1/1/00 ?>(o Vo 

y 5. Historic Elron rate of return on investments and its currentcost of money 

6. Organization chart for Elron/NCC, with number of employees by function 

V°-r ? Descriptions of previous Elron/NCC projects and deliverables 

^ „ 8. List, description, size and market share of principal competitors to Elron/NCC 

0 9. Elron/NCC operating and strategic financial forecasts 

''"r- XESS&SSS&SSZSXXXIS. 
pricing approaches, development projects, etc. 

, , • fTT, r\trr in nrnrpss research and development activities in terms of 11. Technical analysis of Elron/NCC m-process researcn aim r 
applications, industries and system functionality 

• • j cr»ri rtrnHurt* their orincipal functions and platforms for 12. Description of existing and proposed products, p 

operation 

13. Major markets (size if available), competition and prospective market share for Americas and 

international 

zr • c aariii V.P rplpased and available for delivery in both the 
N J 14. Estimate of when products or offerings will be released an 

Americas and internationally 

0 15. Pricing plans for new licenses, upgrades/add-ons, maintenance and other services (Americas 

^ • / and international) 

to-/ 
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16. Estimates of new customers and revenues from new licenses (Americas and international) 

17. Projections of ratio between upgrades/add-ons and installed base (Americas and international) 

18. Projections of ratio of services revenue to new license revenues and to upgrades/add-ons, if 
appropriate (Americas and international) 

19. Projections of initial acceptance rate of maintenance on both new licenses and on 
upgrades/add-ons; projections on maintenance erosion rates after first year. Are there any 
planned free' maintenance periods and, if so, how long? (Americas and international) 

vUa* ** Expected marketable product life in terms of sales of new licenses and continued support of 
customers. Indicate whether newer technologies are likely to obsolete these new products 
(Americas and international) 

21. Identify the expected operating costs 

• Cost of revenues 
frfr " Marketing, sales and support 

• Research and development 
• General and administrative 

p 
P'jJ 22. Projections of non-product related professional services revenue and associated personnel and 
. U support costs. f 

5243 



Subj: FW: Valuation of Assets / Liabilities to be sold to EIron Telesof t 
Date: 3/15/00 7:17:50 AM Eastern Standard Time 
From: Moshea@ncc.co.il (Moshe Attias) 
To: burtgrad@aol.com Cburtgrad@aol.com') 

—Original Message— 
From: Moshe Attias 
Sent: a Too 15 2000 14:09 
To: 'BURTORAD@AOL.COM' 
Subject: Valuation of Assets / Liabilities to be sold to EIron 
Telesoft 

Dear Mr Burton. 

I received the fax that you sent to Mr. Doron Birger regarding the 
information required for intangibles valuation. 

I will take care ofit except of paragraphs 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 & 20 
that I will ask Yair Bar-Touvto take care of. 

Best Regards, 

Moshe Attias 

— Headers 
Return-Path: <Moshea@ncc.co.il> 
Received: from rly-yg01.mx.aol.com (rly-yg01.mail.aol.com [172.18.147.1]) by air-yg01.mail.aol.com (\£9.28) with ESMTP; 
Wed, 15 Mar 2000 07:17:50-0500 
Received: from exchange1.ncc.co.il (exchange1.ncc.co.il [194.90.197.66]) by riy-yg01.mx.aol.com (v69.17) with ESMTP; 
Wed, 15 Mar 2000 07:17:33 -0500 
Received: by EXCHANGE1 with Internet Mail Service (5.5.2650.21) 

id <G70D2SQC>; Wed, 15 Mar 2000 14:14:59 +0200 
Message-ID: <0F0F605F7DF3D3118709009027E0011D06F0AC@EXCHANGE1> 
From: Moshe Attias <Moshea@ncc.co.il> 
To: '"burtgrad@aol.com'" <burtgrad@aol.com> 
Subject: FW: Valuation of Assets / Liabilities to be sold to EIron Telesof 

t 
Date: Wed, 15 Mar 2000 14:14:58 +0200 
MIME-Version: 1.0 
X-Mailer: Internet Mail SerVce (5.5.2650.21) 
Content-Type: text/plain; 

charset="iso-8859-8" 
Content-Transfer-Encoding: quoted-printable 

Wednesday, March 15, 2000 America Online: Burtgrad Page: 1 





BURTON GRAD ASSOCIATES, INC. 
7 WHITNEY STREET EXTENSION 

WESTRORT, CONNECTICUT O688O 
(203)222-8718 FAX: (203) 222-8728 

E-MAIL: BURTGRAD@AOL.COM 

Date: March 13, 2000 

To: Doron Birger 

From: Burton Grad 

Subject: Valuation of Assets/Liabilities to be Sold to Elron Telesoft 

In order to start the Elron Telesoft valuation process, I would like to have you fax or E-mail to me 
the items listed in the attached Appendix A This is the same type of materials which I received about 
one year ago in order to value the NCC intangibles as of December 3, 1998. 

In addition, please provide a fairly detailed picture of 1999 revenues and costs for the Elron/NCC 
operations, separately classifying types of revenues and costs for the products and professional 
services activities. Also, provide me with a December 31, 1999 balance sheet showing what assets 
and liabilities will be sold to Elron Telesoft. In addition, if you have any patents (or patents pending), 
please provide me with some relevant information so we can assign a value. 

Given your urgency, please fax or E-mail whatever materials you can as soon as you can. You can 
FedEx hard copies if some of the materials are tough to read. Please note our new address. 

After I see the materials, I will be able to give you an estimate of the schedule and costs. 

CONSULTANTS ON SOFTWARE 



Subj: EJjstfrHFetesoft (from Moshe Attias) 
Date: /<3/15/2000 1^33:36 PM Eastern Standard Time 
From: Vguysa@rfCc.co.il (Guy Sasson) 
To: burtgrad@aol.com (Burton Grad) 

File: ElronTel.mim (804962 bytes) 
DL "Time (50666 bps): < 4 minutes 

[This e-mail contains a MIME (Multipurpose Internet Mail Extensions) file. The file was specially formatted to be sent over the 
Internet. For more information on opening the attached file, go to Keyword: MIME.] 

Hello Burton Grad, 
I'm working with Moshe Attias. 
Attached are the following spreadsheets (I'll send them also by tax): 

J)j)st of Customers and their revenues for the year 1999. 

2) Estimate of delivery of products for the years 1999 and 2000. 

^Combined Financial Statements as of 1999. (we have the financial statements fl v 
of 1998 only in hard copy so I'll send it to you '» 
by fax only). ^ 

"A) The budget for the year 2000 (total+3 lines of business). ^ ftf* 

5) The budget for the year 1999. 

Guy Sasson. 

«Customers1999.xls>> «Products.xls>> «Combined12-99.xls>> <<Combined 
Profit and Loss2000.xls>> «profit and loss budget1999.xls» 

Headers 
Return-Path: <guysa@ncc.co.il> 
Received: from rly-yc03.mx.aol.com (rly-yc03.mail.aol.com [172.18.149.35]) by air-yc03.mail.aol.com (v69.28) with ESMTP; 
Wed, 15 Mar 2000 13:33:34 -0500 
Received: from exchange1.ncc.co.il (exchange1.ncc.co.il [194.90.197.66]) by rly-yc03.mx.aol.com (v69.17) with ESMTP; 
Wed, 15 Mar 2000 13:32:38 -0500 
Received: by EXCHANGE1 with Internet Mail Service (5.5.2650.21) 

id <G70D2STX>; Wed, 15 Mar 2000 20:30:04 +0200 
Message-ID: <0F0F605F7DF3D3118709009027E0011 D08D65E@EXCHANGE1 > 
From: Guy Sasson <guysa@ncc.co.il> 
To: Burton Grad <burtgrad@aol.com> 
Subject: Elron Telesoft (from Moshe Attias) 
Date: Wed, 15 Mar 2000 20:30:04 +0200 
MIME-Version: 1.0 
X-Mailer: Internet Mail Service (5.5.2650.21) 
Content-Type: multipart/mixed; 

boundary="—_=_NextPart_000_01BF8EAC.7B66104E" 

Wednesday, March 15, 2000 America Online: Guest Page: 1 



Num Customer In U.S. Thousands 
1 Bezek 3,808 
2 Leumi Bank 1,720 
3 Hapoalim Bank 1,100 
4 Mizrahi Bank 450 
5 Visa 170 
6 Retimtd Persons Services 170 
7 Ministry of Defense 1,095 
8 Prime Minister Office 4,565 
9 Compaq 480 
10 Elbit 800 
11 I B M  200 
12 The Stock Exgcngee of Tel-Aviv 290 • 
13 ECI Telecom 560 • 
14 Bay Networks Inc. (today Nortel) 320 . 
15 Quarry Technologies 1,390 
16 
17 

Hyneko^ NeteSh^ 
130 * 
250 

18 Golden Channels 1,545 • 
19 Process Software Corpprat1*— 460 • 
20 Clicknet Software Corpjtrat ^—* 300 • 
21 Pelephone 530 • 
22 HP 300 
23 LCC (today Ericsson NetQual) 880 
24 ELOP 2,590 . 
25 Marcon (Integrated System 1,430 
26 CitifHjjpk 200 • 
27 Jon&i,Hancock 300 • 

Others #,839 
Total 27,872 





Appendix H-1 

A B  |  C |  D |  E | F | G | H |  I  I J  | K  L 

1 Projections for InterTooIs Technologies - Revenues (Americas) 11 
2 
3 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
4 
5 New Product Licenses 
6 Communications Service Providers 
7 # of New Customers 1 3 5 8 10 8 6 0 0 0 41 
8 Revenue - Licenses 1000 3000 5000 8000 10000 8000 6000 0 0 0 41000 
9 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 1000 4000 9000 17000 27000 35000 41000 41000 41000 41000 

10 Corporate 
11 # of New Customers 1 2 4 6 8 10 10 0 0 0 41 
12 Revenue - Licenses 300 600 1200 1800 2400 3000 3000 0 0 0 12300 
13 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 300 900 2100 3900 6300 9300 12300 12300 12300 12300 
14 Vertical Network Service 
15 # of New Customers 0 2 3 4 5 5 5 0 0 0 24 
16 Revenue - Licenses 0 1000 1500 2000 2500 2500 2500 0 0 0 12000 
17 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 1000 2500 4500 7000 9500 12000 12000 12000 12000 
18 Total - New License Revenue 1300 4600 7700 11800 14900 13500 11500 0 0 0 65300 
19 
20 Uoarades/Add-ons - Revenue 
21 CSP 0 95 386 881 1685 2573 3272 2667 1835 1094 14490 
22 Corporate 0 57 179 431 832 1329 1974 1895 1308 728 8732 
23 Vertical NSP 0 0 190 500 949 1473 2040 1882 1299 722 9055 
24 Total Upgrade Revenue 0 152 754 1812 3466 5376 7286 6445 4442 2544 32277 
25 Cumulative Total-Upgrade Reve 0 152 907 2719 6185 11561 18847 25292 29733 32277 
26 
27 Professional Services 
28 CSP 500 1500 2500 4000 5000 4000 3000 0 0 0 20500 
29 Corporate 150 300 600 900 1200 1500 1500 0 0 0 6150 
30 Vertical NSP 0 500 750 1000 1250 1250 1250 0 0 0 6000 
31 Total Professional Services 650 2300 3850 5900 7450 6750 5750 0 0 0 32650 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 Maintenance 
37 CSP 150 607 1384 2647 4268 5427 6275 5734 4862 3811 35166 
38 Corporate 45 141 341 659 1110 1649 2230 2180 1940 1564 11859 
39 Vertical NSP 0 150 396 751 1231 1704 2214 2165 1927 1553 12091 

40 Total Maintenance 195 898 2121 4057 6609 8780 10720 10078 8729 6928 59116 
41 
42 Total Revenues 
43 CSP 1650 5202 9271 15529 20953 20000 18548 8401 6697 4905 111156 

44 
45 

Corporate 495 1098 2319 3789 5543 7478 8704 4075 3248 2292 39041 44 
45 Vertical NSP 0 1650 2835 4251 5930 6927 8004 4047 3225 2276 39146 

46 
47 Grand Total Revenue 2145 7950 14426 23569 32425 34406 35255 16523 13170 9472 189343 

48 
49 
50 

Elron Rev 032900.xls 3/29/00 12:59 PM 



Appendix H-1 

A B  | C |  D l  E | F | 0 | H |  I I  J  I K  L 

5 1  Revenue Worksheets - InterTools Technologies(Americas) 12 

5 ?  
5 3  ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 

5 4  
5 5  
5 6  CSP Unit License Fee 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 

57 Corporate Unit License Fee 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 

58 VNSP Unit License Fee 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 

59 
60 Upgrades/Add-ons <ratio to maint base> 
61 CSP .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .5 .4 .3 

62 Corporate 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 

a? VNSP 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 

64 
65 Professional Services <ratio to new lic> 
66 CSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 

67 Corporate .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 

68 VNSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 

69 
70 Maintenance Calculation - CSP 
71 Previous Year Maintenance 150 607 1384 2647 4268 5427 6275 5734 4862 

7? Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 

73 Remaining Maintenance 0 143 576 1315 2515 3841 4884 5334 4587 3647 26842 

74 New Licenses and New Upgrad 1000 3095 5386 8881 11685 10573 9272 2667 1835 1094 

75 Maintenance/License Price Rati .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

76 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

77 New License/Upgrade Maintena 150 464 808 1332 1753 1586 1391 400 275 164 8323 

78 Total Maintenance-CSP Revenu 150 607 1384 2647 4268 5427 6275 5734 4862 3811 35166 

79 
80 Maintenance Calculation - Corporate 
81 Previous Year Maintenance 45 141 341 659 1110 1649 2230 2180 1940 

8? Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 

83 Remaining Maintenance 0 43 134 324 626 999 1484 1895 1744 1455 8704 

84 New Licenses and New Upgrad 300 657 1379 2231 3232 4329 4974 1895 1308 728 

85 Maintenance/License Price Rati .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

86 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

87 New License/Upgrade Maintena 45 99 207 335 485 649 746 284 196 109 3155 

88 Total Maintenance-Corporate Re 45 141 341 659 1110 1649 2230 2180 1940 1564 11859 

89 
90 Maintenance Calculation - Vertical NSP 
91 Previous Year Maintenance 0 150 396 751 1231 1704 2214 2165 1927 

9? Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 

93 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 143 376 714 1108 1534 1882 1732 1445 8933 

94 New Licenses and New Upgrad 0 1000 1690 2500 3449 3973 4540 1882 1299 722 

95 Maintenance/License Price Rati .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

96 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

97 New License/Upgrade Maintena 0 150 253 375 517 596 681 282 195 108 3158 

98 Total Maintenance - Vertical NS 0 150 396 751 1231 1704 2214 2165 1927 1553 12091 

99 
100 

Elron Rev 032900.xls 3/29/00 12:59PM 
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A  |  B  I  C |  D |  E | F | G | H |  I  |  J  I  K  L 

101 Projections for InterTools Technologies - Revenues (International) 13 
102 
103 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
104 
105 New Product Licenses 
106 Communications Service Providers 
107 # of New Customers 2 4 6 8 10 10 8 0 0 0 48 

108 Revenue - Licenses 1500 3000 4500 6000 7500 7500 6000 0 0 0 36000 

109 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 1500 4500 9000 15000 22500 30000 36000 36000 36000 36000 
110 Corporate 
111 # of New Customers 0 1 3 5 7 9 9 0 0 0 34 

112 Revenue - Licenses 0 200 600 1000 1400 1800 1800 0 0 0 6800 

113 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 200 800 1800 3200 5000 6800 6800 6800 6800 
114 Vertical Network Service 
115 # of New Customers 0 1 2 3 4 5 5 0 0 0 20 

116 Revenue - Licenses 0 400 800 1200 1600 2000 2000 0 0 0 
117 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 400 1200 2400 4000 6000 8000 8000 8000 8000 

118 Total - New License Revenue 1500 3600 5900 8200 10500 11300 9800 0 0 0 50800 

119 
120 Uparades/Add-ons - Revenue 
121 CSP 0 143 436 886 1499 2163 2821 2351 1618 965 12881 

12? Corporate 0 0 38 157 368 649 1024 1014 700 389 4340 

123 Vertical NSP 0 0 76 238 499 826 1250 1214 837 466 5405 

124 Total Upgrade Revenue 0 143 550 1281 2366 3637 5095 4579 3155 1820 22626 

125 Cumulative Total-Upgrade Reve 0 143 693 1974 4339 7977 13071 17651 20806 22626 

126 
127 Professional Services 
128 CSP 750 1500 2250 3000 3750 3750 3000 0 0 0 18000 

129 Corporate 0 100 300 500 700 900 900 0 0 0 3400 

130 Vertical NSP 0 200 400 600 800 1000 1000 0 0 0 4000 

131 Total Professional Services 750 1800 2950 4100 5250 5650 4900 0 0 0 25400 

132 
133 
134 
135 
136 Maintenance 
137 CSP 225 685 1391 2355 3587 4677 5533 5056 4287 3360 31156 

138 Corporate 0 30 124 292 542 855 1193 1167 1038 837 6078 

139 Vertical NSP 0 60 188 395 690 1045 1428 1396 1242 1001 7444 

140 Total Maintenance 225 775 1704 3041 4819 6577 8154 7618 6567 5199 44679 

141 
142 Total Revenues 
143 CSP 2475 5328 8578 12240 16335 18090 17353 7407 5905 4325 98037 

144 Corporate 0 330 1062 1948 3011 4204 4917 2181 1738 1226 20618 

145 Vertical NSP 0 660 1464 2433 3588 4870 5678 2609 2079 1467 24849 

146 
147 Grand Total Revenue 2475 6318 11104 16621 22934 27165 27949 12197 9722 7018 143504 

148 
149 
150 

Elron Rev 032900.xls 3/29/00 12:59 PM 
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A B  I C l  D |  E  I  F  |  G  |  H  |  I  I  J  | K  L 

151 Revenue Worksheets - InterTools Technolog ies (International) 14 
152 
153 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
154 
155 
156 CSP Unit License Fee 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 
157 Corporate Unit License Fee 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 
158 VNSP Unit License Fee 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 
159 
160 Upgrades/Add-ons <ratio to maint base> 
161 CSP .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .5 .4 .3 
162 Corporate 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 
163 VNSP 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 
164 
165 Professional Services <ratio to new lic> 
166 CSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
167 Corporate .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
168 VNSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
169 
170 Maintenance Calculation - CSP 
171 Previous Year Maintenance 225 685 1391 2355 3587 4677 5533 5056 4287 
172 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
173 Remaining Maintenance 0 214 651 1322 2237 3228 4210 4703 4044 3215 23824 
174 New Licenses and New Upgrad 1500 3143 4936 6886 8999 9663 8821 2351 1618 965 
175 Maintenance/License Price Rati .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
176 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
177 New License/Upgrade Maintena 225 471 740 1033 1350 1449 1323 353 243 145 7332 
178 Total Maintenance-CSP Revenu 225 685 1391 2355 3587 4677 5533 5056 4287 3360 31156 
179 
180 Maintenance Calculation - Corporate 
181 Previous Year Maintenance 0 30 124 292 542 855 1193 1167 1038 
182 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
183 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 29 118 277 488 770 1014 933 779 4407 
184 New Licenses and New Upgrad 0 200 638 1157 1768 2449 2824 1014 700 389 
185 Maintenance/License Price Rati .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
186 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
187 New License/Upgrade Maintena 0 30 96 174 265 367 424 152 105 58 1671 
188 Total Maintenance-Corporate Re 0 30 124 292 542 855 1193 1167 1038 837 6078 
189 
190 Maintenance Calc. - Vertical NSP 
191 Previous Year Maintenance 0 60 188 395 690 1045 1428 1396 1242 
192 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 

193 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 57 179 375 621 940 1214 1116 932 5433 
194 New Licenses and New Upgrad 0 400 876 1438 2099 2826 3250 1214 837 466 

195 Maintenance/License Price Rati .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
196 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
197 New License/Upgrade Maintena 0 60 131 216 315 424 488 182 126 70 2011 
198 Total Maintenance-Vertical NSP 0 60 188 395 690 1045 1428 1396 1242 1001 7444 

199 
200 

Elron Rev 032900.xls 3/29/00 12:59 PM 



Appendix H-1 

201 

I G | H T 
Costs for InterTools Technologies Worldwide 

202 15 

203 
204 Projected Total 

205 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 1999-200 

206 
207 Americas 
208 Revenues 2145 7950 14426 23569 32425 34406 35255 16523 13170 9472 189343 

209 
210 Cost of revenues rate .20 .20 .19 .18 .17 .16 .15 .10 .10 .10 
211 cost 429 1590 2741 4242 5512 5505 5288 1652 1317 947 29225 

212 Marketing and sales rate .35 .35 .34 .33 .32 .31 .30 .25 .25 .25 
213 cost 751 2783 4905 7778 10376 10666 10577 4131 3293 2368 57626 

214 R and D rate .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 .10 

215 cost 322 1193 2020 3064 3891 3785 3526 1652 1317 947 21716 

216 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

217 cost 322 1193 2164 3535 4864 5161 5288 2478 1976 1421 28401 

218 Total Costs- Americas 1823 6758 11829 18620 24643 25116 24679 9914 7902 5683 136968 

219 Cost/Revenue Ratio .85 .85 .82 .79 .76 .73 .70 .60 .60 .60 

220 
221 International 
22? Revenues 2475 6318 11104 16621 22934 27165 27949 12197 9722 7018 143504 

223 
224 Cost of revenues rate .20 .20 .19 .18 .17 .16 .15 .10 .10 .10 

225 cost 495 1264 2110 2992 3899 4346 4192 1220 972 702 22192 

226 Marketing and sales rate .35 .35 .34 .33 .32 .31 .30 .25 .25 .25 

227 cost 866 2211 3775 5485 7339 8421 8385 3049 2431 1755 43717 

228 R and D rate .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 .10 

229 cost 371 948 1555 2161 2752 2988 2795 1220 972 702 16463 

230 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

231 cost 371 948 1666 2493 3440 4075 4192 1830 1458 1053 21526 

232 Total Costs - International 2104 5371 9105 13131 17430 19830 19564 7318 5833 4211 103897 

233 103897 

234 Cost/Revenue Ratio .85 .85 .82 .79 .76 .73 .70 .60 .60 .60 

235 
236 Total Costs - Worldwide 3927 12129 20934 31751 42073 44947 44243 17232 13736 9894 240865 

237 
238 
239 
240 
241 
242 
243 
244 
245 
246 
247 
248 
249 
250 

Elron Rev 032900.xls 3/29/00 12:59 PM 
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A  |  B  |  C |  D |  E | F | G | H |  I  |  J  | K |  L  
201 Costs for InterTools Technologies Worldwide 
202 15 
203 
204 Projected Total 
205 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 1999-200 
206 
207 Americas 
208 Revenues 2145 7950 14426 23569 32425 34406 35255 16523 13170 9472 189343 
209 
210 Cost of revenues rate .20 .20 .19 .18 .17 .16 .15 .10 .10 .10 
211 cost 429 1590 2741 4242 5512 5505 5288 1652 1317 947 29225 
212 Marketing and sales rate .35 .35 .34 .33 .32 .31 .30 .25 .25 .25 
213 cost 751 2783 4905 7778 10376 10666 10577 4131 3293 2368 57626 
214 R and D rate .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 .10 
215 cost 322 1193 2020 3064 3891 3785 3526 1652 1317 947 21716 
216 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
217 cost 322 1193 2164 3535 4864 5161 5288 2478 1976 1421 28401 
218 Total Costs- Americas 1823 6758 11829 18620 24643 25116 24679 9914 7902 5683 136968 
219 Cost/Revenue Ratio .85 .85 .82 .79 .76 .73 .70 .60 .60 .60 
220 
221 international 
222 Revenues 2475 6318 11104 16621 22934 27165 27949 12197 9722 7018 143504 
223 
224 Cost of revenues rate .20 .20 .19 .18 .17 .16 .15 .10 .10 .10 
225 cost 495 1264 2110 2992 3899 4346 4192 1220 972 702 22192 
226 Marketing and sales rate .35 .35 .34 .33 .32 .31 .30 .25 .25 .25 
227 cost 866 2211 3775 5485 7339 8421 8385 3049 2431 1755 43717 
228 R and D rate .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 .10 
229 cost 371 948 1555 2161 2752 2988 2795 1220 972 702 16463 
230 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
231 cost 371 948 1666 2493 3440 4075 4192 1830 1458 1053 21526 

232 Total Costs - international 2104 5371 9105 13131 17430 19830 19564 7318 5833 4211 103897 
233 103897 
234 
235 

Cost/Revenue Ratio .85 .85 .82 .79 .76 .73 .70 .60 .60 .60 234 
235 
236 
237 

Total Costs - Worldwide 3927 12129 20934 31751 42073 44947 44243 17232 13736 9894 240865 236 
237 
238 
239 
240 
241 
242 
243 
244 
245 
246 
247 
248 
249 
250 
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251 Net Present Value - InterTools Technologies 16 

252 
253 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
254 Intertools - Americas 
255 Revenue 2145 7950 14426 23569 32425 34406 35255 16523 13170 9472 189343 
256 Operating Cost Ratio .15 .15 .18 .21 .24 .27 .30 .40 .40 .40 
257 Operating Income 322 1193 2597 4950 7782 9290 10577 6609 5268 3789 52375 
258 Tax Rate .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 
259 Operating Income After Tax 199 739 1610 3069 4825 5760 6557 4098 3266 2349 32473 
260 NPV Factors .917 .764 .637 .530 .442 .368 .307 .256 .213 .178 
261 NPV 183 565 1025 1628 2133 2122 2013 1048 696 417 11830 
262 Completion Ratio .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 
263 Allocable Value 123 378 687 1091 1429 1422 1349 702 467 280 7926 
264 
265 
266 
267 
268 
269 
270 
271 
272 
273 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
274 Intertools - International 

2006 

275 Revenue 2475 6318 11104 16621 22934 27165 27949 12197 9722 7018 143504 
276 Operating Cost Ratio .15 .15 .18 .21 .24 .27 .30 .40 .40 .40 
277 Operating Income 371 948 1999 3490 5504 7334 8385 4879 3889 2807 39607 
278 Tax Rate .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 
279 Operating Income After Tax 230 588 1239 2164 3413 4547 5198 3025 2411 1741 24556 
280 NPV Factors .917 .764 .637 .530 .442 .368 .307 .256 .213 .178 
281 NPV 211 449 789 1148 1509 1675 1596 774 514 309 8973 
282 Completion Ratio .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 
283 Allocable Value 141 301 529 769 1011 1122 1069 518 344 207 6012 
284 
285 Total Worldwide NPV 394 1014 1814 2776 3642 3797 3609 1822 1210 727 20804 
286 Total Worldwide Allocable 264 679 1215 1860 2440 2544 2418 1221 811 487 13938 
287 
288 
289 
290 
291 Selected Discount Rate - America .20 
292 
293 Selected Discount Rate - Internatio .20 
294 
295 
296 
297 
298 
299 
300 
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1 Projections for CDR Technologies - Revenues (Americas) 11 
2 
3 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
4 
5 New Product Licenses 
6 Communications Service Providers 
7 # of New Customers 1 3 5 8 10 8 6 0 0 0 41 
8 Revenue - Licenses 1000 3000 5000 8000 10000 8000 6000 0 0 0 41000 
9 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 1000 4000 9000 17000 27000 35000 41000 41000 41000 41000 

10 Corporate 
11 # of New Customers 1 2 4 6 8 . 10 10 0 0 0 41 
12 Revenue - Licenses 300 600 1200 1800 2400 3000 3000 0 0 0 12300 
13 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 300 900 2100 3900 6300 9300 12300 12300 12300 12300 
14 Vertical Network Service 
15 # of New Customers 0 2 3 4 5 5 5 0 0 0 24 
16 Revenue - Licenses 0 1000 1500 2000 2500 2500 2500 0 0 0 12000 
17 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 1000 2500 4500 7000 9500 12000 12000 12000 12000 
18 Total - New License Revenue 1300 4600 7700 11800 14900 13500 11500 0 0 0 65300 
19 
20 Uparades/Add-ons - Revenue 
21 CSP 0 95 386 881 1685 2573 3272 2667 1835 1094 14490 
22 Corporate 0 57 179 431 832 1329 1974 1895 1308 728 8732 
23 Vertical NSP 0 0 190 500 949 1473 2040 1882 1299 722 9055 
24 Total Upgrade Revenue 0 152 754 1812 3466 5376 7286 6445 4442 2544 32277 
25 Cumulative Total-Upgrade Reve 0 152 907 2719 6185 11561 18847 25292 29733 32277 
26 
27 Professional Services 
28 CSP 500 1500 2500 4000 5000 4000 3000 0 0 0 20500 
29 Corporate 150 300 600 900 1200 1500 1500 0 0 0 6150 
30 Vertical NSP 0 500 750 1000 1250 1250 1250 0 0 0 6000 
31 Total Professional Services 650 2300 3850 5900 7450 6750 5750 0 0 0 32650 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 Maintenance 
37 CSP 150 607 1384 2647 4268 5427 6275 5734 4862 3811 35166 
38 Corporate 45 141 341 659 1110 1649 2230 2180 1940 1564 11859 
39 Vertical NSP 0 150 396 751 1231 1704 2214 2165 1927 1553 12091 
40 Total Maintenance 195 898 2121 4057 6609 8780 10720 10078 8729 6928 59116 
41 
42 Total Revenues 
43 CSP 1650 5202 9271 15529 20953 20000 18548 8401 6697 4905 111156 
44 Corporate 495 1098 2319 3789 5543 7478 8704 4075 3248 2292 39041 
45 Vertical NSP 0 1650 2835 4251 5930 6927 8004 4047 3225 2276 39146 
46 
47 Grand Total Revenue 2145 7950 14426 23569 32425 34406 35255 16523 13170 9472 189343 
48 
49 
50 
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51 Revenue Worksheets - CDR Technologies (Americas) 12 
52 
53 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
54 
55 
56 CSP Unit License Fee 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 
57 Corporate Unit License Fee 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 
58 VNSP Unit License Fee 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 
59 
60 Upgrades/Add-ons <ratio to maint base> 
61 CSP .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .5 .4 .3 
62 Corporate 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 
63 VNSP 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 
64 
65 Professional Services <ratio to new lic> 
66 CSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
67 Corporate .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
68 VNSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
69 
70 Maintenance Calculation - CSP 
71 Previous Year Maintenance 150 607 1384 2647 4268 5427 6275 5734 4862 
72 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
73 Remaining Maintenance 0 143 576 1315 2515 3841 4884 5334 4587 3647 26842 
74 New Licenses and New Upgrad 1000 3095 5386 8881 11685 10573 9272 2667 1835 1094 
75 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
76 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
77 New License/Upgrade Maintena 150 464 808 1332 1753 1586 1391 400 275 164 8323 
78 Total Maintenance-CSP Revenue 150 607 1384 2647 4268 5427 6275 5734 4862 3811 35166 
79 
80 Maintenance Calculation - Corporate 
81 Previous Year Maintenance 45 141 341 659 1110 1649 2230 2180 1940 

82 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 

83 Remaining Maintenance 0 43 134 324 626 999 1484 1895 1744 1455 8704 

84 New Licenses and New Upgrad 300 657 1379 2231 3232 4329 4974 1895 1308 728 

85 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

86 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

87 New License/Upgrade Maintena 45 99 207 335 485 649 746 284 196 109 3155 

88 Total Maintenance-Corporate Re 45 141 341 659 1110 1649 2230 2180 1940 1564 11859 

89 
90 
89 
90 Maintenance Calculation - Vertical NSP 
91 Previous Year Maintenance 0 150 396 751 1231 1704 2214 2165 1927 

92 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 

93 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 143 376 714 1108 1534 1882 1732 1445 8933 

94 New Licenses and New Upgrad 0 1000 1690 2500 3449 3973 4540 1882 1299 722 

95 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

96 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

97 New License/Upgrade Maintena 0 150 253 375 517 596 681 282 195 108 3158 

98 Total Maintenance - Vertical NSP 0 150 396 751 1231 1704 2214 2165 1927 1553 12091 

99 
100 
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101 Projections for CDR Technologies - Revenues (International) 13 
102 
103 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
104 
105 New Product Licenses 
106 Communications Service Providers 
107 # of New Customers 2 4 6 8 10 10 8 0 0 0 48 
108 Revenue - Licenses 1500 3000 4500 6000 7500 7500 6000 0 0 0 36000 
109 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 1500 4500 9000 15000 22500 30000 36000 36000 36000 36000 
110 Corporate 
111 # of New Customers 0 1 3 5 7 9 9 0 0 0 34 
112 Revenue - Licenses 0 200 600 1000 1400 1800 1800 0 0 0 6800 
113 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 200 800 1800 3200 5000 6800 6800 6800 6800 
114 Vertical Network Service 
115 # of New Customers 0 1 2 3 4 5 5 0 0 0 20 
116 Revenue - Licenses 0 400 800 1200 1600 2000 2000 0 0 0 
117 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 400 1200 2400 4000 6000 8000 8000 8000 8000 
118 Total - New License Revenue 1500 3600 5900 8200 10500 11300 9800 0 0 0 50800 
119 
120 Uparades/Add-ons - Revenue 
121 CSP 0 143 436 886 1499 2163 2821 2351 1618 965 12881 
122 Corporate 0 0 38 157 368 649 1024 1014 700 389 4340 
123 Vertical NSP 0 0 76 238 499 826 1250 1214 837 466 5405 
124 Total Upgrade Revenue 0 143 550 1281 2366 3637 5095 4579 3155 1820 22626 
125 Cumulative Total-Upgrade Reve 0 143 693 1974 4339 7977 13071 17651 20806 22626 
126 
127 Professional Services 
128 CSP 750 1500 2250 3000 3750 3750 3000 0 0 0 18000 
129 Corporate 0 100 300 500 700 900 900 0 0 0 3400 
130 Vertical NSP 0 200 400 600 800 1000 1000 0 0 0 4000 
131 Total Professional Services 750 1800 2950 4100 5250 5650 4900 0 0 0 25400 
132 
133 
134 
135 
136 Maintenance 
137 CSP 225 685 1391 2355 3587 4677 5533 5056 4287 3360 31156 
138 Corporate 0 30 124 292 542 855 1193 1167 1038 837 6078 
139 Vertical NSP 0 60 188 395 690 1045 1428 1396 1242 1001 7444 
140 Total Maintenance 225 775 1704 3041 4819 6577 8154 7618 6567 5199 44679 

141 
142 Total Revenues 
143 CSP 2475 5328 8578 12240 16335 18090 17353 7407 5905 4325 98037 

144 
145 

Corporate 0 330 1062 1948 3011 4204 4917 2181 1738 1226 20618 144 
145 Vertical NSP 0 660 1464 2433 3588 4870 5678 2609 2079 1467 24849 

146 
147 Grand Total Revenue 2475 6318 11104 16621 22934 27165 27949 12197 9722 7018 143504 

148 
149 
150 
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151 Revenue Worksheets - CDR Technologies (International) 14 
152 
153 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
154 
155 
156 CSP Unit License Fee 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 
157 Corporate Unit License Fee 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 
158 VNSP Unit License Fee 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 
159 
160 Upgrades/Add-ons <ratio to maint base> 
161 CSP .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .5 .4 .3 
162 Corporate 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 
163 VNSP 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 
164 
165 Professional Services <ratio to new lic> 
166 CSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
167 Corporate .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
168 VNSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
169 
170 Maintenance Calculation - CSP 
171 Previous Year Maintenance 225 685 1391 2355 3587 4677 5533 5056 4287 
172 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
173 Remaining Maintenance 0 214 651 1322 2237 3228 4210 4703 4044 3215 23824 
174 New Licenses and New Upgrad 1500 3143 4936 6886 8999 9663 8821 2351 1618 965 
175 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
176 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
177 New License/Upgrade Maintena 225 471 740 1033 1350 1449 1323 353 243 145 7332 
178 Total Maintenance-CSP Revenue 225 685 1391 2355 3587 4677 5533 5056 4287 3360 31156 
179 
180 Maintenance Calculation - Corporate 
181 Previous Year Maintenance 0 30 124 292 542 855 1193 1167 1038 
182 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
183 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 29 118 277 488 770 1014 933 779 4407 
184 New Licenses and New Upgrad 0 200 638 1157 1768 2449 2824 1014 700 389 
185 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
186 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
187 New License/Upgrade Maintena 0 30 96 174 265 367 424 152 105 58 1671 
188 Total Maintenance-Corporate Re 0 30 124 292 542 855 1193 1167 1038 837 6078 
189 
190 Maintenance Calc. - Vertical NSP 
191 Previous Year Maintenance 0 60 188 395 690 1045 1428 1396 1242 
192 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
193 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 57 179 375 621 940 1214 1116 932 5433 
194 New Licenses and New Upgrad 0 400 876 1438 2099 2826 3250 1214 837 466 
195 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
196 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
197 New License/Upgrade Maintena 0 60 131 216 315 424 488 182 126 70 2011 
198 Total Maintenance-Vertical NSP 0 60 188 395 690 1045 1428 1396 1242 1001 7444 
199 
200 
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201 Costs for CDR Technologies Worldwide 
202 15 

EE 
EE Projected Total 

EE ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

EE 
207 Americas 
208 Revenues 2145 7950 14426 23569 32425 34406 35255 16523 13170 9472 189343 
209 
210 Cost of revenues rate .20 .20 .19 .18 .17 .16 .15 .10 .10 .10 
211 cost 429 1590 2741 4242 5512 5505 5288 1652 1317 947 29225 
212 Marketing and sales rate .35 .35 .34 .33 .32 .31 .30 .25 .25 .25 
213 cost 751 2783 4905 7778 10376 10666 10577 4131 3293 2368 57626 
214 R and D rate .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 .10 
215 cost 322 1193 2020 3064 3891 3785 3526 1652 1317 947 21716 
216 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
217 cost 322 1193 2164 3535 4864 5161 5288 2478 1976 1421 28401 
218 Total Costs- Americas 1823 6758 11829 18620 24643 25116 24679 9914 7902 5683 136968 
219 Cost/Revenue Ratio .85 .85 .82 .79 .76 .73 .70 .60 .60 .60 
220 
221 International 
222 Revenues 2475 6318 11104 16621 22934 27165 27949 12197 9722 7018 143504 
223 
224 Cost of revenues rate .20 .20 .19 .18 .17 .16 .15 .10 .10 .10 
225 cost 495 1264 2110 2992 3899 4346 4192 1220 972 702 22192 
226 Marketing and sales rate .35 .35 .34 .33 .32 .31 .30 .25 .25 .25 
227 cost 866 2211 3775 5485 7339 8421 8385 3049 2431 1755 < , >71' 

228 R and D rate .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 .10 
229 cost 371 948 1555 2161 2752 2988 2795 1220 972 702 
230 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
231 cost 371 948 1666 2493 3440 407f 4' 12 1830 1458 

IV; 
1052 

232 Total Costs - International 2104 5371 9105 13131 17430 1983 7: i 
1458 

IV; 3 ' 1  
233 
234 Cost/Revenue Ratio .85 .85 .82 .79 .76 .7 

f 

235 

f 

236 Total Costs - Worldwide 3927 12129 20934 31751 42073 4494 

f 

237 

f 

238 

f 
239 

f 240 f 
241 

L 

242 

L 

243 

L 

244 

L 

245 

L 

246 

L 

247 

L 
248 
249 L 
248 
249 L 
250 L 
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251 Net Present Value - CDR Technologies 16 

252 
253 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 

254 Intertools - Americas 
255 Revenue 2145 7950 14426 23569 32425 34406 35255 16523 13170 9472 189343 
256 Operating Cost Ratio .15 .15 .18 .21 .24 .27 .30 .40 .40 .40 
257 Operating Income 322 1193 2597 4950 7782 9290 10577 6609 5268 3789 52375 
258 Tax Rate .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 
259 Operating Income After Tax 199 739 1610 3069 4825 5760 6557 4098 3266 2349 32473 
260 NPV Factors .917 .764 .637 .530 .442 .368 .307 .256 .213 .178 
261 NPV 183 565 1025 1628 2133 2122 2013 1048 696 417 11830 
262 Completion Ratio .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 
263 Allocable Value 123 378 687 1091 1429 1422 1349 702 467 280 7926 

264 
265 
266 
267 
268 
269 
270 
271 
272 
273 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 

274 Intertools - International 
275 Revenue 2475 6318 11104 16621 22934 27165 27949 12197 9722 7018 143504 

276 Operating Cost Ratio .15 .15 .18 .21 .24 .27 .30 .40 .40 .40 

277 Operating Income 371 948 1999 3490 5504 7334 8385 4879 3889 2807 39607 

278 Tax Rate .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 

279 Operating Income After Tax 230 588 1239 2164 3413 4547 5198 3025 2411 1741 24556 

280 NPV Factors .917 .764 .637 .530 .442 .368 .307 .256 .213 .178 

281 NPV 211 449 789 1148 1509 1675 1596 774 514 309 8973 

282 Completion Ratio .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 

283 Allocable Value 141 301 529 769 1011 1122 1069 518 344 207 6012 

284 
285 Total Worldwide NPV 394 1014 1814 2776 3642 3797 3609 1822 1210 727 20804 

286 Total Worldwide Allocable 264 679 1215 1860 2440 2544 2418 1221 811 487 13938 

287 
288 
289 
290 
291 Selected Discount Rate - Americas .20 
292 
293 Selected Discount Rate - Internatio .20 
294 
295 
296 
297 
298 
299 
300 
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Appendix G-l 

A" 

Function and Technology Mapping Definitions 

Function 

Full Product feature is available in the specified release to the extent needed to satisfy market 
requirements for new product 

Partial Product feature is available but does not fully satisfy market requirements for new 
product 

N/A Product feature has essentially not been implemented 

Reuse in New Product* 

None Substantially no reuse of any existing technology 

Requirements Existing product provides a requirements definition of product features/functionality 

Specifications Existing product provides a functional specification for product usage 

Design Existing product's technical design is being used substantially in the future product 

Code Existing software source code is being used substantially in the future product 

Market Value 

High Critical to customer buying the product; would not buy without it 

Medium Valuable to customer buying the product, but lack of it would not, by itself, preclude the 
purchase, though in combination with other factors, could be a purchase stopper 

Low Limited significance to most prospects; nice to have, but would not pay extra for it 

* If none or only requirements or specifications are reused in new product, then core 
technologies contribution is considered to be low. If design or code is reused, then core 
technologies contribution is considered to be an appropriate percentage for that function. 
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Eureka:PortaI 
Content Server and Content Administrator 

IPR&D Code Name: "Wolf' 

1 Core 
Exist in Type i i Technology Market 
Current of Reuse ; Market ; Contribution Weighting i 

Factor 

Content Server 
Newspage P R, S 20 H 6.5 .013 j 
Messengers P C 75 H 6.5 .049 | 
Channels P C 95 M 2.0 .019 j 
Profile F C 100 H ! 6.5 .065 i 
Library P C 50 H 6.5 .033 
Multimedia Newspage N none 0 M j 2.0 0 j 
XML Interface N none 0 H 15.0 0 j 
Message Boards N none 0 M 1.5 0 ! 
Security Model N none 0 H 4.5 0 1 
Subgroups N none 0 H 1 4.5 0 j 
Pangaea Support N none 0 H 4.5 0 i 
Raptor Support N none 0 M j 1.0 0 j 
Unix Install P C 40 L j 1.0 .004 j 
NT Install P C 40 L j 1.0 .004 j 
XML APT N none 0 H 15.0 0 j 

Content Administrator 
Add Users P C 50 M .75 .004 j 
Delete Users P C 50 M .75 .004 j 
Add Groups P c 75 M .75 .006 j 
Modify Groups P c ! 75 M ! .75 .006 
Display Logs P R , S  | 20 L .25 .001 
Tree Framework j N none j 0 L .25 o 
Pluggable Module i N ; none i 0 

H 2.5 0 

Search Engine I p 1 R , S  i 20 H 16.0 .032 

Core Technologies Value .240 

New Technologies Value .760 

Total 1.000 
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EurekarReporter 
Report Designer and Report Server 

IPR&D Code Name: "Raptor" 

Core 
Exist in Type Technology Market 
Current of Reuse Market Contribution Weighting 

Functions/Technologies Product Reuse (%) Significance (%) Factor 

Report Designer 
Query Generator P Code 80 H 6.25 .050 
Crosstabs Reports F Code 90 M .94 .008 
Child Reports F Code 80 M .94 .008 
Hot Object Reports F Code 90 H 6.25 .056 
Query Wizard F Code 90 M .94 .008 
QuickQuery Interface F Code 100 M .94 .009 
FreeForm Interface F Code 90 H 6.25 .056 
Export to TM1 F Code 90 L .31 .003 
Export to Other Formats P Code 100 L .31 .003 
Conditional Output Control P Code 90 L .31 .003 
Value Translation P Code 90 L .31 .003 
Charting P None 0 H 6.25 0 
Report Bursting P Code 30 H 12.5 .038 
XML API N None 0 H 12.5 0 

Report Viewer (Client) P Code 80 M 2.3 .018 

Report Viewer (Active X) P Spec 10 H 7.7 .008 

Metadata File Manager 
Import from other databases F Code 80 M 4.3 .034 
Automatic label importing F Code 90 L 1.4 .013 

Report Server Manager P Code 60 M 4.3 .026 

Cross Platform Report Server 
Scheduler P None 0 H 15.6 0 
Load Balancing N None 0 M 4.7 0 
Open API N None 0 M 4.7 0 

Core Technologies Value .344 

New Technologies Value .656 

Total 1.000 
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Eureka: Strategy 
ROLAP 

IPR&D Code Name: "Tahoe" 

Core 
Exist in Type ; Technology Market 

Functions/Technologies 
Current of iReuse Market : Contribution Weighting 

Functions/Technologies Product Reuse jj*L. Significance L (°/«) Factor 
User Interface 

Report Definition P None i o H 2.5 0 
Report Display P None i o H 2.5 0 
Charting P None i 0 H 2.5 0 
Drill (shared with Web) P None i o H 2.5 0 
Add-ins (shared) P None ! o M 1.0 0 
Agents/Schedule P None ! o M 1.0 0 
Batch Reports P None ! o M 1.0 0 
Profile Editor P Req. ; io M 1.0 .001 
Filters P Non i o H 2.5 0 
Limits P None ! o H 2.5 0 
Calculations P None i o H 2.5 0 
Category P Req. j io M 1.0 .001 
Prompting N None i o H 2.5 0 
Report Wizard N None j 0 M 1.0 0 
Metadata Editors N 

Report Display P Req i io H 6.1 .006 
Directory Display P Req i io M 1.8 .002 
Prompting P Req ! 10 H 6.1 .006 

Server 
Olap Engine P Code ! 40 H 10.0 .040 
Report Writer P Code j 40 H 2.2 .009 
Database Manager P None ! o H 2.2 0 
Database Cache N None ! o H 2.2 0 
ODBC N None 0 M .6 0 
Driller P Code ! 50 H 2.2 .011 
Mime P Code j 60 L .2 .001 
Locale N None ; o L .2 0 
Location Server N None ! o M .6 0 
File N None ; o M .6 0 
Font Server N None 1 o L .2 0 
Result Server N None ! o L .2 0 
Calculation Engine P Req ; io H 10.0 .010 
Pivoter N None 1 o M .6 0 
Security N None i o H 2.7 0 
Scheduler P None i 0 H 2.7 0 
Metadata N None i o H 10.0 0 0 
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EurekarStrategy 
(continued) 

! Core 
Exist in Type Technology Market 
Current of i Reuse Market Contribution Weighting 

Functions/Technologies Product Reuse III (%) ; Significance (%) Factor 
Converters 

Text P Code ! 50 L .4 .002 
HTML P Code j 30 H 6.0 .018 
Excel P None ! 0 M 1.2 0 
Alberta Stream N None 1 o L .4 0 

Migration Tools N None M 2.0 0 
Core Technologies Value .107 
New Technologies Value .893 
Total 1.000 
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EurekaiPortal - % Completion Analysis 

I People j P-months ! Cost/Month I Cost i 
% ; 

j Start to Acquisition Date (5/98 - 8/99) 

i Development 
i test 
i Documentation 
i Subtotal 

24 
5 
4 

33 

$5,500 j 
4,250 ; 
4,500 j 

$132,000 j 
21,250 j 
18.000 j 

j Acquisition Date to FAS86 Date (9/99 - 10/99) 

j Development 
j Test 
i Documentation 
j Subtotal 

12 
5 

i 4 j 
i 21 

$5,500 j 
4,250 j 
4,500 j 

$66,000 | 
21,250 ! 
18.000 I 

$105,250 ! 38.1% I 

j Total for Phases I and II $276,500 j 100% j 

j FAS86 Date to General Release Date (11/99 - 1/00) 

i Development 
j Test 
| Documentation 
; Subtotal 

6 
5 j 

! 1 j 
j 14 I 

$5,500 j 
4,250 j 
4,500 j 

$33,000 ! 
21,250 j 
13.500 ; 

$67,750 j 

j Grand Total $344,250 1 
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Eureka:Reporter - % Completion Analysis 

j People | P-months j Cost/Month j Cost 
% 

Complete 

j Start to Acquisition Date (5/98 - 8/99) 

j Development 
i Test 
j Documentation 
j Subtotal 

43 ! 
7 

j 1 1 
51 j 

$5,500 ! 
4,250 j 
4,500 j 

$236,500 
29,750 
4,500 

$270,750 

j Acquisition Date to FAS86 Date (9/99 - 10/99) 

i Development 
i Test 
j Documentation 

10 
9 

i 2 j 

$5,500 ! 
4,250 | 
4,500 j 

$55,000 
38,250 
13.500 ! 

28 3% ; 

Total for Phases I and II $377,500 ! 100% ! 

FAS86 Date to General Release Date (11/99 - 1/00) 

Development 
Test 
Documentation 
Subtotal 

13 I 
11 
2 j 

26 

$5,500 | 
4,250 j 
4,500 j 

$71,500 
46,750 
9,000 

$127,750 

Grand Total $504,750 
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Appendix G-3 
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Eureka:Strategy - % Completion Analysis 

People P-months 1 Cost/Month Cost 
111! % 

Complete 

Start to Acquisition Date (1/96 - 8/99) 

Development 
Test 
Documentation 
Subtotal 

763 j $5,500 
89 j 4,250 
69 j 4,500 
921 | 

$4,196,500 
378,250 
310.500 

$4,885,250 90.0% 

Acquisition Date to FAS86 Date (9/99 - 12/99) 

Development 
Test 
Documentation 
Subtotal 

74 | $5,500 
21 j 4,250 
11 4,500 
106 

$407,000 
89,250 
49.500 

$545,750 10.0% 

Total for Phases I and II $5,431,000 100% 

FAS86 Date to General Release Date (1/00 - 3/00) 

Development 
Test 
Documentation 
Subtotal 

124 ! $5,500 
26 j 4,250 
18 j 4,500 
168 

$682,000 
110,500 
81.000 

$873,500 

Grand Total $6,304,500 

5077APP 
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ipendix 

Information Advantage: Current Products Valuatioi 

Projected 

Worldwide Summary - Portal 
Revenue 
Operating income 
Operating Income after tax 
NPV 

Worldwide Summary - Report Server 
Revenue 
Operating income 
Operating Income after tax 

12338 

Worldwfctp Sum - Cube Server 
Revenue 16772 
Operating income 
Operating Income^fter tax 

Worldwide Summary - Rot^p 
Revenue 18636 
Operating income 
Operating Income after tax 
NPV 

379 Worldwide Summary - Q&E 
Revenue 
Operating income 
Operating Income after tax 

Worldwide Summary -JQ Classic 
Revenue 
Operating incomi 
Operating Incjxfie after tax 

Worldwide Summary - IA Current Products 
Revenue 44840| 28210 19690 107565 
Operating income 13452 

8561 
8002 

Operating Income after tax 
NPV 

21487 



Appendix F 

A B c D E F G 
1 

2 
Revenues - Portal (North America - Direct) 11 

3 Projected 

4 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
5 
6 New Product Licenses 
7 New license rate 0 0 0 0 
8 New license revenue 1000 0 0 0 0 1000 
9 
10 Add-ons/Upgrades 
11 Add-on rate 1.11 1.11 1.11 0 0 
12 Add-on revenue 360 473 284 0 0 1117 
13 
14 Services 
15 Services rate .30 .30 .30 .30 .30 
16 Services revenue 300 0 0 0 0 300 
17 
18 Maintenance Revenue 569 512 307 0 0 1388 
19 
20 Total Revenue 2228 985 591 0 0 3805 
21 
22 Maintenance Calculations 
23 Previous year maintenance 360 569 512 307 0 
24 Retention rate .90 .75 .50 0 0 
25 Remaining maintenance 324 427 256 0 0 1006 
26 New + add-on license revenue 1360 473 284 0 0 
27 Maint./license rate .18 .18 .18 .18 .18 
28 Conversion rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
29 New license maintenance revenue 245 85 51 0 0 381 
30 Total Maintenance 569 512 307 0 0 1388 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
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A | B | C | D | E | F | G 
51 
52 Revenues - Portal (North America - Channel) 12 

53 Projected 

54 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FYOO-FY04 
55 

56 New Product Licenses 
57 New license rate 0 0 0 0 
58 New license revenue 500 0 0 0 0 500 
59 
60 Add-ons/Upgrades 
61 Add-on rate 1.11 1.11 1.11 1.11 1.11 
62 Add-on revenue 180 237 142 0 0 559 
63 
64 Services 
65 Services rate .25 .25 .25 .25 .25 
66 Services revenue 125 0 0 0 0 125 
67 
68 Maintenance Revenue 284 256 154 0 0 694 
69 
70 Total Revenue 1089 493 296 0 0 1877 
71 
72 Maintenance Calculations 
73 Previous year maintenance 180 284 256 154 0 
74 Retention rate .90 .75 .50 0 0 
75 Remaining maintenance 162 213 128 0 0 503 
76 New + add-on license revenue 680 237 142 0 0 
77 Maint./license rate .18 .18 .18 .18 .18 
78 Conversion rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
79 New license maintenance revenue 122 43 26 0 0 191 
80 Total Maintenance 284 256 154 0 0 694 
81 
82 
83 
84 
85 
86 
87 
88 
89 
90 
91 
92 
93 
94 
95 
96 
97 
98 
99 
100 
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A I B I c I D I E I F I G 
101 

102 
Revenues - Portal (International - Direct) 13 

103 Projected 

104 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
105 
106 New Product Licenses 
10/ New license rate 0 0 0 0 
108 New license revenue 200 0 0 0 0 200 
109 
110 Add-ons/Upgrades 
111 Add-on rate 1.11 1.11 1.11 1.11 1.11 
112 Add-on revenue 0 30 18 0 0 48 
113 
114 Services 
11b Services rate .30 .30 .30 .30 .30 
116 Services revenue 60 0 0 0 0 60 
11/ 
118 Maintenance Revenue 36 32 19 0 0 88 
119 
120 Total Revenue 296 62 37 0 0 396 
121 
122 Maintenance Calculations 
123 Previous year maintenance 0 36 32 19 0 
124 Retention rate .90 .75 .50 0 0 
125 Remaining maintenance 0 27 16 0 0 43 
126 New + add-on license revenue 200 30 18 0 0 
127 Maint./license rate .18 .18 .18 .18 .18 
128 Conversion rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
129 New license maintenance revenue 36 5 3 0 0 45 
130 Total Maintenance 36 32 19 0 0 88 
131 
132 
133 
134 
135 
136 
137 
138 
139 
140 
141 
142 
143 
144 
145 
146 
147 
148 
149 
150 
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A I B I c I D I E | F I G 
1 b1 
152 Revenues - Portal (International - Channel) 14 

153 Projected 

154 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
155 
156 New Product Licenses 
15/ New license rate 0 0 0 0 
158 New license revenue 100 0 0 0 0 100 
159 
160 Add-ons/Upgrades 
161 Add-on rate 1.11 1.11 1.11 1.11 1.11 
162 Add-on revenue 0 15 9 0 0 24 
163 
"164 Services 
165 Services rate .25 .25 .25 .25 .25 
166 Services revenue 25 0 0 0 0 25 
16/ 
168 Maintenance Revenue 18 16 10 0 0 44 
169 
1/0 Total Revenue 143 31 19 0 0 193 
1/1 
172 Maintenance Calculations 
1/3 Previous year maintenance 0 18 16 10 0 
1/4 Retention rate .90 .75 .50 0 0 
175 Remaining maintenance 0 14 8 0 0 22 
1/6 New + add-on license revenue 100 15 9 0 0 
1 // Maint./license rate .18 .18 .18 .18 .18 
1/8 Conversion rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
1/9 New license maintenance revenue 18 3 2 0 0 22 
180 Total Maintenance 18 16 10 0 0 44 
181 
182 
183 
184 
185 
186 
18/ 
188 
189 
190 
191 
192 
193 
194 
195 
196 
19/ 
198 
199 
200 
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A  | B | C | D | E | F | G  
201 
202 Costs - Portal (North America) « 
203 
204 

Projected 

205 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
206 
207 Direct 
208 Revenues 2228 985 591 0 0 3805 
209 
210 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
211 cost 223 99 59 0 0 380 
212 Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
213 cost 669 296 177 0 0 1141 
214 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
215 cost 334 148 89 0 0 571 
216 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
217 cost 334 148 89 0 0 571 
218 Total Costs- Direct 1560 690 414 0 0 2663 
219 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Direct .70 .70 .70 1.00 1.00 
220 
221 Channel 
222 Revenues 1089 493 296 0 0 1877 
223 
224 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
225 cost 109 49 30 0 0 188 
226 Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
227 cost 327 148 89 0 0 563 
228 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
229 cost 163 74 44 0 0 282 
230 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
231 cost 163 74 44 0 0 282 
232 Total Costs - Channel 762 345 207 0 0 1314 
233 
234 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Channel .70 .70 .70 1.00 1.00 
235 
236 Total Costs - North America 2322 1035 621 0 0 3977 
237 
238 Total Revenue - North America 3318 1478 887 0 0 5682 
239 
240 Revenue-Costs - North America 995 443 266 0 0 1705 
241 
242 
243 
244 
245 
246 
247 
248 
249 
250 
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A 1 B I c I • I E ! F I G 
2b 1 
252 Costs - Portal (International) 16 
253 
254 Projected 

255 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
256 
257 Direct 
256 Revenues 296 62 37 0 0 396 
259 
260 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
261 cost 30 6 4 0 0 40 
262 Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
263 cost 89 19 11 0 0 119 
264 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
265 cost 44 9 6 0 0 59 
266 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
26/ cost 44 9 6 0 0 59 
268 Total Costs- Direct 207 44 26 0 0 277 
269 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Direct .70 .70 .70 1.00 1.00 
2/0 
271 Channel 
2/2 Revenues 143 31 19 0 0 193 
2/3 
2/4 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
2/5 cost 14 3 2 0 0 19 
2/6 Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
2// cost 43 9 6 0 0 58 
2/8 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
2/9 cost 21 5 3 0 0 29 
280 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
281 cost 21 5 3 0 0 29 
282 Total Costs - Channel 100 22 13 0 0 135 
283 
284 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Channel .70 .70 .70 1.00 1.00 
285 
286 Total Costs - International 307 65 39 0 0 412 
28/ 
288 Total Revenue - International 439 94 56 0 0 589 
289 
290 Revenue-Costs -International 132 28 17 0 0 177 
291 
292 
293 
294 
295 
296 
29/ 
298 
299 
300 
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A | B c I D E F G 
301 

302 
Net Present Value - Portal (Worldwide) 17 

303 Projected 

304 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
305 
306 Portal (North America) 
307 Revenue 3318 1478 887 0 0 5682 
308 Operating Income Ratio .30 .30 .30 0 0 
309 Operating Income 995 443 266 0 0 1705 
310 Tax Rate .38 .38 .38 .38 0.38 
311 Operating Income After Tax 617 275 165 0 0 1057 
312 NPV Factors .935 .813 .707 .615 .534 
313 NPV 577 223 117 0 0 917 
314 
315 Discount Rate - Americas 0.15 
316 
317 
318 
319 
320 
321 
322 
323 
324 
325 
326 Portal (International) 
327 Revenue 439 94 56 0 0 589 
328 Operating Income Ratio .30 .30 .30 .00 .00 
329 Operating Income 132 28 17 0 0 177 
330 Tax Rate .30 .30 .30 .30 .30 
331 Operating Income After Tax 92 20 12 0 0 124 
332 NPV Factors .935 .813 .707 .615 .534 
333 NPV 86 16 8 0 0 110 
334 
335 Discount Rate - International 0.15 
336 
337 
338 
339 
340 
341 
342 Worldwide Summary-Portal 
343 Revenue 3757 1571 943 0 0 6271 
344 Operating income 1127 471 283 0 0 1881 
345 Operating Income aftertax 709 295 177 0 0 1180 
346 NPV 663 239 125 0 0 1027 
347 
348 
349 
350 
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H I I J J I K I L M I N 
1 

2 
Revenues - Report Server (North America - Direct) 21 

3 Projected 

4 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
.b 
6 New Product Licenses 
/ New license rate 0 0 0 0 
8 New license revenue 1500 0 0 0 0 1500 y 

10 Add-ons/Upgrades 
11 Add-on rate .55 .55 .55 .55 .55 
12 Add-on revenue 1815 1608 883 0 0 4306 
13 
14 Services 
1b Services rate .50 .50 .50 .50 .50 
1b Services revenue 750 0 0 0 0 750 
1/ 
18 Maintenance Revenue 3897 3212 1765 0 0 8874 
19 
20 Total Revenue 7962 4820 2648 0 0 15430 
21 
22 Maintenance Calculations 
23 Previous year maintenance 3667 3897 3212 1765 0 
24 Retention rate .90 .75 .50 0 0 
2b Remaining maintenance 3300 2923 1606 0 0 7829 
2b New + add-on license revenue 3315 1608 883 0 0 
2/ Maint./license rate .18 .18 .18 .18 .18 
28 Conversion rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
29 New license maintenance revenue 597 289 159 0 0 1045 
30 Total Maintenance 3897 3212 1765 0 0 8874 
31 
32 
33 
34 
3b 
3b 
3/ 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
4b 
4b 
4/ 
48 
49 
bO 
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H I I | J | K | L | M | N 
51 
52 Revenues - Report Server (North America - Channel) 22 

53 Projected 

54 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
55 

56 New Product Licenses 
57 New license rate 0 0 0 0 
58 New license revenue 500 0 0 0 0 500 
59 
60 Add-ons/Upgrades 
61 Add-on rate 0.55 .55 .55 .55 .55 
62 Add-on revenue 495 445 245 0 0 1185 
63 
64 Services 
65 Services rate .50 .50 .50 .50 .50 
66 Services revenue 100 0 0 0 0 100 
6/ 
68 Maintenance Revenue 1079 889 489 0 0 2457 
69 
/O Total Revenue 2174 1335 733 0 0 4242 
71 
72 Maintenance Calculations 
73 Previous year maintenance 1000 1079 889 489 0 
74 Retention rate .90 .75 .50 0 0 
75 Remaining maintenance 900 809 445 0 0 2154 
/6 New + add-on license revenue 995 445 245 0 0 
7/ Maint./license rate .18 .18 .18 .18 .18 
78 Conversion rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
79 New license maintenance revenue 179 80 44 0 0 303 
80 Total Maintenance 1079 889 489 0 0 2457 
81 
82 
83 
84 
85 
86 
87 
88 
89 
90 
91 
92 
93 
94 
95 
96 
9/ 
98 
99 

100 
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H I I I J I K I L M I N 
101 

102 
Revenues - Report Server (International - Direct) 23 

103 Projected 

104 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
105 
106 New Product Licenses 
107 New license rate 0 0 0 0 
108 New license revenue 600 0 0 0 0 600 
109 
110 Add-ons/Upgrades 
111 Add-on rate .55 .55 .55 .55 .55 
112 Add-on revenue 214 221 122 0 0 557 
113 
114 Services 
115 Services rate .50 .50 .50 .50 .50 
116 Services revenue 300 0 0 0 0 300 
117 
118 Maintenance Revenue 536 442 243 0 0 1221 
119 
120 Total Revenue 1651 663 364 0 0 2678 
121 
122 Maintenance Calculations 
123 Previous year maintenance 433 536 442 243 0 
124 Retention rate .90 .75 .50 0 0 
125 Remaining maintenance 390 402 221 0 0 1013 
126 New + add-on license revenue 814 221 122 0 0 
12/ Maint./!icense rate .18 .18 .18 .18 .18 
128 Conversion rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
129 New license maintenance revenue 147 40 22 0 0 208 
130 Total Maintenance 536 442 243 0 0 1221 
131 
132 
133 
134 
13b 
136 
13/ 
138 
139 
140 
141 
142 
143 
144 
14b 
146 
147 
148 
149 
150 
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H I I I J I K L L M I N 151 
152 Revenues - Report Server (International - Channel) 24 

153 Projected 

154 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 155 
156 New Product Licenses 
157 New license rate 0 0 0 0 158 New license revenue 200 0 0 0 0 200 159 
160 Add-ons/Upgrades 
161 Add-on rate .55 .55 .55 .55 .55 
162 Add-on revenue 72 74 41 0 0 186 163 
164 Services 
165 Services rate .50 .50 .50 .50 .50 
166 Services revenue 100 0 0 0 0 100 167 
168 Maintenance Revenue 179 148 81 0 0 409 169 
170 Total Revenue 551 222 122 0 0 895 171 
172 Maintenance Calculations 
173 Previous year maintenance 145 179 148 81 0 
174 Retention rate .90 .75 .50 0 0 175 Remaining maintenance 131 135 74 0 0 339 
176 New + add-on license revenue 272 74 41 0 0 
177 Maint./license rate .18 .18 .18 .18 .18 
178 Conversion rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
179 New license maintenance revenue 49 13 7 0 0 70 180 Total Maintenance 179 148 81 0 0 409 181 
182 
183 
184 
185 
186 
187 
188 
189 
190 
191 
192 
193 
194 
195 
196 
197 
198 
199 
200 
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H I I 1 J I K I L I M I N 
201 
202 Costs - Report Server (North America) 25 
203 
204 Projected 

Total 

205 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
20b 
207 Direct -

2U8 Revenues 7962 4820 2648 0 0 15430 
209 
210 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
211 cost 796 482 265 0 0 1543 
212 Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
213 cost 2389 1446 795 0 0 4629 
214 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
21b cost 1194 723 397 0 0 2315 
21b G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
21/ cost 1194 723 397 0 0 2315 
218 Total Costs- Direct 5574 3374 1854 0 0 10801 
219 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Direct .70 .70 .70 1.00 1.00 
220 
221 Channel 
222 Revenues 2174 1335 733 0 0 4242 
223 
224 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
22b cost 217 133 73 0 0 424 
22b Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
22/ cost 652 400 220 0 0 1273 
228 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
229 cost 326 200 110 0 0 636 
230 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
231 cost 326 200 110 0 0 636 
232 Total Costs - Channel 1522 934 513 0 0 2969 
233 
234 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Channel .70 .70 .70 1.00 1.00 
23b 
23b Total Costs - North America 7095 4308 2367 0 0 13771 
23/ 
238 Total Revenue - North America 10136 6154 3382 0 0 19672 
239 
240 Revenue-Costs - North America 3041 1846 1015 0 0 5902 
241 
242 
243 
244 
24b 
24b 
24/ 
248 
249 
2b0 
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H I I I J I K | L | M I N 
251 
252 Costs - Report Server (International) 26 
253 
254 Projected 

255 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
256 
257 Direct 
258 Revenues 1651 663 364 0 0 2678 
259 
260 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
261 cost 165 66 36 0 0 268 
262 Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
263 cost 495 199 109 0 0 803 
264 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
265 cost 248 99 55 0 0 402 
266 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
26/ cost 248 99 55 0 0 402 
268 Total Costs- Direct 1155 464 255 0 0 1875 
269 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Direct .70 .70 .70 1.00 1.00 
2/0 
271 Channel 
2/2 Revenues 551 222 122 0 0 895 
2/3 
2/4 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
2/5 cost 55 22 12 0 0 90 
2/6 Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
2// cost 165 67 37 0 0 269 
2/8 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
2/9 cost 83 33 18 0 0 134 
280 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
281 cost 83 33 18 0 0 134 
282 Total Costs - Channel 386 155 85 0 0 627 
283 
284 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Channel .70 .70 .70 1.00 1.00 
285 
286 Total Costs - International 1541 620 340 0 0 2501 
28/ 
288 Total Revenue - International 2202 885 486 0 0 3573 
289 
290 Revenue-Costs -International 661 266 146 0 0 1072 
291 
292 
293 
294 
295 
296 
29/ 
298 
299 
300 
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H | I | J | K | L | M | N 
301 

302 
Net Present Value - Report Server (Worldwide) 27 

303 Projected 

304 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
305 
306 Report Server (North America) 
307 Revenue 10136 6154 3382 0 0 19672 
308 Operating Income Ratio .30 .30 .30 0 0 
309 Operating Income 3041 1846 1015 0 0 5902 
310 Tax Rate .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 
311 Operating Income After Tax 1885 1145 629 0 0 3659 
312 NPV Factors .935 .813 .707 .615 .534 
313 NPV 1762 930 445 0 0 3137 
314 
315 Discount Rate - Americas 0.15 
316 
317 
318 
319 
320 
321 
322 
323 
324 
325 
326 Report Server (International) 
327 Revenue 2202 885 486 0 0 3573 
328 Operating Income Ratio .30 .30 .30 0 0 
329 Operating Income 661 266 146 0 0 1072 
330 Tax Rate .30 .30 .30 .30 .30 
331 Operating Income After Tax 462 186 102 0 0 750 
332 NPV Factors .935 .813 .707 .615 .534 
333 NPV 432 151 72 0 0 656 
334 
335 Discount Rate - International 0.15 
336 
337 
338 
339 
340 
341 
342 Worldwide Summary-Report Server 
343 Revenue 12338 7039 3868 0 0 23246 
344 Operating income 3701 2112 1160 0 0 6974 
345 Operating Income after tax 2348 1331 731 0 0 4409 
346 NPV 2195 1082 517 0 0 3793 
347 
348 
349 
350 
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0 P Q R s T I u 
1 

2 
Revenues - Cube Server (North America - Direct) 31 

3 Projected 

4 ($000) FYOO FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
5 
6 New Product Licenses 
7 New license rate 1.00 .75 .50 .25 
8 New license revenue 1500 1500 1125 563 141 4828 
9 

10 Add-ons/Upgrades 
11 Add-on rate .55 .55 .55 .55 .55 
12 Add-on revenue 99 232 363 408 353 1454 
13 
14 Services 
15 Services rate .40 .40 .40 .40 .40 
16 Services revenue 600 600 450 225 56 1931 
17 
18 Maintenance Revenue 468 733 927 916 730 3775 
19 
20 Total Revenue 2667 3064 2865 2112 1280 11988 
21 
22 Maintenance Calculations 
23 Previous year maintenance 200 468 733 927 916 
24 Retention rate .90 .90 .90 .80 .70 
25 Remaining maintenance 180 421 659 742 642 2644 
26 New + add-on license revenue 1599 1732 1488 970 493 
27 Maint./license rate .18 .18 .18 .18 .18 
28 Conversion rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
29 New license maintenance revenue 288 312 268 175 89 1131 
30 Total Maintenance 468 733 927 916 730 3775 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
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51 
52 Revenues - Cube Server (North America - Channel) 32 

53 Projected 

54 ($000) FYOO FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
55 

56 New Product Licenses 
57 New license rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 
58 New license revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
59 
60 Add-ons/Upgrades 
61 Add-on rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 
62 Add-on revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
63 
64 Services 
65 Services rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 
66 Services revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
6/ 0 0 0 0 0 0 
68 Maintenance Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
69 0 0 0 0 0 0 
/O Total Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
/1 
72 Maintenance Calculations 
/3 Previous year maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0 
/4 Retention rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 
75 Remaining maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0 
/6 New + add-on license revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
/ /  Maint./license rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 
/8 Conversion rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 
/9 New license maintenance revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
80 Total Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0 
81 
82 
83 
84 
85 
86 
8/ 
88 
89 
90 
91 
92 
93 
94 
95 
96 
9/ 
98 
99 

100 
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101 

102 
Revenues - Cube Server (International - Direct) 33 

103 Projected 

104 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FYOO-FY04 
105 
106 New Product Licenses 
10/ New license rate 1.00 .75 .50 .25 
108 New license revenue 650 650 488 244 61 2092 
109 
110 Add-ons/Upgrades 
111 Add-on rate .55 .55 .55 .55 .55 
112 Add-on revenue 12 70 127 151 133 493 
113 
114 Services 
11b Services rate .40 .40 .40 .40 .40 
116 Services revenue 260 260 195 98 24 837 
11/ 
118 Maintenance Revenue 142 257 342 345 276 1362 
119 
120 Total Revenue 1064 1237 1152 836 494 4784 
121 
122 Maintenance Calculations 
123 Previous year maintenance 25 142 257 342 345 
124 Retention rate .90 .90 .90 .80 .70 
125 Remaining maintenance 23 128 231 274 241 896 
126 New + add-on license revenue 662 720 615 394 194 
12/ Maint./license rate .18 .18 .18 .18 .18 
128 Conversion rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
129 New license maintenance revenue 119 130 111 71 35 465 
130 Total Maintenance 142 257 342 345 276 1362 
131 
132 
133 
134 
13b 
136 
13/ 
138 
139 
140 
141 
142 
143 
144 
145 
146 
147 
148 
149 
150 
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151 
152 Revenues - Cube Server (International - Channel) 34 

153 Projected 

154 ($000) FYOO FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 
Total 

FY00-FY04 
155 
156 New Product Licenses 
157 New license rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 158 New license revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 159 
160 Add-ons/Upgrades 
1b1 Add-on rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 
162 Add-on revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
163 
164 Services 
165 Services rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 
166 Services revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
16/ 0 0 0 0 0 0 
168 Maintenance Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
1b9 0 0 0 0 0 0 
1 / U  Total Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
1 / 1  
172 Maintenance Calculations 
1 / 3  Previous year maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0 
1 / 4  Retention rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 
175 Remaining maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0 
1 / 6  New + add-on license revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
1 / /  MaintTlicense rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 / 8  Conversion rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 
1 / 9  New license maintenance revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 
180 Total Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0 
181 
182 
183 
184 
185 
186 
1 8 /  
188 
189 
190 
191 
192 
193 
194 
195 
196 
1 9 /  
198 
199 
200 
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201 
202 Costs - Cube Server (North America) 35 

203 
204 Projected 

Total 

205 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY00-FY04 
206 
207 Direct 
208 Revenues 2667 3064 2865 2112 1280 11988 
209 
210 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
211 cost 267 306 286 211 128 1199 
212 Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
213 cost 800 919 859 528 320 3427 
214 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
215 cost 400 460 430 211 128 1629 
216 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
21/ cost 400 460 430 317 192 1798 
218 Total Costs- Direct 1867 2145 2005 1267 768 8052 
219 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Direct .70 .70 .70 .60 .60 
220 
221 Channel 
222 Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 0 
223 
224 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
22b cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 
226 Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
227 cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 
228 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
229 cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 
230 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
231 cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 
232 Total Costs - Channel 0 0 0 0 0 0 
233 
234 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Channel 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
23b 
236 Total Costs - North America 1867 2145 2005 1267 768 8052 
237 
238 Total Revenue - North America 2667 3064 2865 2112 1280 11988 
239 
240 Revenue-Costs - North America 800 919 859 845 512 3936 
241 
242 
243 
244 
24b 
246 
24/ 
248 
249 
250 
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251 
252 Costs - Cube Server (International) 36 

253 
254 Projected Total 

255 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY00-FY04 
256 
257 Direct 
258 Revenues 1064 1237 1152 836 494 4784 
259 
260 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
261 cost 106 124 115 84 49 478 
262 Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
263 cost 319 371 346 209 124 1369 
264 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
265 cost 160 186 173 84 49 651 
266 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
267 cost 160 186 173 125 74 718 
268 Total Costs- Direct 745 866 806 502 296 3216 
269 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Direct .70 .70 .70 .60 .60 
270 
271 Channel 
2/2 Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2/3 
2/4 Cost of revenues rate .10 .10 .10 .10 .10 
2/5 cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2/6 Marketing and sales rate .30 .30 .30 .25 .25 
277 cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2/8 R and D rate .15 .15 .15 .10 .10 
2/9 cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 
280 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
281 cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 
282 Total Costs - Channel 0 0 0 0 0 0 
283 
284 Cost/Revenue Ratio - Channel 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
285 
286 Total Costs - International 745 866 806 502 296 3216 
28/ 
288 Total Revenue - International 1064 1237 1152 836 494 4784 
289 
290 Revenue-Costs -International 319 371 346 335 198 1568 
291 
292 
293 
294 
295 
296 
29/ 
298 
299 
300 
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301 

302 Net Present Value - Cube Server (Worldwide) 37 

303 Projected Total 

304 ($000) FY00 FY01 FY02 FY03 FY04 FY00-FY04 
30b 
306 CubeServer (North America) 
30/ Revenue 2667 3064 2865 2112 1280 11988 
308 Operating Income Ratio .30 .30 .30 .40 .40 
309 Operating Income 800 919 859 845 512 3936 
310 Tax Rate .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 
311 Operating Income After Tax 496 570 533 524 317 2440 
312 NPV Factors .935 .813 .707 .615 .534 
313 NPV 464 463 377 322 170 1795 
314 
31b Discount Rate - Americas 0.15 
316 
31/ 
318 
3iy 
320 
321 
322 
323 
324 
32b 
326 CubeServer (International) 
32/ Revenue 1064 1237 1152 836 494 4784 
328 Operating Income Ratio .30 .30 .30 .40 .40 
320 Operating Income 319 371 346 335 198 1568 
330 Tax Rate .30 .30 .30 .30 .30 
331 Operating Income After Tax 223 260 242 234 138 1098 
332 NPV Factors .935 .813 .707 .615 .534 
333 NPV 209 211 171 144 74 809 
334 
33b Discount Rate - International 0.15 
33b 
33/ 
338 
330 
340 
341 
342 Worldwide Summary-CubeServer 
343 Revenue 3731 4302 4017 2948 1774 16772 
344 Operating income 1119 1290 1205 1179 710 5504 
345 Operating Income after tax 719 830 775 758 456 3538 
346 NPV 673 675 548 466 244 2604 
34/ 
348 
340 
3b0 
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51 Revenue Worksheets - InterTools (Americas) 12 

5? 
53 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 

54 
55 
56 CSP Unit License Fee 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 

57 Corporate Unit License Fee 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 

58 VNSP Unit License Fee 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 

59 
60 Upgrades/Add-ons <ratio to maint base> 
61 CSP .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .5 .4 .3 

6? Corporate 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 

63 VNSP 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 

64 
65 Professional Services <ratio to new lic> 
66 CSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
67 Corporate .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
68 VNSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 
69 
70 Maintenance Calculation - CSP 
71 Previous Year Maintenance 150 607 1384 2647 4268 5427 6275 5734 4862 
72 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
73 Remaining Maintenance 0 143 576 1315 2515 3841 4884 5334 4587 3647 26842 
74 New Licenses and New Upgrades 1000 3095 5386 8881 11685 10573 9272 2667 1835 1094 
75 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
76 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
77 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 150 464 808 1332 1753 1586 1391 400 275 164 8323 
78 Total Maintenance-CSP Revenue 150 607 1384 2647 4268 5427 6275 5734 4862 3811 35166 
79 
80 Maintenance Calculation - Corporate 
81 Previous Year Maintenance 45 141 341 659 1110 1649 2230 2180 1940 
82 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
83 Remaining Maintenance 0 43 134 324 626 999 1484 1895 1744 1455 8704 
84 New Licenses and New Upgrades 300 657 1379 2231 3232 4329 4974 1895 1308 728 
85 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
86 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
87 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 45 99 207 335 485 649 746 284 196 109 3155 
88 Total Maintenance-Corporate Revenue 45 141 341 659 1110 1649 2230 2180 1940 1564 11859 
89 
90 Maintenance Calculation - Vertical NSP 
91 Previous Year Maintenance 0 150 396 751 1231 1704 2214 2165 1927 
92 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
93 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 143 376 714 1108 1534 1882 1732 1445 8933 
94 New Licenses and New Upgrades 0 1000 1690 2500 3449 3973 4540 1882 1299 722 
95 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
96 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
97 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 0 150 253 375 517 596 681 282 195 108 3158 
98 Total Maintenance - Vertical NSP Revenu 0 150 396 751 1231 1704 2214 2165 1927 1553 12091 
99 
100 
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101 Projections for InterTools - Revenues (International) 13 

10? 
103 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 

104 
105 New Product Licenses 
106 Communications Service Providers 
107 # of New Customers 2 6 8 10 10 8 0 0 0 48 

108 Revenue - Licenses 1500 3000 4500 6000 7500 7500 6000 0 0 0 36000 

109 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 1500 4500 9000 15000 22500 30000 36000 36000 36000 36000 

110 Corporate 
111 # of New Customers 0 1 3 5 7 9 9 0 0 0 34 

112 Revenue - Licenses 0 200 600 1000 1400 1800 1800 0 0 0 6800 

113 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 200 800 1800 3200 5000 6800 6800 6800 6800 
114 Vertical Network Service 
115 # of New Customers 0 1 2 3 4 5 5 0 0 0 20 
116 Revenue - Licenses 0 400 800 1200 1600 2000 2000 0 0 0 
117 Cumulative Revenue - Licenses 0 400 1200 2400 4000 6000 8000 8000 8000 8000 
118 Total - New License Revenue 1500 3600 5900 8200 10500 11300 9800 0 0 0 50800 
119 
120 Upqrades/Add-ons - Revenue 
121 CSP 0 143 436 886 1499 2163 2821 2351 1618 965 12881 
122 Corporate 0 0 38 157 368 649 1024 1014 700 389 4340 
123 Vertical NSP 0 0 76 238 499 826 1250 1214 837 466 5405 
124 Total Upgrade Revenue 0 143 550 1281 2366 3637 5095 4579 3155 1820 22626 
125 Cumulative Total-Upgrade Revenues 0 143 693 1974 4339 7977 13071 17651 20806 22626 
126 
127 Professional Services 
128 CSP 750 1500 2250 3000 3750 3750 3000 0 0 0 18000 
129 Corporate 0 100 300 500 700 900 900 0 0 0 3400 
130 Vertical NSP 0 200 400 600 800 1000 1000 0 0 0 4000 
131 Total Professional Services 750 1800 2950 4100 5250 5650 4900 0 0 0 25400 
132 
133 
134 
135 
136 Maintenance 
137 CSP 225 685 1391 2355 3587 4677 5533 5056 4287 3360 31156 
138 Corporate 0 30 124 292 542 855 1193 1167 1038 837 6078 
139 Vertical NSP 0 60 188 395 690 1045 1428 1396 1242 1001 7444 
140 Total Maintenance 225 775 1704 3041 4819 6577 8154 7618 6567 5199 44679 
141 
142 Total Revenues 
143 CSP 2475 5328 8578 12240 16335 18090 17353 7407 5905 4325 98037 
144 Corporate 0 330 1062 1948 3011 4204 4917 2181 1738 1226 20618 
145 Vertical NSP 0 660 1464 2433 3588 4870 5678 2609 2079 1467 24849 
146 
147 Grand Total Revenue 2475 6318 11104 16621 22934 27165 27949 12197 9722 7018 143504 
148 
149 
150 
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151 Revenue Worksheets - InterTools (International) 14 

15? 
153 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 

154 
155 
155 CSP Unit License Fee 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 

157 Corporate Unit License Fee 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 

158 VNSP Unit License Fee 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 

159 
150 Upqrades/Add-ons <ratio to maint base> 
151 CSP .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .5 .4 .3 

15? Corporate 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 

153 VNSP 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.33 1.0 .75 .5 

154 
155 Professional Services <ratio to new lic> 
165 CSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 

167 Corporate .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 

168 VNSP .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 .5 

169 
170 Maintenance Calculation - CSP 
171 Previous Year Maintenance 225 685 1391 2355 3587 4677 5533 5056 4287 

17? Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 

173 Remaining Maintenance 0 214 651 1322 2237 3228 4210 4703 4044 3215 23824 

174 New Licenses and New Upgrades 1500 3143 4936 6886 8999 9663 8821 2351 1618 965 

175 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

176 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

177 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 225 471 740 1033 1350 1449 1323 353 243 145 7332 

178 Total Maintenance-CSP Revenue 225 685 1391 2355 3587 4677 5533 5056 4287 3360 31156 

179 
180 Maintenance Calculation - Corporate 
181 Previous Year Maintenance 0 30 124 292 542 855 1193 1167 1038 
182 Retention Rate .95 .95 95| .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
183 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 29 118 277 488 770 1014 933 779 4407 
184 New Licenses and New Upgrades 0 200 638 1157 1768 2449 2824 1014 700 389 
185 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
186 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
187 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 0 30 96 174 265 367 424 152 105 58 1671 
188 Total Maintenance-Corporate Revenue 0 30 124 292 542 855 1193 1167 1038 837 6078 
189 
190 Maintenance Calc. - Vertical NSP 
191 Previous Year Maintenance 0 60 188 395 690 1045 1428 1396 1242 
192 Retention Rate .95 .95 .95 .95 .95 .90 .90 .85 .80 .75 
193 Remaining Maintenance 0 0 57 179 375 621 940 1214 1116 932 5433 
194 New Licenses and New Upgrades 0 400 876 1438 2099 2826 3250 1214 837 466 
195 Maintenance/License Price Ratio .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
196 Initial Maintenance Rate 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
197 New License/Upgrade Maintenance 0 60 131 216 315 424 488 182 126 70 2011 
198 Total Maintenance-Vertical NSP Rev 0 60 188 395 690 1045 1428 1396 1242 1001 7444 
199 
200 
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?m Costs for InterTools Technologies Worldwide 
?n? 15 

?f)3 
204 Proj ected 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 
Total 

1999-2005 
20b 
206 

($000) 1999 

20/ 
208 

Americas 
2145 7950 14426 23569 32425 34406 35255 16523 13170 9472 189343 

->09 
910 Cost of revenues rate .20 .20 .19 .18 .17 .16 .15 .10 .10 .10 

911 cost 429 1590 2741 4242 5512 5505 5288 1652 1317 947 29225 

9-p .35 .35 .34 .33 .32 .31 .30 .25 .25 .25 

913 cost 751 2783 4905 7778 10376 10666 10577 4131 3293 2368 57626 

914 R and D rate .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 .10 

916 cost 322 1193 2020 3064 3891 3785 3526 1652 1317 947 21716 

91R G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

?17 cost 322 1193 2164 3535 4864 5161 5288 2478 1976 1421 28401 

91 R Total Costs- Americas 1823 6758 11829 18620 24643 25116 24679 9914 7902 5683 136968 

?19 Cost/Revenue Ratio .85 .85 .82 .79 .76 .73 .70 .60 .60 .60 

??n 
221 International 
222 Revenues 2475 6318 11104 16621 22934 27165 27949 12197 9722 7018 143504 

223 
224 Cost of revenues rate .20 .20 .19 .18 .17 .16 .15 .10 .10 .10 

225 cost 495 1264 2110 2992 3899 4346 4192 1220 972 702 22192 

226 Marketing and sales rate .35 .35 .34 .33 32 .31 .30 .25 .25 .25 

227 cost 866 2211 3775 5485 7339 8421 8385 3049 2431 1755 43717 

228 R and D rate .15 .15 .14 .13 .12 .11 .10 .10 .10 .10 

229 cost 371 948 1555 2161 2752 2988 2795 1220 972 702 16463 

230 G and A rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 

231 cost 371 948 1666 2493 3440 4075 4192 1830 1458 1053 21526 

232 Total Costs - International 2104 5371 9105 13131 17430 19830 19564 7318 5833 4211 103897 

233 103897 

234 Cost/Revenue Ratio .85 .85 .82 .79 .76 .73 .70 .60 .60 .60 

235 
236 Total Costs - Worldwide 3927 12129 20934 31751 42073 44947 44243 17232 13736 9894 240865 
237 
238 
239 
240 
241 
242 
243 
244 
245 
246 
247 
248 
249 
250 
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?51 Net Present Value - InterTools Technologies 16 

?5? 
?S3 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 

754 Intertools - Americas 
755 Revenue 2145 7950 14426 23569 32425 34406 35255 16523 13170 9472 189343 
756 Operating Cost Ratio .15 .15 .18 .21 .24 .27 .30 .40 .40 .40 
757 Operating Income 322 1193 2597 4950 7782 9290 10577 6609 5268 3789 52375 
758 Tax Rate .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 
259 Operating Income After Tax 199 739 1610 3069 4825 5760 6557 4098 3266 2349 32473 
760 NPV Factors .917 .764 .637 .530 .442 .368 .307 .256 .213 .178 
761 NPV 183 565 1025 1628 2133 2122 2013 1048 696 417 11830 
262 Completion Ratio .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 
263 Allocable Value 123 378 687 1091 1429 1422 1349 702 467 280 7926 
264 
265 
266 
267 
268 
269 
270 
271 
272 
273 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total 
274 Intertools - International 
275 Revenue 2475 6318 11104 16621 22934 27165 27949 12197 9722 7018 143504 
276 Operating Cost Ratio .15 .15 .18 .21 .24 .27 .30 .40 .40 .40 
277 Operating Income 371 948 1999 3490 5504 7334 8385 4879 3889 2807 39607 
278 Tax Rate .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 
279 Operating Income After Tax 230 588 1239 2164 3413 4547 5198 3025 2411 1741 24556 
280 NPV Factors .917 .764 .637 .530 .442 .368 .307 .256 .213 .178 
281 NPV 211 449 789 1148 1509 1675 1596 774 514 309 8973 
282 Completion Ratio .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 .67 
283 Allocable Value 141 301 529 769 1011 1122 1069 518 344 207 6012 
284 
285 Total Worldwide NPV 394 1014 1814 2776 3642 3797 3609 1822 1210 727 20804 
286 Total Worldwide Allocable 264 679 1215 1860 2440 2544 2418 1221 811 487 13938 
287 
288 
289 
290 
291 Selected Discount Rate - Americas .20 
292 
293 Selected Discount Rate - International .20 
294 
295 
296 
297 
298 
299 
300 . 
301 
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1 Projections for NCC Custom Pro! Sessional Services 
2 
3 ($000) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Totai 
4 
5 Previous year revenue 24000 21423 19117 17062 15228 13591 11552 9820 8347 7095 
6 Erosion rate .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 .15 
7 Remaining revenue base 20400 18207 16250 14503 12944 11552 9820 8347 7095 6030 125147 
8 Growth rate in remaining accts .05 .05 .05 .05 .05 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
9 Current year revenue 21420 19117 17062 15228 13591 11552 9820 8347 7095 6030 129262 

10 
11 
12 Operating income margin .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 .20 
13 Operating income 4284 3823 3412 3046 2718 2310 1964 1669 1419 1206 25852 
14 Tax rate .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 
15 Operating income after tax 2656 2371 2116 1888 1685 1432 1218 1035 880 748 16029 
16 
17 NPV factor (15%) .935 .813 .707 .615 .534 .465 .404 .351 .305 .265 
18 NPV 2483 1927 1496 1161 900 666 492 363 268 198 9956 

V V V 
vP f v 
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